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1 Los Angeles, California, Tuesday, August 5, 2003 1 curricular and instructional validity, and | understood
2 9:04 am. - 5:00 p.m. 2 that there were plansto collect evidence. | don't know
3 3 exactly what evidence was ultimately collected.
4 SUSAN E. PHILLIPS, Ph.D., 4 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
5 having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified 5 Q Do you know if any evidence --
6 further asfollows: 6 Do you know for certain whether or not any
7 7 evidence was collected?
8 EXAMINATION (Resumed) 8 A | have not seen any specific follow-up on that
9 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 9 issue.
10 Q Good morning, Dr. Phillips. How are you? 10 Q And you aretalking about both curricular
11 A Good morning. Just fine, thank you. 11 validity and instructional validity in your answer?
12 Q Any reason we should not go forward this 12 A Yes
13 morning? 13 Q What was the discussion -- Strike that.
14 A Not that | know of. 14 Was there more than one discussion in the TAC
15 Q Did you review any documents or materials after 15 meetings about this subject matter?
16 the deposition yesterday? 16 A | don't recall specifically. There may have
17 A Yes 17 been.
18 Q What did you look at? 18 Q What isyour best recollection as to the nature
19 A | looked through the tables in my report. 19 of those discussions? Tell me generally what was talked
20 Q For what purpose? 20 about.
21 A Just to refresh my memory about them. 21 A Itwasin the context of developing alegaly
22 Q Didyou look at anything else? 22 defensible high school exit examination and was one of
23 A No. 23 the requirements that was discussed.
24 Q Did you have any discussions with anyone about 24 Q And what did you say in those meetings, to the
25 thedeposition? 25 best of your recollection?
Page 286 Page 288
1 A No. 1 A | don't recall.
2 Q Mr. Herron? 2 Q Dr. Phillips, do you recall what anybody said
3 A Oh, well, no. We talked about where to eat and 3 inthe meeting?
4 how to find a convenience store. 4 MR. HERRON: On that topic?
5 Q Doaoctor, are you familiar with the phrase 5 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.
6 “instructional validity"? 6 THE WITNESS:. No, | don't have any specific
7 A Yes 7 recollections about that.
8 Q What does that mean? 8 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
9 A When the judge used the term "curricular 9 Q Areyou familiar with the phrase, Doctor,
10 vadlidity" in DebraP., it appeared that he was referring 10 "equal educational opportunity"?
11 to both curricular materials and what teachers were 11 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
12 actualy teaching. Subsequent to that casein 12 THE WITNESS: | believe | have heard it used
13 psychometrics, adistinction was made for research 13 or read it somewhere.
14 purposes so that people would understand the difference 14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
15 inwhat information was actually looked at. 15 Q Do you attach ameaning to that phrase?
16 So curricular validity came to be used 16 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
17 primarily for written instruction materials and 17 Vagueasto context.
18 textbooks, instructional validity for what teachers 18 THE WITNESS: | believe that would depend on
19 actualy taught in the classroom. 19 the context and how it was used by the author.
20 Q | see. And have any of the components of the 20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
21 California assessment system, to your knowledge, been 21 Q Haveyou ever used that phrase in your
22 evauated for instructional validity? 22 writings, to the best of your recollection?
23 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. | 23 A Not that | can recall.
24 THE WITNESS: There were discussionsin the 24 Q Arethey'reindividuals whom you regard as
25 TAC meeting that we talked about yesterday about 25 expertsin the area of equal educational opportunity?
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1 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous, 1 work.
2 useof theterm "area." Assumes facts not in evidence. 2 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
3 THE WITNESS: No one specific comes to mind. 3 Q Okay. Tell mewhat you mean when you say, "I
4 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 4 may know someone who has done so0." What do you mean by
5 Q And do you consider yourself an expert in any 5 that?
6 meaning that you attach to the phrase "equal educational 6 A There may be researchers who have collected
7 opportunity"? 7 such information and they may be people that | know, but
8 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 8 I'munaware of that particular research that they have
9 THE WITNESS: | consider myself an expert in 9 done.
10 psychometrics. 10 Q Okay. Have you ever undertaken any inquiry or
11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 11 examination to determine whether there exists among
12 Q Soyour answer is. | am an expertin 12 Cdlifornia public school students any disparity with
13 psychometrics; | do not consider myself an expert in 13  respect to access to textbooks?
14 equal educational opportunity; isthat afair 14 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous,
15 statement? 15 callsfor speculation, beyond the scope of what sheis
16 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 16 hereto testify about, irrelevant.
17 THE WITNESS: Psychometricsis something you 17 THE WITNESS: For purposes of developing my
18 canget amagjor in or have an area of emphasis. 18 report, | did not collect any information on that
19 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 19 issue.
20 Q Yes. 20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
21 A | don't know if that is aso true of the phrase 21 Q Okay. And for purposes not related to your
22 that you areusing, so | don't know if they are equal in 22 work, have you ever sought to collect any such
23 that sense. And I'm not sure | know what it meansto 23 information?
24 say you are an expert in that phrase. 24 MR. HERRON: Same objections.
25 Q Okay. Do you have an opinion, Doctor, asto 25 THE WITNESS: | don't believe | have collected
Page 290 Page 292
1 whether or not thereis any child enrolled in California 1 any research data that match that, although that isa
2 K through 12 public schools who is being denied equal 2 very broad question.
3 educational opportunity? 3 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
4 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation, 4 Q Do you know if anyone has undertaken any
5 vague and ambiguous. 5 inquiry to determine whether or not there exists among
6 THE WITNESS: | don't have any personal 6 Cdiforniapublic school students any disparity with
7 knowledge about what is going on in California schools. 7 respect to access to textbooks?
8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 8 MR. HERRON: Same objections.
9 Q Haveyou ever made any inquiry to determine 9 THE WITNESS: Aspart of acurricular validity
10 whether or not there are any children in CaliforniaK 10 inquiry, that information might be part of the
11 through 12 public schools who are being denied equal 11 information that might be collected. |I'm not aware for
12 educational opportunity? 12 surewhat the department actualy did collect, what
13 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous, 13 questions were asked and so on. So | don't -- I'm not
14 callsfor speculation, vastly overbroad, irrelevant. 14 aware of it, but it might have happened.
15 Y ou may respond. 15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
16 THE WITNESS: | don't have any specific data 16 Q Okay. Have you ever made any inquiry to
17 that | have collected on that issue. 17 determine whether or not it, in fact, has happened?
18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 18 MR. HERRON: Same objections.
19 Q Do you know anyone who has? 19 THE WITNESS: We have not had any further
20 A | may-- 20 discussions on that topic at thistime.
21 MR. HERRON: Same objections. I'm sorry. Same 21 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
22 objections. 22 Q Okay. Thank you.
23 Y ou may respond. 23 Could | have the witness's answer read back.
24 THE WITNESS: | may know someonewho hasdone | 24 Not the one that she just delivered, but the one prior
25 so. | don't have any specific recollection of that 25 tothat, please.
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1 (Record read asfollows: 1 A That iswhen the testing organization puts a
2 "Answer: As part of acurricular 2 notation by the score that it was obtained under
3 validity inquiry, that information 3 nonstandard conditions.
4 might be part of the information that 4 Q | see. And the position of plaintiff is that
5 might be collected. 1'm not aware for 5 it should not be flagged?
6 sure what the department actually did 6 A Yes.
7 collect, what questions were asked and 7 Q And then the Chapman case?
8 soon. Sol don't-- I'm not aware of 8 A Yes.
9 it, but it might have happened.") 9 Q What isthe Chapman case?
10 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 10 A Thatis challengeto the High School Exit
11 Q Doaoctor, with respect to the answer that was 11 Exam.
12 just read back to you, when you said, "As part of a 12 Q Inwhat state?
13 curricular validity inquiry that information might be 13 A Cdlifornia
14 collected," could you tell me, please, the basis for 14 Q Oh, that case. Thatisin San Francisco? Is
15 that answer. 15 that filed in San Francisco?
16 A Curricular validity involves textbook 16 A I'mnot sure.
17 materials and instructional materials, and you asked 17 Q Okay. Onwhose behalf are you serving asan
18 aquestion about textbooks and instructional 18 expert?
19 materials. Soinformation related to your question 19 A The State.
20 might have been obtained in the process of collecting | 20 Q And how much are you being paid for that case?
21 that information. 21 A The same asthisone.
22 Q Thank you. Bear with me for one minute, 22 Q Haveyou done any work in that case yet?
23 please. 23 A Yes.
24 Are there any other casesin which you are 24 Q Haveyou prepared areport?
25 presently serving as an expert? We talked about the 25 A No.
Page 294 Page 296
1 casesthat you have served in the past as an expert and 1 Q Do youintend to prepare areport?
2 | know, of course, you are serving as an expert on 2 A | don't know yet.
3 behalf of the state in the Williams case. 3 Q Do you know what the status of that caseis?
4 Arethere any other cases that you have been 4 A | believe there was amotion to try to halt the
5 retained to serve as an expert? 5 testing this spring, and | believe that has either been
6 A Yes 6 denied or delayed, and | don't really know what has
7 Q What cases are those? 7 happened since then.
8 A An accommodations case and the Chapman casein | 8 Q And how much have you been paid to date in the
9 Cdifornia 9 Chapman case?
10 Q All right. When you say "an accommodations 10 A | don't know.
11 case," what do you mean by that? | know what you mean | 11 Q Canyou give me aballpark number, please.
12 by that. You mean aquestion about accommodationsfor | 12 MR. HERRON: Don't guess or speculate.
13 individuals who are disabled with respect to a statewide 13 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
14 assessment test; is that what you mean? 14 Q | don't want you to guess. | just want a
15 A With respect to an assessment. 15 ballpark.
16 Q Okay. And for whom have you been retained, on 16 A | don't know without checking my records.
17 whose behalf? 17 Q Moreor lessthan $10,000?
18 A For the plaintiff in the case. 18 A I'mjustrealy not surewhat it is.
19 Q Andwhereisthat case? 19 Q Doctor, you told me that you have consulted in
20 A Pennsylvania 20 Cadlifornia-- Strike that.
21 Q Andwhat isyour understanding of what the 21 Have you ever consulted regarding assessment
22 issueisin the Pennsylvania case? 22 teststhat are not high-stakes tests outside
23 A  Whether the individual's test score should be 23 Cdlifornia?
24  flagged as aresult of an accommodation received. 24 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
25 Q What does "flagged" mean? 25 MR. ROSENBAUM: It was asked and answered, o |
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1 withdraw that. 1 THE WITNESS: Aswe talked about yesterday,
2 Q Haveyou ever served as an expert in a case 2 opportunity to learn applies to a high school exit
3 involving an assessment program that doesn't involve 3 examinationin California. Asyou know, that isavery
4 what you have called a high-stakes test? 4 recent development here, so that would not be at issue
5 MR. HERRON: Same objection. 5 intheperiod that | believe you are talking about in
6 THE WITNESS: | don't think so. 6 thesameway that it isnow that thereisan exit exam
7 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 7 inCdlifornia
8 Q Haveyou anayzed the accountability system in 8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
9 Kansas? 9 Q Let mereframe my gquestion since the
10 A No. 10 implementation of the California High School Exit
11 Q Haveyou consulted with the state of Kansas? 11 Exam.
12 A No. 12 Have you undertaken any inquiry or
13 Q Bear withmeif | did ask you this question. 13 investigation to determine whether or not there are any
14 | just want it asapredicate. 14 studentsin the CaliforniaK through 12 public school
15 Y ou told me that you consult on the subject 15 system who have not received the opportunity to learn,
16 matter of opportunity to learn with states or state 16 asyou understand that phrase?
17 educationa entities; isthat right? 17 MR. HERRON: Same objections.
18 A That's one of the issues that we deal with. 18 THE WITNESS: | have been involved, as |
19 Q And can you give me your best estimate, 19 indicated to you, in discussions with the Technica
20 please, asto the number of states with which you have 20 Advisory Committee about collecting such data. The
21 consulted on that subject matter, that is, opportunity 21 actual work is done by the department. Typically, the
22 tolearn? 22 consultants do not do the actual collection of
23 A Widll, asl indicated to you yesterday, | have 23 information.
24 consulted with maybe 20 to 25 states over the course of 24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
25 my career and many of them have high-stakestest or have | 25 Q Sitting here today, are you aware whether or
Page 298 Page 300
1 had at some point, so | would imaginethat | have 1 not there are any students since the implementation of
2 consulted with many of them where that issue was talked 2 theHigh School Exit Examin the CaliforniaK through 12
3 about. | don't have a specific recollection of each one 3 public school system who have not received the
4 to give you an exact number. 4 opportunity to learn?
5 Q Okay. And, Doctor, in California-- Strike 5 MR. HERRON: Same objection. Asked and
6 that. 6 answered two questions before.
7 Do you have an opinion as to whether or not 7 THE WITNESS: | do not currently have the data
8 there are any students presently in California public 8 to offer an opinion on that issue.
9 school system K through 12 who are not receiving 9 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
10 opportunity to learn, as you understand that phrase? 10 Q Haveyou ever made any effort to obtain that
11 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation, 11 datayourself?
12 overbroad, vague and ambiguous. 12 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Asked and
13 THE WITNESS: | don't have the data at this 13 answered three questions before.
14 point that | would need to offer such an opinion, so I'm 14 THE WITNESS: | have been involved in the
15 not prepared to do so. 15 discussions with the Technical Advisory Committee and
16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 16 the department about collecting such data.
17 Q Okay. Andif I change my question to be not at 17 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
18 the present time but at any time in the last five years, 18 Q Okay. But have you ever made any effort
19 isthere astudent or are there any studentsin the 19 yoursdf to review that data?
20 CdiforniaK through 12 public school system who have 20 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Asked and
21 not received opportunity to learn? Have you undertaken | 21 answered four questions before.
22 any inquiry or investigation to make that determination? | 22 THE WITNESS: | do not currently have the data
23 MR. HERRON: Same objections, except change 23 inwhich to discuss that issue.
24 "overbroad" to "vastly overbroad." 24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
25 Y ou may respond. 25 Q Haveyou ever had that data?
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1 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 1 Technical Advisory Committee meeting.
2 THE WITNESS: Not that | recall. 2 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
3 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 3 Q WEédll, are there any studentsin the United
4 Q Do you know for afact whether or not anybody 4  States, public school students, in the last five years,
5 hasthat data? 5 who you would conclude have not received an opportunity
6 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 6 tolearn?
7 THE WITNESS: | know that the department was 7 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation,
8 planning to collect opportunity-to-learn information as 8 vague and ambiguous, vastly overbroad, irrelevant to the
9 aresult of the discussions with the Technical Advisory 9 case
10 Committee. | have not personally seen that data. 10 THE WITNESS: Since | have only worked in 20 to
11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 11 25 states, | certainly would not have information about
12 Q Okay. Inthe states where you have consulted, 12 the nation asawhole.
13 haveyou ever undertaken any investigation to determine 13 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
14 whether or not there are any students who have not 14 Q Okay. Solet'sremove those states that you
15 received the opportunity to learn? So let's put aside 15 havenot --
16 Cadlifornia because you answered those questions for me, 16 Weéll, in the states where you have not worked,
17 which | appreciate. 17 haveyou ever undertaken any inquiry or investigation to
18 In other states in which you have consulted, 18 determine whether or not there are students who have not
19 have you ever undertaken any inquiry or investigation to 19 received the opportunity to learn?
20 determine whether or not there are any studentsin the K 20 MR. HERRON: Same objections.
21 through 12 public school system who have not receivedan | 21 THE WITNESS: In states | have not worked, |
22 opportunity to learn, as you understand that phrase? 22 haven't been involved in their assessment program in any
23 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation, 23 way.
24 vague and ambiguous, overbroad. 24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
25 THE WITNESS: Intermsof what | recall at this 25 Q Soyou have nat; isthat right?
Page 302 Page 304
1 time, | have had discussions with department peoplein 1 A Asl sad--
2 other states about collecting such data. 2 MR. HERRON: Asked and answered.
3 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 3 THE WITNESS: -- | have not beeninvolved in
4 Q Okay. My gquestionisjust alittle bit 4 any of the aspects of assessment programs in states
5 different. | appreciate that. 5 wherel have not worked.
6 But have you yourself ever undertaken any 6 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
7 inquiry or investigation to determine whether or not, in 7 Q And asaresearcher and as ascholar, have you
8 fact, there are any studentsin any of those states 8 undertaken any inquiry or investigation to determine
9 public school systemswho have not received the 9 whether or not in those states where you have not
10 opportunity to learn? 10 consulted whether or not there are any studentsin the
11 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Asked and 11 public school system who have not received an
12 answered. 12 opportunity to learn?
13 THE WITNESS: | have been part of ateam of 13 MR. HERRON: Same objection. Vague and
14 individuals who sought to collect opportunity-to-learn 14 ambiguous, callsfor speculation, vastly overbroad,
15 data 15 irrelevant.
16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 16 THE WITNESS: | can't think of anything at the
17 Q Okay. But have you had -- In every state where 17 moment.
18 you have consulted -- Strike that. 18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
19 Have you ever reviewed the data collected to 19 Q Thank you. Now, in the states where you have
20 make adetermination yourself whether or not thereare | 20 consulted, have you ever undertaken any specific inquiry
21 any students who have not received opportunity to 21 or investigation yourself to determine whether or not
22 learn? 22 there are students -- public school students who have
23 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 23 not received an opportunity to learn, as you understood
24 THE WITNESS: | have reviewed opportunity-to- | 24 that phrase?
25 learn data as part of that team effort typicaly in a 25 MR. HERRON: Same objections.
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1 THE WITNESS: As| aready indicated to you, | 1 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
2 have been part of ateam effort to do so. 2 THE WITNESS: Not that | recall.
3 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 3 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
4 Q Let mebereal clear about my question. What 4 Q Okay. Wereyou part of -- | think you told me,
5 you havetold me, if | understand you correctly, is that 5 but | don't want to mischaracterize your testimony so
6 you have been part of the team effort to go out and 6 correct meif | am wrong, please.
7 identify and then collect the data required to make the 7 Were you part of the decision making to replace
8 determination asto whether or not students have 8 the Stanford 9 with the CAT6?
9 received the opportunity to learn; is that right? 9 A Consultants give advice. They don't make
10 MR. HERRON: Her testimony iswhat it is. 10 decisions. Decisions are made by the elected or
11 Misconstrues prior testimony. 11 appointed representatives --
12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 12 Q Okay.
13 Q | don't want to misconstrueit. Tell me, 13 A -- that are charged with that.
14 plesse, if | am understanding you properly. 14 Q Wereyou -- Did you give advice with respect to
15 A | have been a consultant and member of a 15 thereplacement of the Stanford 9 with the CAT6?
16 Technical Advisory Committee that worked with 16 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
17 departments of education in other states to collect 17 Y ou may respond again.
18 opportunity-to-learn information. 18 THE WITNESS: | believe that there were
19 Q And have you ever reviewed information 19 discussionsin the Technical Advisory Committee meetings
20 collected to determine whether or not there are 20 about the testing program generally that may have
21 studentsin any of those states where you consulted to 21 included information about that. | did not participate
22 determine whether or not there are studentswho havenot | 22 inthe sameway that | did with the Stanford in terms of
23 received opportunity to learn, as you understand that 23 reviewing proposals.
24 phrase? 24 BY MR.RROSENBAUM:
25 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. 25 Q Did you concur with the advice to replace the
Page 306 Page 308
1 Cadlsfor speculation, vague and ambiguous, vastly 1 Stanford 9 with the CAT6?
2 overbroad, irrelevant. 2 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor
3 THE WITNESS: | have reviewed data that has 3 speculation, assumes facts not in evidence.
4 been collected by the states, typically in a Technical 4 THE WITNESS:. Y our question seems to assume
5 Advisory Committee meeting. 5 that somebody provided advice in that way. Our
6 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 6 discussions were not about recommending a specific
7 Q And have you ever reached a conclusion that 7 exam.
8 there are students who have not received an opportunity 8 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay.
9 tolearn-- 9 THE WITNESS: That was not our charge.
10 MR. HERRON: Same objection. 10 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. | appreciate that
11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 11 correction.
12 Q --inany of those states? 12 Q Your discussions, if | understand it correctly,
13 MR. HERRON: Sorry, Mark. Same objections. 13 were about replacing the Stanford 9 but not necessarily
14 THE WITNESS: | don't have specific 14 with aparticular instrument; am | correct?
15 recollection right now of the datathat | reviewed and 15 A | think that mischaracterizesit, too. You
16 would not be prepared to offer any conclusionswithout | 16 are assuming that the goal wasto replaceit. Replacing
17 reexamining that information. 17 isoneoption. Continuation was also an option, too.
18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 18 Q Okay. There were discussions whether or not --
19 Q Haveyou ever testified in court that there are 19 Strike that.
20 students who have not received opportunity to learn? 20 There were discussionsin the TAC meetings as
21 MR. HERRON: Vague and ambiguous. 21 towhether or not to replace or maintain the Stanford 9
22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 22 asthe norm reference test as part of the California
23 Q If you have testified in court, and | would 23 assessment system. Did | finally get it right?
24 asoincludeif you have submitted a report that has 24 A Aspart of abroader discussion about the
25 that as one of its conclusions. 25 entire assessment system and about duplication of tests
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and how to most efficiently use the testing resources.
Thoseissues, | believe, did come up.
Q Wasthere a consensus among the four members
of the TAC committee --
That iswhat you told me yesterday, right,
there are four members?
A There are four members on the committee, yes.
Q Okay. Wasthere a consensusin your judgment
among the four members as to whether the Stanford 9
should be replaced by a different norm reference test?
MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous,
vague asto time.
BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
Q Atany point.
A | don't believe that question was put to us
that directly. Therewas never really avoteonitin

O©COoO~NOUILAWNPE

Page 311

A At the meetings that were scheduled.

Q Canyou give me a date?

A Not off the top of my head right now.

Q Canyougive meayear?

A It has been within the last two or three
years.

Q Andwhat | am seeking, Doctor, isyour best
recollection as to views expressed as to the advantages
of maintaining the Stanford 9?

A | just don't recall the specifics of what was
said during those meetings.

Q You can't think of asingle viewpoint asto an
advantage of maintaining the Stanford 97

A That's not how | understood your question. You
wanted me to tell you, | thought, what advantages were
discussed during those Technical Advisory Committee

17 theway that you are characterizing it. 17 meetings. | don't have any specific recollection of
18 Q Wiéll, when | say "consensus,” | don't 18 what was actually discussed.
19 necessarily mean that people had to raise their hands 19 Q Inyour mind, Doctor, were there advantages
20 oneway or the other. | mean did you form ajudgment 20 to maintaining the Stanford 9 as the norm reference
21 that the four membersfelt that a different norm 21 test?
22 referencetest should be utilized as part of the state 22 A | don't recall what wasin my mind at that
23 assessment system? 23 time.
24 A Weweren't asked to make that judgment 24 Q Weéll, sitting here today, can you think of any
25 gpecificaly. Wetalked about advantages and 25 advantages in maintaining the Stanford 9?
Page 310 Page 312
1 disadvantages of different options that the department 1 A Yes
2 might take and the board might approve, but that issue 2 Q What would they be?
3 wasredly up to them in terms of reviewing the 3 A Continuity.
4 proposals that were submitted with respect to that which 4 Q What do you mean by that?
5 wedid not see. 5 A | think it meanswhat it says. Y ou continue
6 Q Didyou have aview asto whether or not there 6 the same things so you can continue your longitudinal
7 were any advantages to maintaining the Stanford 9 asthe 7 trend dataover time.
8 norm reference test used as part of the California 8 Q When you say "longitudinal trend data," what do
9 assessment system? 9 you mean by that?
10 A | don't recall any specific things that | might 10 A Every year the test is given and the State
11 havesaid, but | believe there were discussions both 11 collects statewide information and then you can look at
12 about advantages and disadvantages during the course of | 12 that across years and see what changes occur from year
13 those meetings. 13 toyear.
14 Q Tell me, please, to the best of your 14 Q Okay. What isthe advantage of that?
15 recollection what was the discussion as to the 15 A Totrack progress over time.
16 advantages of maintaining the Stanford 9 as a norm 16 Q And what isthe advantage of that?
17 referencetest? 17 A So the State knows how students are doing on
18 A | don't have an accurate recollection of what 18 the skillsthat are being measured.
19 each member said about that. | don't think | can 19 Q And what isthe advantage of that?
20 reconstruct that accurately for you at thistime. 20 MR. HERRON: If thereisone.
21 Q Okay. I'm not asking you to attach a 21 THE WITNESS: It goes back to the purpose of an
22 particular view to a particular member of the 22 accountability system, to establish standards and
23 committee. | just want to be clear. | am asking you 23 expectations and then assess to seeif they have been
24 from those discussions -- When did those discussions 24 redlized.
25 takeplace? 25 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
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1 Q Okay. Arethere any other advantages that you 1 A Asl indicated, | don't have any specific
2 can think of to maintaining the Stanford 9 in addition 2 recollection of those discussions.
3 tocontinuity? 3 Q Okay. Have you examined the results on the
4 A Cost advantages. 4 CdliforniaHigh School Exit Exam?
5 Q And explain what you mean by that, please. 5 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague.
6 A When anew test is adopted, there are alot of 6 MR. ROSENBAUM: Itisalittle vague.
7 costs associated with the changeover. 7 Q On how many occasions has the California High
8 Q What do those costs entail ? 8 School Exit Exam been administered, to the best of your
9 A Therearealot of costs. Thatisavery 9 knowledge?
10 broad question. Training out in the field for 10 A 1think at least three. But there are -- That
11 administration of the exam; different materials to work 11 would be -- | should say three years. | believe it
12 with; different procedures that people have to learn; 12 began when the current -- the seniors for next year were
13 initially more expense because everything is brand new 13 ninth graders. But it has been administered more than
14 intermsof materias. You can't reuse anything you 14 onceduring agiven year and I'm not sure exactly how
15 might already have. 15 many administrations that makes total.
16 There are costsin moving all of the databases 16 Q Okay. Have you examined the results of the
17 and the information from one contractor to another. 17 CdiforniaHigh School Exit Exam for any of the
18 There are management costsin reestablishing management | 18 administrations, that is-- Do you understand what |
19 plansand oversight and so on within the department. 19 mean? For any of the results that camein, whether it
20 The whole enterprise shifts and there are costs 20 wasonce ayear or more than once ayear, have you
21 associated with that at every level in which changes 21 looked at the results?
22 occur. 22 MR. HERRON: Y ou mean pass rates?
23 Q Do you know what the costs were in California 23 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes, | do mean that.
24 switching from Stanford 9 to CAT6? 24 THE WITNESS: | have seen that data, yes.
25 A Notinterms of adollar figure, no. 25 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay.
Page 314 Page 316
1 Q Do you have aballpark number? | mean, wasit 1 Q And have you seen that data for each of the
2 hundreds of thousands of dollars, tens of thousands of 2 timesit has been administered, to the best of your
3 dollars, millions of dollars? 3 knowledge?
4 A | would need more information to give you any 4 A | believe | have seen summaries of that
5 kind of estimate like that. 5 information.
6 Q Wasthat discussed in the committee, the cost 6 Q And do you know who prepared those summaries?
7 of changing the systems? 7 A Not to name an individual. By organization,
8 A Asl toldyou, | don't recall exactly what was 8 thereisdataprepared and collected by the contractor,
9 discussed in those meetings. 9 which becomes a part of the State's database and
10 Q Inaddition to continuity and cost, were there 10 information and then there is aso data that has been
11 other -- are there other advantages that you can think 11 compiled probably from that same database by the
12 of for maintaining the Stanford 9? 12 externa evaluator.
13 A Thatisall that comesto mind at the moment. 13 Q Allright. So the external evaluator we
14 Q Okay. Inyour mind, are there disadvantages to 14 established yesterday as HUMRRO; right?
15 maintaining the Stanford 9 as a norm reference test for 15 A Yes
16 Cdlifornia? 16 Q Soyou have looked at HUmMRRO compilation
17 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. | 17 synthesis of the results datg; is that right?
18 THE WITNESS: Nothing | can think of at the 18 A | havelooked at the HUMRRO reports.
19 moment. 19 Q Allright.
20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 20 And then when you say the contractor, that is
21 Q Didyou ever -- 21 AIR?
22 Do you have any recollection of any member of 22 A ltwas
23 the TAC committee discussing any disadvantagesto 23 Q Okay. Doyou know who it is how?
24  maintaining the Stanford 9 as a norm reference test for 24 A | believe ETSis now administering that
25 Cdlifornids assessment system? 25 program.
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1 Q Anddidyou look at AIR summaries of the 1 Wereyou disturbed at the results, about any of the
2 results data? 2 results?
3 A | have seen some of their data, yes. 3 A | haven't looked at that report since |
4 Q And what isthe most recent data that you have 4 initialy read that. If youwant meto talk about the
5 looked at, to the best of your recollection? 5 datathat isin there and the information, | would need
6 A | believe that would be the latest HUMRRO 6 tohavethereport in front of me.
7  report. 7 Q Okay. Wereyou involved in the --
8 Q Okay. And canyou give me adate on that? 8 Did you tender any advice as to whether or not
9 A Wéll, | think that came out maybe around the 9 the High School Exit Exam should switch publishers from
10 1st of May and it was shortly thereafter. 10 AIRto ancther entity?
11 Q Okay. 11 A Canyou ask me that again, please.
12 A But | don't really recall specificaly. 12 Q TheHigh School Exit Exam, the publisher is
13 Q Okay. But it waswithin the past severa 13 switching from AIR to ETS; is that right?
14  months? 14 A | believethat'strue.
15 A Yes. 15 Q Okay. At any of the TAC meetings which you
16 Q Anddid you form any conclusions upon examining | 16 attended, was the subject matter of whether or not to
17 that data? By "that data," | mean the last results that 17 maintain AIR or to switch to a new publisher, did that
18 we have been talking about. 18 comeup?
19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 19 A Not that | recall.
20 evidence, vague and ambiguous. 20 Q Okay. Outside of those meetings, have you
21 THE WITNESS: | read the report. 21 been consulted on the subject matter of switching the
22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 22 publisher for the High School Exit Exam from AIRto a
23 Q Didyou form any conclusions based on reading 23 different publisher?
24 that report? 24 A | wasnot involved in the proposal review for
25 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 25 that decision.
Page 318 Page 320
1 THE WITNESS: | don't understand what you are 1 Q That meansthat you were not consulted at all
2 asking meabout. Do you have a specific conclusionin 2 about the wisdom of switching from AIR to adifferent
3 mind? 3 publisher?
4 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 4 A Asl indicated, | did not review the proposa
5 Q Didyou form any conclusions as to whether -- 5 information about that on which the decision was based.
6 Did you form any conclusions regarding how 6 Q Nobody asked your opinion as to whether that
7 students were doing on the test? 7 should be done or not?
8 A | reviewed the data. That speaksfor itself. 8 MR. HERRON: If you recall.
9 Q Didyou draw any conclusions from reviewing 9 THE WITNESS: They did not ask meto review
10 that data, form any judgments? 10 that information.
11 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
12 Y ou may respond if you understand. 12 Q Do you have an opinion asto whether or not AIR
13 THE WITNESS: | don't know what you are asking | 13 should have been maintained as the publisher for the
14 me. If you can be specific about what you are 14 High School Exit Exam?
15 interested in, maybe | can answer your question. 15 A Without additional information, | would not be
16 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 16 prepared to give you an opinion on that matter.
17 Q Wereyou concerned about the resultsin any 17 Q What additional information would you need?
18 way? 18 MR. HERRON: Callsfor speculation. | object
19 A I'maconsultant to the program, so | am aways 19 onthat ground.
20 concerned and interested. 20 THE WITNESS: One piece of information that
21 Q What was the nature of your concern when you 21 would be useful isthe proposals that were submitted.
22 reviewed those results? 22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
23 A | read the report to find out what it said and 23 Q Didyou ever hear any dissatisfactions
24 what the authors had in mind. 24 expressed about AIR?
25 Q | appreciatethat. But my questiontoyouis: 25 A By whom? Inwhat context?
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1 Q | madeit deliberately broad. By anybody. 1 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
2 MR. HERRON: At any time? 2 Q Doaoctor, you take as much time as you need, but
3 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 3 Exhibit 1 to this deposition has been placed in front of
4 Q Atany point. 4 you.
5 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 5 My only question at thistimeis. Do you
6 Itisirrelevant. Vague and ambiguous. 6 recognize this document?
7 THE WITNESS: | can't recall anything specific 7 A Wadll, | don't know yet. | haveto go through
8 at the moment. 8 it
9 BY MR.RROSENBAUM: 9 Q Okay. Good luck.
10 Q Haveyou at any point reviewed the results of 10 (Discussion held off the record.)
11 the administration of the Stanford 9 as part of the 11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
12 Cdifornia assessment system? 12 Q Okay. Haveyou had achanceto look at the
13 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. | 13 document, Doctor?
14 THE WITNESS: If you are asking if | have ever 14 A Yes.
15 looked at any Stanford 9 datafor California, the answer | 15 Q Doesit appear to be a copy of your report
16 isyes. 16 except for the colors?
17 BY MR.RROSENBAUM: 17 A A copy of my report is appended to the end of
18 Q Okay. Andif I -- | just want to be clear on 18 the document.
19 my timeframe here. |1 am talking about since the 19 Q Okay. And thevita, that isyour vita?
20 beginning of the California assessment system. 20 A My vitaisasoincluded.
21 A That would be since 19987 21 Q Isyour vitacurrent? Arethereany additions
22 Q Yes. Haveyou looked at data results since 22 that should be madeto it? It says-- Let me ask you to
23 that date? 23 put thevitain front of you and | am looking in
24 A Yes. 24 particular at page 0021.
25 Q And have you formed any opinions regarding 25 MR. HERRON: Do you see what heis saying?
Page 322 Page 324
1 thoseresults? 1 THE WITNESS: Yes.
2 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous, 2 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
3 overbroad. 3 Q Do you havethat in front of you?
4 THE WITNESS: Again, without the datain front 4 A Yes
5 of us, | don't know what you are asking. 5 Q You can take as much time as you need to look
6 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 6 a your vita
7 Q Do you have your report with you? 7 In the upper right-hand corner it says,
8 A Yes 8 "Revised 10/01." Do you see that?
9 Q Do you have the declaration that Mr. Salvaty 9 A Yes.
10 submitted? 10 Q Isthere -- Should any additions be made to
11 A No. 11 make this more current and accurate, referring to the
12 MR. ROSENBAUM: All right. Let's go off the 12 vita?
13 record for a second. 13 A There are probably a couple additional
14 (Recess taken.) 14 publications and a couple additional presentations that
15 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let'smark as Exhibit 1 to 15 have occurred since this.
16 thisdeposition a multipage document. The front page 16 Q Do you have amore current vita that would
17 says"Expert Witness Declaration re Susan E. Phillips, 17 reflect those publications and presentations?
18 Ph.D." | am going to haveit marked and hand it to 18 A | donot.
19 you. | representitisnotincolor. Itisblack and 19 Q Canyou tell mewhat presentations you are
20 white. 20 referring to?
21 Y ou can take as much time as you want to |ook 21 A Off thetop of my head, | don't think | can
22 atthis, but | just want to ask you to identify the 22 giveyou acompletelist. | can mention a couple of
23 document. Itisyour document. Okay. 23 thingsthat | remember at this point. | gavea
24 (Phillips Exhibit 1 was marked for 24 presentation at the Large Scale Assessment Conferencein
25 identification by the court reporter.) 25 San Antonio, Texas in June of thisyear.
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1 Q What was the subject matter? 1 A Because one of the factorsin admissions at the
2 A It was an update on cases that had occurred 2 undergraduate level wasthe SAT Test.
3 related to assessment. 3 Q Okay. Any other presentations that you recall?
4 Q Which cases? 4 A Nothing | can recal at the moment.
5 A | had alist of different thingsthat | talked 5 Q Haveyou been consulted by Californiaasto
6 about and | don't remember all of that -- 6 whether or not the university system should use the
7 Q I'mnotinterested -- 7 SATS?
8 A -- a thismoment. 8 A No.
9 Q I'msorry, Doctor. | cut you off. 1'm not 9 Q Haveyou by any state been consulted on that
10 interested -- | mean, | am interested, but I'm not 10 subject matter?
11 focusing on the accommodations cases. Rather, were 11 A Not that | can recall.
12 there casesthat did not deal with accommodations that 12 Q Okay. And then you aso told me that there
13 you weretalking about? 13 were some papers that are not included in this vita,
14 A Yes. 14 publications?
15 Q Do you remember what cases those were? 15 A | wasthinking that there might have been, but
16 A | don't remember al of it. One of them was 16 that may have just been an update to what is already
17 the casethat had just come down from the Supreme Court | 17 listed in press here.
18 out of Michigan, the admissions case. 18 Q Okay. If there are any additions, | would just
19 Q Any other cases? 19 appreciate learning about them, your letting Mr. Herron
20 A | just don't recall what they are at this 20 know. | would appreciate that.
21 point. 21 Doctor, in 1975 to '76, you were a mathematics
22 Q Okay. What did you say about the Michigan 22 instructor at Mt. Mercy Collegein Cedar Rapids?
23 case? 23 A Yes.
24 MR. HERRON: Objection. Relevance. 24 Q What mathematics did you teach? Geometry?
25 THE WITNESS: | don't -- 25 Calculus? Algebra?
Page 326 Page 328
1 MR. HERRON: Y ou may respond. 1 A | taught more than one course and | -- Really,
2 THE WITNESS: | don't recall al the specifics 2 that hasbeen along time ago. | don't recall alot of
3 ofit. Itwasabrand new case and | had just gotten 3 specificsabout it. | think one of them was a college
4 thedecision and talked basically about what the facts 4 agebracourse.
5 inthe case were and what the holding was, what the 5 Q Didyou use atextbook?
6 court had done. 6 A Probably. | have no specific recollection of
7 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 7 what that was.
8 Q Didyou express aview as to whether or not you 8 Q Okay. Why do you say "probably"?
9 agreed or disagreed with the majority opinion? 9 MR. HERRON: It's 28 years ago.
10 MR. HERRON: Objection. Relevance. 10 I'm sorry. Go ahead.
11 THE WITNESS: | don't recall doing that. 11 THE WITNESS: Most classes that | have taught
12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 12 in mathematics or statistics, | have used a textbook.
13 Q Sothebest of your recollection is all that 13 Sol just expect that | probably would have.
14 yousaid was: Thiswasthe decision of thecourtinthe | 14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
15 caseand hereiswhat the majority said? 15 Q Do you know a statistics expert named Kelly?
16 A That was the essence of it. 16 Haveyou ever heard of a statistics expert named Kelly?
17 Q Andwhy did you talk about that case -- Strike 17 A Canyou give me that name again.
18 that. 18 Q Hislast nameisKelly.
19 The subject matter of your talk was 19 MR. HERRON: Kelly?
20 assessments; isthat right? 20 THE WITNESS: That name doesn't ring a bell at
21 A It was an update on legal issues. 21 the moment.
22 Q Lega issuesrelating to assessments? 22 MR. ROSENBAUM: Off the record.
23 A Yes 23 (Discussion held off the record.)
24 Q Why did you include the Michigan case as part 24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
25 of that presentation? 25 Q Letmeask you if you could take alook at --
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1 It doesn't have apage number. It isthe second pagein 1 MR. ROSENBAUM: We are back on the record.

2 from the beginning of Exhibit 1. Thetitleis"l, Paul 2 Q Didyou have any discussions with Mr. Herron

3 B. Sdvaty, declare asfollows:" 3 over the break about the deposition just now?

4 A Yes. 4 A He made phone calls and | wandered around.

5 Q Canyou look at that page and the following 5 Q Okay. Soyou didn't discuss the deposition?

6 page. 6 A Not that | recall.

7 MR. HERRON: Do you want her to read it? 7 MR. HERRON: The good lawyer that | am.

8 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 8 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:

9 Q Haveyou ever seen that before? 9 Q One of the purposes of an assessment test isto
10 A No. 10 identify astudent's academic strengths and weaknesses,
11 Q Okay. Do you know why at the bottom of the 11 isthat right?

12 pageit says"EXPERT WITNESSDECLARATION REERICA. | 12 A Can you be more specific about what test you
13 HANUSHEK"? 13 arereferring to?
14 A No. 14 Q 1 will restate the question. Isit your view,
15 Q Hereiswhat | want to know, Doctor: Looking 15 Doctor, that one of the purposes of an assessment test
16 at the second page, you should feel free to read as much 16 istoidentify astudent's academic strengths and
17 asyouwant, it says, "Pursuant” -- | am looking at page 17  witnesses?
18 2 of the declaration by Mr. Salvaty, line 2: 18 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguousin
19 "Pursuant to Section 2034(f)(2)(B) 19 theuse of the term "assessment test."
20 of the California Code of Civil Procedure, 20 THE WITNESS: In order to determine the
21 thefollowing is abrief narrative 21 purpose of atest, you need to know what the test is and
22 statement of the general substance of the 22 who the audience is and how it was written. That can be
23 testimony that Dr. Phillipsis expected to 23 apurpose of atest. Itisn't aways the purpose of
24 giveat trial." 24  every test.
25 Do you see that sentence? 25 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
Page 330 Page 332

1 A Yes 1 Q What are some other purposes?

2 Q Okay. My questionis: Do you expect to 2 A Purposes of what?

3 testify to any subject matter that is not included in 3 Q Attest. If | understood your last answer, you

4 your report? 4 saidit could be the purpose of atest, it doesn't have

5 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor 5 tobe; isthat correct?

6 speculation. 6 A Yes.

7 THE WITNESS: | don't know at this point. 7 Q Okay. Tell me other purposes.

8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 8 MR. HERRON: Of assessment tests?

9 Q Okay. | just want to be clear that -- 9 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.

10 Have you had discussions with counsel about the 10 THE WITNESS: Of any assessment test?

11 subject matter -- the substance of your testimony to be 11 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.

12 givenattria? 12 THE WITNESS: That isavery, very broad

13 A | understood that what was in the expert 13 area. Therearelotsof different tests for lots of

14 witness report would beincluded, but | don't think we 14 different purposes.

15 have had any specific discussions about that at this 15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

16 point. 16 Q Okay. Tell methose other purposes.

17 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. | just want to statefor | 17 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor anarrative,
18 therecord that | am going to object to any testimony 18 vague and ambiguous.

19 presented at trial that would be outside the report 19 Y ou may respond to the extent you are able.

20 itsalf. 20 THE WITNESS: | can't give you a complete

21 Okay. 21 catalog of what al of those might be. | could give you
22 MR. HERRON: We have been going for about an 22 another example if you want one.

23 hour if thisisagood time to break. 23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

24 MR. ROSENBAUM: Sure. 24 Q Wéll, you can start there, sure.

25 (Recess taken.) 25 A One could give atyping test to find out how
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1 fast asecretary can type. 1 Statein evaluating the effectiveness of schoolswithin

2 Q What do you regard as the purpose of 2 the State.

3 Cdlifornias statewide assessment test? 3 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:

4 A | think that's -- 4 Q Okay. But that is not my question.

5 MR. HERRON: Go ahead. 5 My questionis: Besides the purposes that you

6 THE WITNESS: | think | made a statement to 6 read to metwo questions ago, do you regard the STAR

7 that effect in my report. 7 assessment system as having any other purposes?

8 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. 8 MR. HERRON: Same objection.

9 THE WITNESS: If you can direct me to what 9 Y ou may respond.

10 pageyou are looking at, maybeit is on that page. 10 THE WITNESS: Wheat | just said in my previous
11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 11 answer suggested different individuals who used the test
12 Q | amnot looking at any particular page with 12 for different purposes. It isused for avariety of
13 respect to that question. 13 purposes.
14 A Oh. 14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
15 MR. HERRON: I'msorry. Could | have the 15 Q What | am trying to find out, Doctor, iswhat
16 question reread. 16 that variety of purposesis. And | want to know your
17 (Record read as follows: 17 judgment based on your examination of al the materials
18 "Question: What do you regard as the 18 you looked at for purposes of your reporting in your
19 purpose of California's statewide 19 consultation what you regard to be the full set of
20 assessment test?") 20 purposes of the STAR assessment system.
21 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. | 21 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered two
22 THE WITNESS: To the extent that you are 22 questions ago.
23 referring to the STAR assessment program and the STAR | 23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
24 test, on page 4 there is a statement from the 24 Q Arethere other purposes other than the two
25 legidature with respect to the intent when they enacted 25 that you have read me, specific purposes?
Page 334 Page 336

1 that statute and they describe its primary purpose as 1 A Asl indicated in my previous answer, | believe

2 "assisting pupils, their parents, 2 that district personnel are also users of this

3 and teachers to identify individual 3 information. Anditispart of the evaluation that they

4 academic strengths and weaknesses, in 4 makeinther local schools and teachersin their

5 order to improve teaching and learning. 5 classrooms with respect to the knowledge and skills of

6 It isfurther the intent of the 6 the studentsthat they areinstructing.

7 Legislature ... to determing” -- 7 Q Any other purposes?

8 MR. HERRON: Slow down just a bit. 8 A Thedatais also communicated to the public,

9 THE WITNESS: -- "to determine the 9 made available on the State web site so that the public
10 effectiveness of school districts and 10 can aso see how schools and districts are doing within
11 schools, as measured by the extent to 11 the state.

12 which pupils demonstrate knowledge of 12 Q Any other purposes?

13 the fundamental academic skills, as well 13 A That'sall | canthink of at the moment.

14 asthe ability to apply those skills." 14 Q And do you regard the purpose of assisting

15 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 15 pupils, their parents and teachers to identify

16 Q Anddo you believe that there are any other 16 individual academic strengths and weaknesses in order
17 purposesto the STAR assessment system other thanthose | 17 to improve teaching and learning, do you regard that
18 that you have just read to me? 18 asanimportant purpose for a statewide assessment
19 MR. HERRON: Vague and ambiguous, use of the 19 system?

20 terms"purposes." 20 A | take as agiven what the legidlature of the

21 THE WITNESS: The STAR test results have a 21 state decides what they want to do with the test. That
22 variety of audiences. Asthe legislature hasindicated, 22 isapolicy question and it is up to them to determine
23 oneof the audiencesis the parents of the students who 23 that.

24 takethe test; another audience is the school district 24 Q Okay. Do you persondly have aview asto

25 personnel who instruct that student; another is the 25 whether or not that is an important purpose?
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1 A Whether or not that's the case depends on the 1 important.
2 intent of the user of thetest. Itisup to the user to 2 Q Now, Doctor, just so we are talking the same
3 define what purpose they want to serve and then my job 3 language here -- | think we did this yesterday, but bear
4 asaconsultant isto help them figure out how best to 4 with me--if | talk about the STAR system or the STAR
5 dothat. 5 program or the STAR assessment test, what do you
6 Q But you have no independent view as to whether 6 understand that to mean?
7 or not that is an important purpose or not, if | 7 A The tests that were mandated in the assessment
8 understand you correctly. 8 act that we were just talking abouit.
9 MR. HERRON: Y ou mean in the context of the 9 Q Andlet'sjust identify them. | know you have
10 Cdiforniatest? 10 donethat, but bear with me again.
11 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes. 11 A You are asking me for the name of the test?
12 MR. HERRON: | think he just wants your 12 Q Yes
13 persond view if you have one? 13 A It wasthe Stanford 9 for the first five
14 THE WITNESS: It is clearly important because 14 years. Itisnow the CAT6.
15 itiscontained in the statute. 15 Q Okay.
16 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 16 A Waéll, and let me also state it's the standards
17 Q Okay. Isitimportant for any other reason to 17 test aswell that go with that, that is, both the norm
18 you? 18 reference and the standards test.
19 MR. HERRON: I'm sorry. | object as vague and 19 Q | know you have thisin your report, but for a
20 ambiguous. 20 predicate: Were the standards tests administered in
21 THE WITNESS: | don't understand what youare | 21 thefirst year when the Stanford 9 was administered as
22 asking me. 22 part of the STAR program?
23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 23 A I'm not sure whether they did the augmented
24 Q When you used the word "important” inyour last | 24 testin thefirst or the second year. There might have
25 answer, what did you mean by that? 25 Dbeen one year of Stanford administration before, but |
Page 338 Page 340
1 A | meant that the statute states what the 1 don't remember for sure which year. It was one of those
2 purpose of thetest is and one should follow the 2 twoyears, '98 or '99.
3 dtatute. 3 Q Now, do you know, Doctor, whether or not in
4 Q Okay. Asan expertin the area of 4 each year during which the STAR assessment test has been
5 psychometrics, do you regard the purpose articulated 5 administered, whether teachers routinely receive the
6 here-- "assisting pupils, their parents and teachers to 6 results of their classroom, the students in their
7 identify individual academic strengths and weaknessesin | 7 classroom?
8 order to improve teaching and learning" -- do you regard 8 A | know there are reports that go to the
9 that as an important purpose of a statewide assessment 9 didtricts. | think those are broken down by grade but
10 program for reasons other than its appearancein 10 not by classroom. But | think that if a district wanted
11 legidation? 11 to get the information by classroom, they could order
12 A | truly don't understand your question because 12 those reports from the publisher. The publisher does
13 itisuptothe user of the test to state what their 13 have standard classroom reports that it uses with the
14 purposeisand I'm not auser of thetest in that sense. 14 norm referenced assessment instruments.
15 Soitisnot my prerogative to tell any user what their 15 Q Areyou certain of what you just told me? The
16 purpose ought to be unless the test that they are using 16 reason | am asking that is you began by saying "
17 isnot suited for the particular purpose. | might say 17 think." And | just want to know the extent to which you
18 that. 18 are certain of that answer.
19 Now, if you are asking me as an individua, as 19 A I'm certain that the schools get results. The
20 aparent, for example, | would like to see my student's 20 data--
21 scoresand | would want to see any subtest information 21 Q Let'sbreak that down. Theresults-- You are
22 thatisaso available so that | could see how my child 22 certain that the schools get results. They get
23 wasdoing on a particular test. 23 schoolwide results; isthat right?
24 Q Why isthat important to you as a parent? 24 MR. HERRON: Objection. Misconstrues prior
25 A Because the education of my child is 25 testimony.
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1 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 1 amjust trying to understand what you mean by that.
2 Q | don't want to misconstrue your testimony. Do 2 A | believe they get like a CD or some kind of
3 the schools get schoolwide results on the STAR 3 electronic format of the -- of al of the scores for al
4 assessment system? 4 of the pupilsin their school for al the tests that
5 A Yes 5 they took, al the subtests they took. They do also get
6 Q Dothey get class -- 6 individua student reportsthat are to go hometo
7 Do you know for certain whether schools get 7 parents.
8 classroom results? 8 Q Do you know for certain that the schools get
9 MR. HERRON: Objection. Misconstrues prior 9 theCD that you are talking about?
10 testimony. Asked and answered. 10 MR. HERRON: Well --
11 THE WITNESS: It'smy understanding that itis | 11 THE WITNESS: It was my understanding that
12 done by grade as you seeit on the web site but not by 12 they did, that that data was available to them.
13 classroom. 13 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 14 Q Andthe CD that -- The school receives or the
15 Q Okay. Soitisyour understanding that a 15 district receives? Who receivesit, the school or the
16 school getsthe results of by second grade and by third | 16 district?
17 grade; isthat correct? 17 A | don'tknow ifitis--
18 A Yes 18 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
19 Q What about a high school, how does a high 19 THE WITNESS: -- sent to the district or the
20 school get the results? 20 school. | don't know how that distribution occurs.
21 MR. HERRON: If you know. 21 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 22 Q Do you know if it is broken down by classroom?
23 Q If you know. 23 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
24 Infact, | will make -- | will ask you a 24 THE WITNESS: It was my understanding that it
25 foundational question. 25 was not specifically analyzed that way at the state
Page 342 Page 344
1 Do you know how high schools get the results? 1 level.
2 MR. HERRON: Of the tests. 2 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
3 THE WITNESS: Itismy understanding that itis 3 Q Okay. Wasit broken down aphabetically? Do
4 again like the web site, by grade and subject. 4 you know how it was broken down?
5 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 5 A | don't know what the format is of that data.
6 Q By grade-- 6 Q Do you know -- And then you --
7 A By grade and subtest, if you are talking about 7 Do you know if any school in the State of
8 thenorm reference test. 8 Cadiforniasincethe STAR assessment system began has
9 Q Okay. And my understanding of your answer is 9 ever broken down results by classroom?
10 that you believe that districts can order classroom 10 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation,
11 data; isthat right? 11 vague and ambiguous, overbroad, largely irrelevant.
12 A | believethey can do two things, actualy, if 12 Y ou may nonetheless respond to his question.
13 they want classroom information. They can do an 13 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any at this
14 analysis of their own data or they can order areport 14 time.
15 from the publisher. 15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
16 Q Okay. And when you say, "do an analysis of 16 Q Haveyou ever made any inquiry to find out?
17 their own data," what do you mean by that? 17 MR. HERRON: I'm sorry?
18 A Itismy understanding that they are able to 18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
19 get thedatain electronic format and that they could 19 Q Haveyou ever made any inquiry to find out?
20 then use computer programsto compilethe datainthat | 20 MR. HERRON: Same objections.
21 format if they wished. 21 THE WITNESS: | have not asked any specific
22 Q Whenyou say, "they get it in electronic 22 schoolswhat they have done.
23 format," tell me what you mean by that. Each student's | 23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
24 individual score, each classroom's score, each grade's 24 Q Did the subject matter of obtaining data by
25 score. It doesn't have to be one of those answers. | 25 classroom, did that or anything related to that in your
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1 judgment ever come up at a TAC mesting, that subject 1 Q And do you know whether or not any teacher or
2 matter? 2 school or district has ever sought data broken down by
3 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague. 3 classroom from a publisher --
4 THE WITNESS: | don't recall any discussions 4 MR. HERRON: Objection.
5 likethat. 5 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
6 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 6 Q I'msorry -- since the beginning of the STAR
7 Q Okay. To your knowledge, are teachers notified 7 assessment system in California?
8 that there are ways that they can obtain classroom data 8 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor
9 astotheresults on the STAR assessment system at any 9 speculation. | just want to note that isimpossible to
10 point in the administration of the system? 10 answer. Thereare 1100 school districts, 8,000 schools,
11 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation, | 11 237,000 classrooms and 6.2 million students and you are
12 vague and ambiguous. 12 asking her to testify about al of thisin asingle
13 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 13 question.
14 Q | don't want you to speculate. If you don't 14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
15 know, just tell me and | will move on. 15 Q | am asking you whether or not you know if any
16 A Any information that teachers received would 16 of those school districts or classrooms that Mr. Herron
17 come from the school or the district, and | don't know 17 referenced, to your knowledge, has anyone ever from any
18 what they tell them. 18 of those units ever requested that datafrom a
19 Q Okay. Haveyou ever made any inquiry to find 19 publisher.
20 out what, if anything, teachers are told in terms of 20 Do you know?
21 obtaining data? 21 MR. HERRON: It absolutely calls for
22 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Not relevant. 22 speculation.
23 THE WITNESS: | don't recall having ever talked | 23 Y ou may respond if you can possibly answer that
24 to school people about that issue. 24 type of aquestion.
25 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 25 THE WITNESS: The only thing | can say about
Page 346 Page 348
1 Q Hasthis subject matter ever comeup at aTAC 1 thatisthatitismy understanding that some schools or
2 meeting, to the best of your recollection? 2 districts have ordered supplementary reports from the
3 A | don't recall adiscussion like that. 3 publishers. | don't know which onesthey are.
4 Q Now, you also told me that you believe that 4 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
5 classroom data, data broken down by classroom, can be 5 Q Okay. Do you know how many schools have done
6 obtained from the publisher; isthat right? 6 that?
7 A Yes. The publisher produces classroom level 7 MR. HERRON: Same objections.
8 reports as part of the scoring service available with 8 THE WITNESS: No.
9 the norm reference test. 9 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
10 Q Andisthat true for both the publisher of the 10 Q Do you know if the supplementary reports
11 Stanford 9 and the CAT6? 11 that have been ordered have been broken down by
12 A Yes 12 classroom?
13 Q And does the data include the augmentation 13 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Irrelevant.
14 portions of the exam? 14 THE WITNESS: Asl indicated, | don't know
15 A I'mtalking at this point only about the NRT. 15 which reports were ordered.
16 | don't know about the standards portion of it. That 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 would not be part of the publisher's scoring -- standard 17 Q Haveyou ever made an inquiry to find out?
18 scoring package, but there may be options that they 18 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Irrelevant.
19 might offer in a particular state. 19 THE WITNESS: | have not seen that data.
20 Q Doyou know if those options are -- if there 20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
21 areany options offered in California? 21 Q Okay. Did that subject matter ever come up at
22 A | don't know. 22 aTAC meseting, to the best of your recollection?
23 Q Haveyou ever made any inquiry to find out? 23 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Irrelevant.
24 A | don't think | have ever specifically asked a 24 THE WITNESS: There may have been some
25 publisher that question. 25 discussion about reporting and what reports were
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1 available. | don't remember any of the specifics of 1 MR. HERRON: For this school year?
2 that. 2 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.
3 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 3 THE WITNESS: My understanding is that the
4 Q Haveyou ever examined theindividual reporting 4 examsthat have been incorporated into the APl are
5 sheet that a student obtains as part of the STAR 5 stand-alone exams.
6 assessment system? Do you know what | am talking about? 6 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
7 The student getsin the mail, the family getsin the 7 Q And are you sure of that?
8 mail asheet that says, "Here are the results on the 8 MR. HERRON: According to her testimony.
9 assessment system.” 9 THE WITNESS: That's my understanding.
10 A | have seen sample reports. 10 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
11 Q Okay. Dothey -- 11 Q And do you know whether or not --
12 Does that sheet at any point since the 12 When you say "stand-alone exams," you mean
13 beginning of the administration of the STAR system break 13 independent of the norm reference part; is that
14 down results by questions answered correctly or 14 right?
15 incorrectly as part of the augmentation questions as 15 A Completely separate exams, yes.
16 opposed to the norm reference questions? 16 Q Allright. Andisthe reporting --
17 A Well, | actually have asample in my report, so 17 Do you know if the reporting reflects thisis
18 the best way might be to look at that document. 18 what you did on the stand-al one standards part and this
19 Q Okay. 19 iswhat you did on the Stanford 9 part?
20 MR. HERRON: Can | testify to this? 20 A You have an examplein front of you as shown in
21 MR. ROSENBAUM: | am doing you on Thursday. 21 Table12-A.
22 THE WITNESS: Chart 12-A -- 22 Q I'msorry. | amtrying to find out if you know
23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 23 if asimilar performance report formis used for the
24 Q Isitincolor? 24  elementary grades.
25 A -- hasasample performance report for agrade 25 A Yes.
Page 350 Page 352
1 9student. And it continues on the back side of that 1 Q Okay. And do you know why thereisa
2 page 2 differencein thereporting, that is that the student
3 Q Okay. Now, looking at 12-A and any other basis 3 gets-- the student and her family receives the results
4 that you have, do the results that are reported here 4 onthe Stanford norm reference part separate from the
5 break down whether or not a student is getting an answer 5 standardstest part? Is my question clear to you?
6 correct or incorrect on a norm reference part of the 6 A No.
7 exam as opposed to the augmentation part of the exam? 7 MR. HERRON: No.
8 Do you understand my question? 8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
9 A Yes, | believe o, at least with respect to 9 Q | don'tthink itiseither. What you said to
10 this particular report which isfor agrade 9 student. 10 meis"Look, hereis the performance report and it
11 Let mefirst say the augmentation wasin the 11 breaks down how the student performed on the standards
12 early years of the program. The standards tests are now 12 test and it breaks down how the student performed on the
13 stand-alone exams and that iswhat is being reported 13 norm reference part”; correct?
14 here. And on thefront page for the California 14 A Yes
15 standardstests, you have Englishlanguage arts results 15 Q Why do they doit that way? Why isit done
16 and this particular sample student took geometry as the 16 that way, if you know?
17 mathematicstest. So that is recorded. 17 A Asopposed to what other way would you do it?
18 And then if you flip over to the back side, you 18 Q Asopposed to not desegregating the results at
19 havethe history, social science and the science test, 19 all between how you do on the --
20 which was an earth sciencetest. And then below that at 20 Why don't you just get a number? Hereisthe
21 thevery bottom, you have the Stanford 9 results for the 21 total number of questionsyou got correct. Why break it
22 student, which isthe NRT portion. 22  down between the norm reference part and the standards
23 Q Allright. Now, are there still augmentation 23 part?
24  questions as part of the K through -- part of the 24 A Wdll, first of all, they are separate tests.
25 elementary school questions? 25 The norm reference test is given under the standardized
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1 norm reference conditions under which the norms were 1 Prior tothat time, they looked at the standards for the
2 originaly obtained. The analysisof thetestis 2 statesthat had them or had a statewide curriculum of
3 separate, particularly with respect to the API but also 3 sometype and they distilled that into a common set of
4 with respect to the standard setting portion in which 4 content that is then reflective of what the majority of
5 standard categories have been determined for the 5 schools are doing in the country.
6 standards-based test. The norm reference tests use the 6 Q Allright. If you just answered it, then bear
7 percentile ranks or the norms that come with the 7 with me. But do you know -- can you attach a percentage
8 instrument. 8 to"majority"?
9 So you are reporting different kinds of 9 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
10 information. They are aso broken down differently 10 THE WITNESS: | can't attach an exact
11 subtestwise, so reporting the subtest information again 11 percentage, but | can say that the way that this
12 followsthe NRT Test in that portion and the standards 12 didtillation process occurs, | would say it isgoing to
13 test the way the tests were devel oped. 13 beahigh percentage. Most schools are teaching the
14 Q Okay. Great. Thank you. 14 thingsthat are on thesetests. If itisvery unique,
15 Let me ask you, Doctor, if you could turn, 15 itisnotincluded.
16 pleaseto, page 5 of your report which is Exhibit 1 to 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 this deposition. 17 Q Doyou know if it is more than 66 percent,
18 And for this question and for all of my 18 two-thirds?
19 questions, Doctor, if | am referring to a part of your 19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
20 report, you should feel free at any point to look at not 20 THE WITNESS: | don't know an exact number.
21 only the sentence or sentences that | am directing you 21 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
22 to, but whatever you need to put it in the context that 22 Q Okay. Do you know for the Stanford Test the
23 you are comfortable with. 23 percent of school districtsin Californiathat are
24 Do you understand that? 24 teaching the knowledge and skills as part of their grade
25 A Yes. 25 leve curricula?
Page 354 Page 356
1 MR. HERRON: Thank you. 1 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
2 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 2 THE WITNESS: | don't know an exact percentage,
3 Q Now, at the bottom of page 5 in the second 3 but | can say because the Cdifornia standards tend to
4 column, it says: 4 bemorerigorous and have more difficult content, they
5 "These subtests are based on knowledge 5 should be teaching most of what isin the Stanford Test
6 and skills commonly included in the 6 because that includes prerequisite and enabling skills
7 gradelevel curriculaof amgjority of 7 for the content that they are supposed to be teaching as
8 school districtsin the United States.” 8 part of the standards.
9 Do you see that? 9 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
10 A Yes 10 Q Okay. But do you know --
11 Q Andthat isin aparagraph in which you are 11 Do you know the percent of school districtsin
12 talking about the Stanford Test. 12 Cdiforniathat are teaching both knowledge and skills?
13 Do you see that? 13 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered the
14 A Yes 14  question before.
15 Q When you say, "majority of school districtsin 15 THE WITNESS: | don't have an exact number.
16 the United States," do you know what percent of school | 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 districtsin the United States? 17 Q Okay. Doyou --
18 A Onewouldn't redly expressit as a percent. 18 If | were to ask you, Doctor, do you know the
19 It'saconsensus process in which the publisher looksat | 19 percent of schoolsin Californiathat are teaching the
20 the curricular materials that are commonly used across | 20 knowledge and skillsthat are referred to in this
21 thecountry in agiven subject at agiven grade. They 21 sentence, do you know the number or the percent of
22 look at district scope and sequence charts for what is 22 schoolsin California?
23 being taught in different grades and subjects. 23 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
24 And now that all states are required to have 24 THE WITNESS: Same answer that | already gave.
25 statewide standards, they are also looking at that. 25 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
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1 Q Okay. Thank you. 1 language arts are grouped together in 16 strands; is
2 Explain to me -- Doctor, if you would walk me 2 thatright?
3 through Table 1, | would appreciate that. 3 A Yes.
4 MR. HERRON: Table1? 4 Q Who did you get that data from, the 16 strands
5 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes. 5 and the 46 standards?
6 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 6 A Information provided by the test publisher.
7 Q Do you havethat in front of you? 7 Q Okay. Have you done any verification of the
8 A Yes 8 dataindependently?
9 Q And did you construct this table? 9 A | didn't independently count those, no.
10 A Yes. 10 Q Do you know if anybody has besides the
11 Q And help me understand some vocabulary here. 11 publisher?
12 Theword "strands,” | see that beneath "strands’ 12 A | would imagine that the department has counts
13 standardsisin parenthesis. But what isastrand as 13 of those things.
14 youuseitinthistable, Table 1 of your report? 14 Q Do you know for afact whether or not the
15 A It refersto the organization of the standards 15 department has verified the publisher's determinations?
16 inwhich they are collected in groups and the group is 16 A | would expect them to have done that, but |
17 designated as strand. 17 don't have personal knowledge that it was done.
18 Q Okay. Canyou give me an example of that? 18 Q Allright. Now, the next box refersto the
19 MR. HERRON: Of what a strand might be? 19 Stanford Test; isthat right?
20 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes. 20 A Yes.
21 Q Wouldit be-- | don't know. | mean, isit 21 Q Okay. And the Stanford -- for grade 2 still,
22 like-- Isgeometry a strand or is a certain way of 22 69 percent of the strands are assessed. That's what it
23 thinking astrand? Is American history between 1860 and | 23 says?
24 1900 astrand? What isa strand? 24 A Yes
25 A What you are suggesting is probably alittle 25 Q Doesthat mean 69 percent of the 16 strands?
Page 358 Page 360
1 bittooglobal. | don't know without looking at the 1 A Yes.
2 gpecific California standards exactly what an example 2 Q Okay. So-- again, | am trying to figure this
3 would be. But | can give you sort of anotion. On the 3 out -- there are 46 standards that deal with language
4 geometry test it might be something like congruent 4 artsfor grade 2 within the State's contents standards;
5 triangles. 5 isthat right?
6 Q Okay. 6 A There are 46 standards that are assessed on the
7 A And then under that, would be all the standards 7 language artstest.
8 of the different things you are supposed to know andbe | 8 Q 46 standards. How do you -- Does that mean by
9 ableto do about congruent triangles. 9 adding up the Stanford Test -- I'm sorry. The standards
10 Q Okay. 10 are-- How do you get that number? There are 46
11 A But | don't know that that is exactly one of 11 standardsthat are assessed as part of the State's
12 them. | just made that up as an example of the level of 12 assessment system for grade 2 in the area of language
13 detail that it might be. 13 arts; isthat what you are telling me?
14 Q Allright. Now, I just want you to be patient 14 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
15 with me because | have trouble understanding this. 15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
16 It says here -- Let's take the first row across 16 Q Bear with me. It probably was. I'm just
17 your Table 1. For grade 2, and it says "Number of 17 trying tofigureit out.
18 strands 16," and then "46" isin parentheses. 18 A There are 46 standards that are assessed.
19 Do you see that? 19 Q Okay. Andthat isby looking at both the
20 A Yes 20 Stanford Test and the augmentation part, the standards
21 Q Okay. Sothat meansfor grade 2 in language 21 part?
22 artsthetest tests 16 strands; is that right? 22 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague.
23 A What it meansisthat there are 46 standards 23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
24 and they are grouped together in 16 strands. 24 Q How do you get that number, 46?
25 Q Okay. 46 of the states contents standards for 25 A 46 would be the number of standards eligible
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1 for assessment on the statewide standards test. 1 how it was going to group strands, how many standards

2 Q That'swhat | -- Okay. And 49, looking down 2 would beinastrand?

3 for grade 3, would be the number of standardsin the 3 A | believethat was done by the State. This

4 areaof language arts that would be eligible for 4 followsthe State's standards document in which the

5 testing? 5 standards are grouped into strands.

6 A Ingrade 3. 6 Q Doesthe State have information asto the

7 Q Okay. Now -- 7 percent of standards that were assessed?

8 So the Stanford Test you have told me tests 69 8 A Yes, | believe so.

9 percent of the strands; right? 9 Q And did you make any attempt to obtain that?
10 A Yes. 10 A Yes
11 Q Do we know what percent of the standards are 11 Q Andyouweretold it was confidential ?

12 tested? 12 A | wastold the publisher had marked it
13 A That information is knowable, but | don't have 13 confidential and it could not be released --
14 it 14 Q All right.
15 Q Okay. And how would one cometo know that? | | 15 A -- without the publisher's agreement.
16 mean, you say it is knowable. That isastupid 16 Q Allright. Now, the next column is"Number of
17 question. 17 Test Items.”
18 When you say it is knowable -- Say | wanted to 18 Do see that?
19 find that out, how would | go about doing that? 19 A Yes
20 A The publisher would have that information. 20 Q And that meansthat studentsin grade 2 in the
21 Q And have you ever made any inquiry to find that 21 areaof language arts have 192 test items; is that
22 information out? 22 right?
23 A Yes. 23 A Yes.
24 Q Okay. Do you have that information? 24 Q And the next column is"Number of Augmented
25 A No. 25 Test Items’; isthat right?
Page 362 Page 364

1 Q When did you -- When did you make that -- Did 1 A Yes.

2 you have that information when you were preparing your 2 Q And that meansin grade 2 they get 152 norm

3 report? 3 reference test items and 40 augmented test items; is

4 A No. 4 that right?

5 Q When did you have that information? 5 A No.

6 A | didn't haveit. 6 Q Okay. Help me understand it. What isthe

7 Q Okay. Why didn't you -- Why didn't you -- 7 difference between number of test items and number of

8 Could you have obtained that information at the time you 8 augmented test items?

9 were preparing this report? 9 A The number of augmented test items reflects the
10 A No. 10 number of Stanford Test items that were selected to be
11 Q Why not? 11 included as part of the augmented test.

12 A Because the publisher had marked it 12 Q Allright. Soyou aretelling methey are all
13 confidential and it could not be released to me. 13 Stanford items; isthat right?

14 Q Do you have aview asto why they marked it 14 A All 192, yes.

15 confidential? 15 Q All right. And but for the augmented test

16 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor 16 items, studentsin grade 2 would have received in the
17 speculation. 17 areaof language arts 152 Stanford Test items; is that
18 THE WITNESS: My understanding is when the 18 right?

19 publishers submitted their proposals, they were allowed 19 A No.

20 to mark information as proprietary and confidential and 20 Q All right.

21 that the understanding was that that would not be made 21 A If you take the Stanford Test in language arts
22 public unlessthe publisher agreed to it. 22 ingrade?2 --

23 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 23 Q Yes

24 Q Do you know the methodol ogy that the 24 A --youtakeall 192 items.

25 publisher -- the Stanford publisher used to determine 25 Q If there had been no augmentation -- Does
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1 Stanford routinely augment their test? 1 standardsitemsthat were aigned. They chosea
2 A | don't know what you mean. 2 subset.
3 Q What | am trying to understand, if | were 3 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
4 taking the Stanford Test in Illinois in grade 2 language 4 Q Okay. Andwhat isyour understanding as to why
5 arts, how many test itemswould | see? 5 that was done?
6 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor 6 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague.
7 speculation. 7 THE WITNESS. My understanding is that they did
8 THE WITNESS: Y ou probably would not be taking 8 that in the early years while the standards tests were
9 theform that was given in California. Y ou may take 9 being developed so that they could have a standards test
10 some other form of the Stanford Test and I'm not sure 10 soon before they had time to develop all of the items
11 the number of items that might have been on that form. 11 that they needed for that test.
12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
13 Q All right. The augmented test items, those 13 Q Soif you are not comfortable with this use,
14 are-- those are items on the Stanford Test? 14 tell methis. But the 40 items, in a sense, were the
15 A Yes 15 early years standards test; isthat afair
16 Q And are those -- 16 characterization?
17 Who draws up those test items, the Stanford 17 A Not entirely. They were part of it. There
18 publisher or somebody else? 18 wereaso additiona items that had been developed
19 A All of the items on the Stanford Test were 19 gpecifically for the standards test.
20 developed by the publisher. 20 Q All right. Now, when | see "Percent of Strands
21 Q Allright. And adecision was made at some 21 Assessed, 69 percent” -- | want to stop. Withdraw that
22 point to add the augmented items; right? That is what 22 question for a second.
23 augmented means? 23 192 total test items, 40 augmented test items.
24 A No. 24 Doesthat mean that there are 152 nonaugmented test
25 Q Okay. Werethe augmented test items always 25 items?
Page 366 Page 368
1 part of thetest? 1 A It meansthat only 40 of the 192 were used as
2 A For theform that is being given in Cdlifornia, 2 part of the California standards test.
3 those 40 items were aways part of that standard test 3 Q Allright.
4 form. 4 Now, the 69 percent, do we know what part of
5 Q What is an augmented test item? 5 that 69 percent came from the 40 questions and what part
6 A Thatisanitem selected to be included on the 6 of the 69 percent came from the remaining questionsin
7 standardstest in the early years of the program. 7 theareaof language arts?
8 Q Andwho did that selection? 8 Do you understand what | mean?
9 A It ismy understanding that the department did 9 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague.
10 that together with the publisher. 10 THE WITNESS: The percent of strands assessed
11 Q The department together with the publisher took | 11 are-- represent the portion of the test that matches
12 alook at the Stanford Test items, selected out 40 test 12 the Californiastandards. It assessesthingsthat are
13 itemsfor grade 2 language arts and designated thoseas | 13 inthe standards for that grade level at that subject
14 augmented test items? 14 area. The 40 itemswereitems that also match those
15 A That's correct. 15 standards. So they would be included within the group
16 Q Andthe criteriafor selecting them as 16 of itemsthat measure the strands that are assessed by
17 augmented test itemsisthat they were aligned with 17 the Stanford 9.
18 State standards; is that correct? 18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
19 MR. HERRON: Callsfor speculation. Objecton | 19 Q Allright. | appreciate that explanation. Let
20 that basis. 20 meseeif | can go one step further with it.
21 Did you get that? 21 Do we know with respect to that universe, the
22 THE REPORTER: Yes. 22 69 percent, what part of that 69 percent came from the
23 THE WITNESS: All of theitems that were 23 40items? For example, did that 40 itemsinclude all of
24 chosen for the augmented test were aligned with State 24 the strands that are represented by the 69 percent? Do
25 standards. They did not necessarily choose al 25 you know what | mean?
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1 A Wadl, let metry something here. 1 language arts part, | take the Stanford Test and | also
2 Q Okay. 2 takethe Cdliforniasurvey test?
3 A I'mnot surel do. 3 A No.
4 Q Okay. 4 Q Okay. The Cdiforniasurvey test, what is
5 A If you are asking how those 40 items were 5 that? Isthat the CAT6?
6 distributed across the strands, that is, whether there 6 A Yes.
7 wasat least one item among the 40 from each of the 16 7 Q Okay. And so help me understand this. The
8 strands, for example -- 8 Stanford Test that you have represented here, for what
9 Q Yes 9 vyear wasthat?
10 A -- the department would know that. | don't 10 A That was the form that was submitted by
11 personaly know that. 11 proposal to be used in Californiafor the first year of
12 Q Isit possible that the 40 augmented test items 12 thetest.
13 include all 16 of the strands? 13 Q Okay. And | takeit that the California survey
14 A No. Because only 69 percent of the strands are 14 test-- If | call that CATS, isthat okay with you?
15 assessed. 15 A That'sfine.
16 Q Okay. 16 Q Allright. Isthisbased on the proposal, too,
17 A Soit would be across the portion of the 16 17 thedatainthisbox?
18 strands represented by the 69 percent, but | don't know 18 A Yes
19 how that was distributed. 19 Q Allright. InTable 1.
20 Q Allright. Maybe you just answered thisfor 20 A But | should probably say that CAT6 survey
21 me. Butif -- Thismay be aduplicate question. Why 21 would be the accurate one. Thereisa CAT6 test and
22 isn't 69 percent of 16 an even number? 22 thenthereisashorter survey version and what we are
23 A I'msorry? Why -- 23 talking about here isthe shorter survey version.
24 Q Why isn't 69 percent of 16 an even number? 24 Q Which onewill kidsin Californiatake?
25 A What number isit? 25 A Thesurvey.
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1 Q I'mgetting about 11.2. 1 Q Allright. Now, in grade 2, the percent of
2 A | expect that is probably rounded to the 2 standards assessed in language arts under the CAT6
3 nearest whole number. 3 survey will be 28 percent; isthat right?
4 Q Allright. Isit possible that, if my mathis 4 A Yes. Anditwas. Thisspring.
5 correct -- 5 Q AnNd there were 45 items, test items?
6 Isit correct, David? 6 A Yes
7 MR. HERRON: | can't even work acalculator. 7 Q Sotherearealot lesstest itemsthat kids
8 MR. ROSENBAUM: He'sthe best the plaintiffs 8 aretaking; isthat right?
9 haveinthisarea 9 A That's correct.
10 MR. HERRON: Isit 11.04? 10 Q AnNd "Percent of Standards Assessed,” what does
11 THE WITNESS: Do it the other way. Do 11 over | 11 that mean? Percent of al standards that deal with
12 16. 12 language arts?
13 MR. HERRON: .6875. 13 A That's the percent of the 46 back in that first
14 MR. ROSENBAUM: Oh, that's right, then. 14 column.
15 THE WITNESS: So they rounded to 69. 15 Q | see. Okay.
16 MR. ROSENBAUM: All right, thanks. 16 And why in the Stanford Test don't you have a
17 Q Isit possible that the 11 strands are in the 17 column that says "Percent of Standards Assessed.” Is
18 40 augmented test items? 18 that because that information was confidential ?
19 A Well, you have that backwards. The 40 items 19 A Yes
20 will come from the 11 strands. 20 Q Andwould your expectation be, Doctor, that the
21 Q Okay. Okay. 21 percent of standards assessed in the Stanford Test for
22 Now, the next box says "California Survey 22 grade 2 in language arts would be less than 28 percent?
23 Test." Doyou seethat? 23 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor
24 A Yes 24 speculation.
25 Q Soif l amingrade2and | am taking the 25 THE WITNESS: | do not have that information.
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1 Ilcanttel youwhatitis. 1 the publisher with the appropriate norms.
2 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 2 Q Soitwouldn't be broken down as to whether or
3 Q Youdon't know if it isless, equal or more? 3 not aparticular item -- say, for example, it says, "You
4 A | don't know what it is. 4 got 40 out of 45 items correct on the CAT6 survey
5 Q Andif I went through every grade and subject 5 test"
6 matter on Table 1, you would tell me the same thing: 6 Okay? Areyou with me?
7 For the CAT6 survey test as opposed to the Stanford 7 A I'mnot sureif al scores are reported, but
8 Tedt, you don't know if the percent of standards 8 | understand what you are saying about number of
9 assessed ismore or less or equal in the Stanford Test 9 items
10 asto what you have recorded for the CAT6 survey test; | 10 Q Ifitisnot raw scores, it is percent?
11 isthatright? 11 A Itisprobably percentile rank --
12 A 1 did not have the standard level match data 12 Q All right.
13 for Stanford for either of those subjects for any of the 13 A -- from the norms.
14 grades. 14 Q Allright. Isthere anything -- To your
15 Q Allright. And then the percent of aligned 15 knowledge, isthere anything on the report that would
16 items, tell me what your definitionis of aligned in 16 tell aparent or a student whether or not the items
17 your column on Table 1. 17 which the student got correct or the percent of items
18 A Matching standards, measuring California 18 which the student got correct reflect aligned items or
19 standards. 19 not?
20 Q Okay. Why don't you have asimilar column 20 A | don't believe there are any desegregations
21 under the Stanford Test? 21 other than the ones that are normally provided by the
22 A Becausel didn't have standards or item level 22 publisher on a student level score report.
23 data 23 Q All right. Andyou probably just answered
24 Q Okay. That wasvery helpful. Thank you. 24 this, but just to be clear.
25 And the calculation as to percent of aligned 25 Asfar as you know, there are no desegregation
Page 374 Page 376
1 items, who made the judgment as to whether an item was 1 by alignment of theitems; isthat right?
2 dligned or not? 2 A Theonly desegregations of which | am aware are
3 A The publisher. 3 based on subarea or subtest scores within a subject.
4 Q And do you know for afact whether or not there 4 Q All right. Now, when the API iscalculated for
5 wasany verification? 5 aparticular schoal, is there any adjustment made, so
6 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 6 far asyou know, by student scores on items that were
7 THE WITNESS: Again, | would have expected the 7 digned as opposed to items that were not aligned?
8 department to be looking at that, but | don't know for a 8 A The APl isbased on the percentile rank score
9 fact whether they did. 9 and those percentile ranks are categorized into groups.
10 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 10 Youmay recal | have an examplein my table and that is
11 Q Now, if | am astudent or the parent of a 11 based on thetotal score result.
12 student in grade 2, language arts, and | get my kid's 12 Q Sothereisnot that sort of desegregation by
13 scoreonthe CAT6 survey test, do you know if | will be 13 aignment?
14 informed whether or not my student's correct answer was | 14 A Thereisno desegregation.
15 onanaligned item or not an aligned item? 15 Q Okay. Thank you.
16 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation, 16 MR. HERRON: We have been going for about an
17 incomplete and improper hypothetical. 17 hour.
18 MR. ROSENBAUM: Itisafoundational question. 18 MR. ROSENBAUM: We can take a break and let's
19 Q I amasking if you know whether or not parents 19 go off the record.
20 areinformed whether or not their kids got correct 20 (Discussion held off the record.)
21 answerson aligned items or not. 21 MR. ROSENBAUM: We are back on the record.
22 A My understanding is that they get the standard 22 Q Doctor, have you ever heard the phrase "access
23 information provided by the publisher just like they did 23 to core curriculum"?
24 with the Stanford, and the Stanford information was 24 A | may have.
25 based on the total collection of items as reported by 25 Q What meaning do you attach to that phrase?
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1 A 1 would need to seeit in context to understand 1 Q Do you know if that information existsin

2 what you are talking about. 2 Cdifornia?

3 Q How about "core curriculum™? What does that 3 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Irrelevant.

4 meantoyou? 4 THE WITNESS: | don't have enough dataand

5 A Again, | would need some context on that. 5 information to answer that.

6 Q If | define core curriculum as those subject 6 MR. HERRON: Areyou able to hear me?

7 matters and information bases that are reflected in the 7 THE REPORTER: Yes. Thank you.

8 Cadliforniastandard, that is the definition that | am 8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

9 going to use. 9 Q On page 6 of your report, and | am looking,
10 Do you understand that? 10 Doctor, at the second column, the last paragraph and |
11 A You aretaking about all of the standards at 11 am going to pick out a sentence, but you can look at it
12 every gradelevel in every subject? 12 asmuch asyou would like to contextually understand
13 Q Yes. Okay? 13 it
14 A | believe | understand what you are referring 14 Reading from your report at page 6:

15 to. 15 "Based on the purpose of the test, a
16 Q Do you know, Doctor, whether or not there are K 16 diverse panel of content expertsis
17 through 12 public school studentsin Californiawho do 17 asked to identify an age-appropriate,
18 not have access to core curriculum as we have just 18 testable domain of academic subject
19 definedit? 19 matter from the state content standards,
20 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation, 20 to develop a set of test specifications
21 overbroad, vague and ambiguous. 21 which identifies the specific knowledge
22 THE WITNESS: | don't understand what you mean | 22 and skillsto be sampled from the domain,
23 by "access." 23 and to specify the proportional weight
24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 24 to be given to each sampled content
25 Q They don't -- They are not taught that 25 area."
Page 378 Page 380

1 information. 1 Do you see that?

2 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 2 A Yes

3 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 3 Q Okay. Do you know how --

4 Q Itisnot available to them. 4 Isthat donein Cdlifornia, so far asyou

5 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 5 know?

6 THE WITNESS: | think thisis the same thing we 6 A That'sthe general procedurein test

7 talked about this morning. 7 development.

8 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Okay. 8 Q Okay. And do you know how those -- how that

9 Q Doyou know if there are studentsin 9 pand of content experts goes about identifying the
10 Cdiforniawho have to share textbooksin their 10 age-appropriate, testable domain of academic subject
11 classrooms? 11 matter from the state content standards?

12 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 12 MR. HERRON: I'm sorry. Can| have the
13 THE WITNESS: | don't have data about how 13 question reread?

14 textbooks are used in schools. 14 MR. ROSENBAUM: Itiseasierif | just say it.
15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 15 MR. HERRON: Okay.

16 Q Okay. Do you know, Doctor -- maybe you just 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

17 answered the question for me -- whether or not there 17 Q I just want to know if -- You say:

18 arepublic school studentsin K through 12 in California | 18 "adiverse panel of content expertsis

19 who use textbooks that are not aligned with State 19 asked to identify an age-appropriate,

20 standards? 20 testable domain of academic subject

21 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Asked and 21 matter from the state content standards.”
22 answered. 22 Do you seethat?

23 THE WITNESS: | don't have enough information | 23 A Yes

24 at this point to offer an opinion on that. 24 Q Do you know how they do that?

25 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 25 A You aretaking about California now,
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1 specificaly? 1 A | don't have that datain front of me right
2 Q Yes 2  now.
3 A | didn't attend any of the meetingsin which 3 Q Okay. What isthe purpose of field testing?
4 that occurred, but | can respond generally that the main 4 A Aslindicated, it isatryout of the items
5 criteriaiswhether or not it is testable at the state 5 priortousing them in afina test form.
6 leve. 6 Q Atany point with respect to the California
7 Q Do you know what field testing is? 7 assessment system, were field tests not done for items
8 A I'mfamiliar with that term. 8 that were administered to California students on any of
9 Q What isyour understanding of what that means? 9 the assessment tests?
10 A Youare asking in general now -- 10 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous,
11 Q lam. 11 callsfor speculation.
12 A --for adefinition? 12 THE WITNESS: If you are talking about the NRT
13 Field testing iswhen you try out atest or set 13 test, as| just indicated, those were field tested by
14 of test items on students at the grade level for which 14 thepublisher. If you are talking about the California
15 vyouintend to use them. 15 standardstest, those were field tested by the
16 Q Wasthat done with respect to the STAR 16 contractor.
17 assessment system prior to itsimplementation? 17 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
18 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. | 18 Q How about the California High School Exit Exam?
19 THE WITNESS: If you are talking about the NRT 19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
20 test that was done by the publisher prior to devel opment 20 THE WITNESS: Those were field tested either by
21 of that test instrument. 21 the department or the contractor.
22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
23 Q Wasit done with respect to California 23 Q Prior to their administration?
24 students, do you know? 24 A Yes.
25 A | don't have a specific list in front of me, 25 Q At page 8, Doctor, of your report, | am looking
Page 382 Page 384
1 but it was done on anationally representative sample of 1 atthefirst paragraph and | am looking at the second
2 students acrossthe country. Itislikely that some 2 sentence.
3 studentsfrom somewhere in California participated. 3 "Many of these skills are consistent
4 Q Do you know for afact whether or not there 4 with the content skills specified in
5 were California students participating? 5 the California Content Standards."
6 A At thistimel don't know who was on that 6 Do you seethat?
7 list. 7 A Yes
8 Q Okay. And regarding the items on the test, 8 Q Okay. When you say "many," can you attach a
9 the augmentation items -- Strike that. 9 percent to that?
10 Do you know if the augment -- Wasthere afield 10 A The percentsthat were available to me are
11 test of the augmentation items with respect to 11 reported in Table 1 of my report.
12 Cadlifornia students? 12 Q Andjust canyou -- Let'stake alook at Table
13 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. | 13 1 just sothat -- Isthat -- Do you have that in front
14 THE WITNESS: If you are asking about the 14 of you?
15 augmentation items that we talked about out of Table 1, 15 A Yes
16 those were tried out with the rest of the Stanford items 16 Q Okay. Whereisthat reflected in Table 1?
17 when that test was field tested. 17 A If you are referring to the Stanford Tedt, it
18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 18 isunder "Percent of Strands Assessed.”
19 Q Okay. Andif | ask you whether or not you, in 19 Q Okay. Andthe CAT6 test, whereisit there?
20 fact, know whether or not California students were field 20 A That is"Percent of Standards Assessed.”
21 tested, same answer as you gave me before? 21 Q Okay. Andin Table 1, of courseit doesn't
22 A | believeitislikely there were some 22 purport to be every subject matter that Californiakids
23 Cadiforniastudentsin the sample. 23 weretested on as part of the assessment system, does
24 Q But you don't know for sure and you don't know 24 it?
25 if s0, how many? 25 A If you are asking were there testsin
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1 additional subjects, that's true at the high school 1 schoal, yes.
2 level where there was social science and science. 2 Q Okay. And did you ever request data so that
3 Q Okay. Didyou construct tables regarding 3 you could construct a Table 1 type analysis for social
4 science and social science -- 4 science?
5 A No. 5 A | don't think so.
6 Q --similarto Table 1? 6 Q Who hasthat data, asfar as you know?
7 A No. 7 A I'mnot sure. Probably someonein the
8 Q Didyou look at that data? 8 department or at the board.
9 A | don't recal it. 9 Q Okay. Directing your attention back to page 8
10 Q Okay. Isthereany reason why you didn't 10 of your report. The same sentence:
11 construct atable similar to Table 1 for science and 11 "Many of these skills are consistent
12 socia science? 12 with the content skills specified in
13 A Primarily because that was specific only tothe | 13 the California Content Standards.”
14 high school level. 14 We are back there.
15 Q Do you have aview asto what the percent of 15 Do you see that?
16 aligned itemswould be for science in high school at 16 A Yes.
17 each gradelevel? 17 Q Téell mewhat you meant, please, by the word
18 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor 18 "consistent.”
19 speculation. 19 MR. HERRON: Where are we?
20 THE WITNESS: | don't havethat datainfront | 20 MR. ROSENBAUM: It isthe second sentence.
21 of meand couldn't tell you without looking at that. 21 MR. HERRON: Okay.
22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 22 THE WITNESS: That they measured the California
23 Q Didyou ever look at that data? 23 standards.
24 A | may have. | don't recall it. 24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
25 Q Wasit 100 percent? 25 Q I'msorry. What?
Page 386 Page 388
1 MR. HERRON: Shejust answered she didn't 1 A That they measured the California standards.
2 recal. 2 Q That isyour definition?
3 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 3 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
4 Q If you don't recall, you don't recall. For 4 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
5 each gradelevel? 5 Q I justdidn't hear you. I'maskingyou. I'm
6 A That's correct, without the datain front of me 6 asking you what the definition of "consistent” isin the
7 | don't know what those numbers are. 7 second sentence. You may have just answered that. 1'm
8 Q You have that data, though? 8 just asking you to restate it for me.
9 A No, | don't think so. 9 MR. HERRON: Objection.
10 Q Didyou make any attempt to get that data? Let 10 THE WITNESS: That they measured the
11 mestrikethat. 11 Cadiforniastandards.
12 Did you have that data at some point? 12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
13 A Notthat | recall. 13 Q Okay. And what do you mean by the word
14 Q Didyou ever make any effort to get that data? 14 "sills'?
15 A | don't think | requested that data. 15 MR. HERRON: Objection. Nitpicking.
16 Q Why isthat? 16 THE WITNESS: That's the academic knowledge and
17 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. | 17 content and what we call skills necessary to answer the
18 THE WITNESS: As| indicated to you, | was 18 item.
19 focusing on the tests that spanned the entire grade 19 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
20 level. 20 Q Now, look at the next sentence, please.
21 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 21 "Many others represent prerequisite
22 Q And the same thing for social science, 22 or enabling skills from previous
23 history? They are administered at the high school 23 grades.”
24 leve; right? 24 Do you see that?
25 A Thereare social sciencetests at the high 25 A Yes
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1 Q Okay. When you say "many others," can you tell 1 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague, ambiguous,
2 mewhat percent or what number? Can you attach a number 2 callsfor speculation, overbroad.
3 or percent to that? 3 THE WITNESS: | have looked at content
4 A Asl indicated, the percentsthat | had 4 gpecifications and items and data for that test and |
5 available arereported in Table 1. 5 base my global judgment on that information. | have not
6 Q Sowhenyou say, "Many others represent 6 undertaken an item-by-item analysis.
7 prerequisite or enabling skills from previous grades,” 7 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
8 where are those many others reflected in Table 1? 8 Q Haveyou read over California standards with
9 A Those would be among the items that don't 9 respect to mathematics for any grade?
10 specificaly test California standards. 10 A Yes
11 Q Allright. Do you know -- 11 Q For al the grades?
12 Of theitems that don't specifically test 12 A | believel have seen al of them.
13 Cadifornia standards, how many of them, if you know, 13 Q Anddid you do acomparison between California
14 represent prerequisite or enabling skills from previous 14 standards and the test items that we are talking about?
15 grades or what percentage of them? Either one. 15 A With respect to what?
16 MR. HERRON: For any particular grade or test 16 Q To determine whether or not they specifically
17 or year or subject? 17 represented prerequisite or enabling skills from
18 MR. ROSENBAUM: | would like to know all of 18 previous grades.
19 that. 19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Overbroad, callsfor
20 MR. HERRON: Y ou may have to take them -- 20 speculation, vague and ambiguous.
21 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 21 THE WITNESS: | had data available to me about
22 Q And| amglad totakeit one at atimeif you 22 the percents of strands and in the case of the CAT®6, the
23  want. 23 standardsthat are covered by the itemsand | have a
24 Do you know -- 24 knowledge of the nature of the items that are on that
25 Let me seeif | can capture thisin a 25 test and believe that the skills that don't match are
Page 390 Page 392
1 question. Do you know for any particular grade or for 1 lower level skills, skills that would match a standard
2 any particular subject how many of the -- how many of 2 a alower gradelevel.
3 thequestions that are not represented with respect to 3 MR. ROSENBAUM: Can | havethat answer read
4 Cadlifornia standards, how many of those represent 4 back, please.
5 prerequisite or enabling skills from previous grades? 5 (Record read asfollows:
6 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 6 "Answer: | had data available to me
7 Vagueastotime. 7 about the percents of strandsand in
8 THE WITNESS: | can't give you any exact 8 the case of the CAT6, the standards
9 numbersinthat regard. But | would believe that they 9 that are covered by the itemsand |
10 would -- that would be avery high number. It would be 10 have a knowledge of the nature of the
11 most of them because these are skills that are commonly 11 items that are on that test and believe
12 taught across the nation in that grade level and in that 12 that the skills that don't match are
13 subject. 13 lower level skills, skills that would
14 And to the extent they don't measure California 14 match a standard at alower grade
15 standards, it tends to be because the California 15 level.")
16 standards are more demanding and are requiring more 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 difficult content. So these -- especially in 17 Q And, Doctor, did you also have information
18 mathematics, which is quite hierarchical. These are 18 regarding the standards covered by the itemsin the
19 thingsyou learn first before you do the more difficult 19 Stanford 9?
20 content. 20 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague.
21 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 21 THE WITNESS: Aswe taked about, we talked
22 Q Haveyou undertaken any analysisto determine 22 about Table 1, theinformation | had available to me
23 what percent of those questions represent prerequisite 23 involved the match at the strand level.
24 or enabling skills from previous grades in the area of 24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
25 mathematics? 25 Q Allright. Now, the information that you had
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1 that you referenced to me about the standards covered by 1 A Wetaked about that yesterday. | think that
2 itemsinthe CAT6, what information is that? 2 was1997.
3 A That was the information on the right-hand side 3 Q Okay. Early or late 19977?
4 of thetable that gave the percent by standard. 4 A | think it waslatein the year.
5 Q Okay. Well, bear with me. I'm having alittle 5 Q Okay. Anddid you look at the CAT6 -- Tell me
6 troublefollowing you. Itis probably my fault here. 6 the phrasethat you are using. Technical manual, is
7 But did you have information about the specific 7 that what itiscalled?
8 information tested on the CAT6 so that you could makea | 8 A If you are referring to what we were talking
9 judgment as to whether or not they represented 9 about earlier, yes.
10 prerequisite or enabling skills? 10 Q Okay. Haveyou ever looked at the CAT6
11 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague. 11 technical manua?
12 THE WITNESS: Yes. 12 A Yes
13 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 13 Q When wasthat?
14 Q What information isthat? 14 A Aspart of the preparation of this report.
15 A Information contained in the technical manual 15 Q Do you have that at home?
16 forthetest. 16 A No.
17 Q Okay. And did you rely upon that for your 17 Q Inyour office?
18 conclusion herein forming that conclusion? 18 A No.
19 A That conclusion | believe applies specifically 19 Q When did you look at that?
20 to Stanford. That paragraph istalking about SAT9, so 20 A When | was preparing my report.
21 that conclusion actualy -- 21 Q Wheredid you get it?
22 Q Allright. 22 A | borrowed it.
23 A --relies on information about the SATO. 23 Q Fromwhom?
24 Q Didyou get that information from the technical 24 A From someone at the Department of Education.
25 manual about the Stanford Test? 25 Q Andwho?
Page 394 Page 396
1 A Inpart, yes. 1 A Phil Spears.
2 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. | don't have that 2 Q Okay. Andthen what did you do with it after
3 information, David, and | don't have the technical 3 you borrowed it?
4 manual for either of the Stanford 9 or the CAT6 and it 4 A | returned it.
5 isclear that this withess has relied upon that material 5 Q Okay. Andwhat did you look at inthe CAT6
6 informing her conclusions. So | am requesting that 6 manual for purposes of these conclusions?
7 data 7 MR. HERRON: Objection. Misconstrues prior
8 MR. HERRON: Okay. 8 testimony. Vague and ambiguous. Callsfor
9 MR. ROSENBAUM: And it is necessary for 9 speculation.
10 purposes of this deposition. 10 Y ou may respond.
11 MR. HERRON: Okay. 11 THE WITNESS: | don't remember in alot of
12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 12 detail. | skimmed most of it. | read some sectionsin
13 Q Do you have that manual with you herein 13 more detail.
14 LosAngeles? 14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
15 A No. 15 Q Tel mewhat you remember from that
16 Q Backinyour office? 16 information.
17 A No. | don't think so. 17 MR. HERRON: Y ou mean what she reviewed?
18 Q Whereisit? 18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
19 A | believe in the hands of the publisher. 19 Q What you just told me you reviewed, the
20 Q When did you look at that information? 20 skimming and what you read in more detail.
21 A When | reviewed the Stanford Test as part of 21 A Thetechnical manual is quite thick. Itis
22 the proposal review process. 22 quite voluminous. It contains descriptive material and
23 Q Tel me specifically what information you -- 23 it containsalot of tables of information about the
24 When did you review that information as part of the 24 test. | couldn't begin to recall and describe all of
25 proposal? 25 that to you at this point.
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Q What information did you look at in the
Stanford 9 manual when you were reviewing the
proposal --

Did you read over the entire manual at the
time?

A | looked at that onein quite abit of detail,
yes.
Q Okay. And did you look at material that caused
you to -- Strike that.

What material did you look at that caused you
to conclude that the questions would cover prerequisite
or enabling skills from prior grades? What information
in the manual ?

MR. HERRON: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence, callsfor speculation.

THE WITNESS: Information in the Stanford
technical manual that would be related to that
conclusion would include information about test
development, information about the test specifications
and how they were developed, sample items, data about
those items.

BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

Q Atthetimeyou did that, were there California
standards devel oped in language arts and mathematicsin
al grade levels?
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| can't recall at this point.

Wasiit prior to your preparing your report?
What report are you referring to?

The report you submitted for this case, Exhibit
1?

Yes, | would have seen them prior to the

Y ou read them prior to the report?
Yes.
How much prior?
| just don't recall at this point.
A month? A year? Strike that.
Did you read them when they came out when they
were finalized?

A | saw them then, yes.

Q Haveyou read them since then? Strike that.

Did you read them at the time that they were
finalized?

A Yes, | didlook at them then.

Q Youareusing theword "look at." | want to
know if you read them.

A Youareusing that word in afunny way. These
are tables of information and so you can look at the
table. It doesn't exactly read like a book in that
sense.
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A | believe there were draft standards out for
review at that time. | think the board may not yet have
formally acted on those standards and adopted them.

Q Had you read those draft standards?

A | believe | had seen copies of them.

Q Had you studied those draft standards in
language arts and math?

MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
THE WITNESS: Asl indicated, | had seen them.
BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

Q | know. But you are using the verb "seen." |
want to know if you had read them.

MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
THE WITNESS: Yes, | read them.
BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

Q You read them carefully?

A | think you are nitpicking now. | saw them, |
read them. | recall having seen them.

Q Okay.

MR. HERRON: Any time you are ready to break
for lunch, we are.
BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
Q Whendid you --
I'm not going to be much longer, David.
When did you read the State's math standards?
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Q Thereistextinit, though; right? Strike
that.
Is there text with the standards of math?
A Yes.
Q Istheretext with the standards for language
arts?
A Yes
Q Haveyouread al of that text?
MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
THE WITNESS: If you are asking me did | look
at al that material, the answer isyes, | did.
BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
Q Didyouread al thetext?
A Not in the way you would read a book but, yes,
| think I read all the words on the page.
Q How many pages was the math standards?
A | don't remember. Itismany pages.
Q How many pages was the language arts?
A Samething. Many pages.
Q 20? 100? 200? How many?
MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
Q If you know.
A | don't remember the exact page length on it.
Q Didyou read the text when the reports were
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1 finalized? 1 Q What was said about the case?
2 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. 2 A We weretaking about where to get the manuals
3 THE WITNESS: You are asking after the board 3 that you requested, who would have that information.
4 had adopted the standards did | read the standards -- 4 Q Andwhat was said?
5 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 5 A | suggested that the department and/or the
6 Q VYes. 6 board should have copies, that you can get copies from
7 A  -- that had been adopted? Yes. 7 thepublisher directly, that most evaluations of large
8 Q Haveyou read them subsequent to that time? 8 districts have those.
9 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. 9 Q Anything else that you discussed regarding the
10 THE WITNESS: Yes, | believe so. 10 case.
11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 11 A They asked me how | was feeling, how | was
12 Q Okay. When was the last time you read the math 12 doing.
13 standards? 13 Q Did Mr. Herron ask Mr. Salvaty why he wasn't
14 A | don't recal for sure. 14 hereinstead of him?
15 Q When wasthe last time you read the language 15 MR. HERRON: That would have been afair
16 artsstandards? 16 question.
17 A | don't recall. 17 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay.
18 MR. ROSENBAUM: | want those manuals, please, | 18 Q I think | asked you this before. | just want
19 David. 19 to ask thisasapredicate.
20 Okay. Let'stake abreak. 20 The CAT6 has questions about science, right,
21 MR. HERRON: Fine. 21 for high school ?
22 MR. ROSENBAUM: Seeyouin an hour. 22 A | believethere is science at the high
23 MR. HERRON: Great. 23 school level similar to what has been the casein the
24 (Luncheon recess taken from 12:09 p.m. 24 past.
25 to 1:22 p.m.) 25 Q Regarding the Stanford 9, you mean?
Page 402 Page 404
1 EXAMINATION (Resumed) 1 A Yes.
2 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 2 Q Andthe CAT6 and Stanford 9 also have
3 Q Back on the record. 3 questions about social science or history at the high
4 Doctor, did you review any documents over the 4 school level; isthat correct?
5 lunch break? 5 A Thereisasocia science component at the high
6 A No. 6 school level, yes.
7 Q Did you have a discussion with anybody about 7 Q Haveyou compared history curricula standards
8 the deposition? 8 in Californiawith any other state?
9 A Yes 9 A | haven't made a direct side-by-side
10 Q Mr. Herron? 10 comparison, but | have seen standardsin other states.
11 A Yes. 11 Q Inhow many other states?
12 Q Anybody else? 12 A Oh, ahandful probably.
13 A One other attorney from the firm. 13 Q Do you feel competent to compare California's
14 Q Whoisthat? 14 history standards with history standards across the
15 A Paul Salvaty. 15 country?
16 Q Wasthat at the O'Melveny office? 16 MR. HERRON: Y ou mean could she do that?
17 A Yes 17 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.
18 Q How long wasthat -- Was there -- 18 THE WITNESS: If | had the relevant documents
19 Wasit in Mr. Salvaty's office or Mr. Herron's 19 infront of me, | could make some comparisons.
20 office? 20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
21 A No. 21 Q My question wasn't really a good question.
22 Q How long did the discussion take? 22 Haveyou donethat? Have you put what you consider to
23 A Thediscussion you are asking about was 23  betherelevant documents and made that comparison about
24 relatively short, but we had lunch together and we 24 the history curricula of California compared to across
25 discussed other things. 25 thenation?
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1 A If you are talking about actually having the 1 grades.
2 standards side-by-side and making a systematic 2 Q Did the Fordham study look to see the extent to
3 comparison, no. 3 which the curriculg, the history curriculum for each
4 Q Haveyou done that for social science, 4 gradein high school in Californiawas similar to the
5 Cadliforniastandards, social science standards compared | 5 history taught in other states across the country
6 tosocia science standards across the nation? 6 pursuant to the high school curriculaby grade?
7 A Again, | haven't made a side-by-side document 7 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
8 comparison. 8 THE WITNESS: With respect to the report that
9 Q Do you know if anybody has with respect to 9 they published, it is my understanding that they
10 history, compared Californias history standards with 10 compared the content in the standards from different
11 history standards across the country? 11 dtates.
12 A There are anumber of groups that have sought 12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
13 toidentify and compare standards across states. 13 Q What isthe degree of similarity, if you know,
14 Q Okay. Do you know the names of any of those 14 between Californias history curriculum at the high
15 groups? 15 school level and the content of history taught across
16 A | cited one in my report, the Fordham Group. 16 the country?
17 Q The Fordham Group? 17 A Again, theinformation | looked at was with
18 A The Fordham study looked at standardsin a 18 respect to the standards in different states and |
19 number of areas. 19 couldn't give you any specifics or detailed information
20 Q Canyou name any other group besides the 20 without having their supporting information in front of
21 Fordham study? 21 me, but | could say generally it is viewed as being more
22 A Thereare evaluations of standards also put out 22 rigorous.
23 by Education Week. 23 Q Okay. And do you know if they cover the same
24 Q Haveyou studied those? 24 subjectsin the eleventh grade in history in California
25 A | have reviewed the information that they 25 that they cover in history across the country? Do you
Page 406 Page 408
1 published about that activity. 1 know that one way or the other?
2 Q The comparisons that appeared in the Fordham 2 A | believethat information isin the supporting
3 study, they grade the standards, isn't that right, or 3 documentation of that report, but | don't recall the
4 they rank the standards? 4 information about any particular topic without looking
5 A For each state they give aletter grade -- 5 athat.
6 Q Okay. 6 Q Okay. Sitting here today, do you have an
7 A --totheir standards. 7 opinion asto the similarity of the history curriculum
8 Q And the same thing for Ed Week, they rank the 8 in Cdiforniaversus the other statesin the country?
9 standards to one degree or another? 9 A Asl indicated to you, my understanding is that
10 A Again, they gave letter grades. 10 itisgenerally morerigorous overall.
11 Q Okay. My questionis: Areyou aware of any 11 Q All right. How about the subject matters, do
12 analysisthat compares the content of the history 12 you have an opinion as to whether or not thereisa
13 curriculastandardsin Californiawith the content of 13 similarity in the subject matters taught in the history
14 the history curricula standardsin other states? 14 in Cdlifornia as compared to other states?
15 And | don't mean which are more rigorous, | 15 A Asl indicated to you, | would have to have
16 mean the actual content themselves, what they study in | 16 that information in front of me to answer that question.
17 Cdiforniacompared to what they study in other states 17 Q Andtheinformation you aretalking about is
18 acrossthe country. 18 the supporting information for the Fordham study; is
19 A Yes 19 that right?
20 Q Okay. You havelooked at those studies? 20 A Yes
21 A Yes 21 Q Didyou rely upon the supporting information
22 Q What studies are you thinking about? 22 with respect to history from the Fordham study in
23 A It'smy understanding from reading the Fordham | 23 preparing your report?
24 study and the methodology that they used, that that was | 24 A | read their overall evaluations. | looked at
25 apart of what they did when they assigned the letter 25 some of that information, but the specific data that |
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1 havereported are the letter grades that were given to 1 A No, | didn't personally see anything beyond
2 various statesin that study. 2 that.
3 Q Okay. | want to particularize alittle bit 3 Q Okay. Thanks. | wonder if you could direct
4 more. 4 your attention to pages 8 and 9 of your report, please.
5 Did you rely upon any of the supporting datain 5 MR. HERRON: Should we read it first?
6 the Fordham study asto the content of the history 6 MR. ROSENBAUM: Read what?
7 curriculum in California versus other states with the 7 MR. HERRON: Pages 8 and 9 before you ask
8 exception of the |etter grade? 8 questions.
9 MR. HERRON: Vague. Object on that basis. 9 MR. ROSENBAUM: Read the whole page?
10 Asked and answered. 10 MR. HERRON: I'm just wondering if you want us
11 THE WITNESS: To the extent that that data 11 toreadit.
12 supportsthe letter grades that they awarded, it is part 12 MR. ROSENBAUM: | amjust turning to -- | will
13 of that information. 13 tell youthe sentence | aminterested in. Y ou can read
14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 14 asmuch asyou would like. Okay?
15 Q Didyou turn that information over, the 15 MR. HERRON: Sure.
16 supporting information on the Fordham study? 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 A That information is available on the Internet. 17 Q I amlooking at the last sentence on page 8,
18 Q Okay. Sitting here today, do you have an 18 Doctor:
19 opinion asto the similarity in the social science 19 "The introductory text to the Vaidity
20 curriculum in high school in California versus the 20 chapter in the 1999 Test Standards states:
21 content of social science curriculum in other states 21 'In educational program evaluations, ...
22 acrossthe country? 22 tests may properly cover material that
23 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. | 23 receives little or no attention in the
24 THE WITNESS: Again, my understanding globally | 24 curriculum, as well as that toward which
25 isthat it ismorerigorousin Californiathan other 25 instruction is directed.™
Page 410 Page 412
1 states. | can't give you a specific comparison topic by 1 Do you see that?
2 topic without having additional information in front of 2 A Yes
3 me 3 Q Okay. Do you agree with that statement?
4 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 4 A Yes
5 Q And the same thing about science, do you have 5 Q Okay. And could you tell me under what
6 anopinion asto the similarity of the content of the 6 circumstances you believe that tests may properly cover
7 science taught in high school in California versus the 7 material that receive no attention in the curriculum?
8 content of science taught in other states across the 8 A Asit statesin the quote, in educational
9 country? 9 program evaluations.
10 A Again, my understanding isthat it is more 10 Q Weéll, when would that be appropriate for
11 rigorousoverall, and for specific topic content | would | 11 educational program evaluations?
12 need additional information in front of me. 12 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 Q Isthere -- Did you rely upon -- Strike that. 13 phrased.
14 Is there supporting data for the Ed Week study? 14 THE WITNESS: | believe the statement speaks
15 A Yes 15 foritself. That activity isappropriate when you are
16 Q Didyou rely on that for your report? 16 doing an educational program evaluation.
17 A | read what they published as part of their 17 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
18 ranking and reporting and the footnotes and so on that 18 Q For what purpose with respect to that
19 went with that. 19 educationa program evaluation may tests properly cover
20 Q Okay. Anything that wasn't in the text of the 20 materialsthat receive no attention in the curriculum?
21 Ed Week survey and report and the footnotes? Didyou | 21 A When an educationa program is being evaluated.
22 read anything other than that? 22 Q And how doesit help evaluate the educational
23 A Areyou specifically asking did | see anything 23 program to test information from material that receive
24  beyond that? 24 no attention in the curriculum?
25 Q Yes 25 A Tofind out what is -- what students are not
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1 learning that is part of material that you expect them 1 Q Isit your testimony that everything that
2 tolearn. 2 appears on the Stanford 9 was taught in California
3 Q Andwhat isthe relationship between that and 3 curriculum at one grade or another?
4 thefact that thistest is covering material that 4 A Not exactly. I'm saying that the content is
5 receives no attention in the curriculum? 5 covered by the standards at that grade level or at an
6 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 6 earlier gradelevel.
7 Vague and ambiguous as to the use of the term “that." 7 Q Sothat'swhat | am saying. Your testimony is
8 THE WITNESS: If you are asking with respect to 8 that all the information tested on the Stanford 9
9 Cadliforniaand the API accountability system, the 9 appearseither at the grade level curriculum at which
10 purposeisto find out the extent to which students are 10 thetestisadministered or an earlier grade levd; is
11 learning the California content standards on a 11 that your testimony?
12 school-by-school basis, grade-by-subject basis; and if 12 A My testimony isthat avery large percentage of
13 that isnot happening, if they have not learned that 13 itis. | would say nearly all. There might be an
14 material, then the intent is for schools to know that 14 exception somewhere for some content, but | would be
15 and to do something about it. 15 surprised.
16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 16 Q And could you state for me fully the basis for
17 Q But the content from the standards, that's 17 that answer, please.
18 material that does receive attention in the curriculum; 18 MR. HERRON: Objection. Calsfora
19 isn't that right? 19 narrative.
20 A Itismaterial that is supposed to be taught in 20 THE WITNESS: The content specifications of
21 thecurriculum. 21 thetest, the format and content of the items, the data
22 Q Allright. And my questiontoyouis: Whenis 22 supporting the test and the test items.
23 it appropriate for atest to cover materia that 23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
24 receives no attention in the curriculum? 24 Q Andyou personally reviewed all of that
25 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered 25 information?
Page 414 Page 416
1 twicebefore. 1 A Yes
2 THE WITNESS: Asl indicated beforein my 2 Q [I'want al of that information, David, please,
3 answer, the purpose of doing a program evaluation isto 3 that has not been turned over.
4 see how well schools are doing at teaching the content, 4 The same thing for CAT6, would your testimony
5 and you may discover that in some schools and in some 5 bethe samefor the CAT6?
6 grades or subjects not everything has been learned that 6 A Thesamething what?
7 isexpected to be learned. 7 Q Isit your testimony that all the information
8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 8 and materials covered on the CAT6 test have been covered
9 Q Arethere materials on the Stanford 9 that have 9 either at the grade level for which the test is being
10 been administered as part of the California assessment 10 administered or aprior grade level?
11 system that receive no attention in California 11 A | believethat to likely betrue. 1 don't have
12 curriculum? Do you know? 12 asmuch personal knowledge about that instrument as| do
13 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguousin | 13 the SATO.
14 theuse of theterm "materials.” 14 Q Widll, | don't want you to be speculating here.
15 THE WITNESS: Asl indicated earlier this 15 Canyou state to me with certainty that that is true?
16 morning, the skillstested on the Stanford either match 16 A Based on my experience and knowledge of norm
17 the content standards or test knowledge and skills that 17 reference tests and how they are constructed, | believe
18 students should have learned at earlier grades. Tothe 18 that to betrue.
19 extent that it is material covered in an earlier grade, 19 Q Okay. And haveyou reviewed -- You gave me a
20 it may bereviewed or not covered in acurrent grade. 20 setof SAT9 -- Stanford 9 sources for your earlier
21 If you are asking me school by schoal, 21 answer. Do you remember that afew moments ago?
22 classroom by classroom and so on, | don't have that 22 A | remember your asking me about what kind of
23 specific information or datain front of me to answer 23 information that was based on.
24 the question that way. 24 Q Okay. What isthe information you are basing
25 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 25 thison, your CAT6 answer?
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1 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. 1 Do you see that?
2 THE WITNESS: Having reviewed the technical 2 A Yes
3 manual for the test and my knowledge and experiencein 3 Q What did you mean by "more targeted
4 thetesting field. 4 assessment”?
5 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 5 A An assessment that measures the content
6 Q Canyoutell me particular portions of the CAT6 6 standardsonly at that grade level.
7 manua you arerelying on? 7 Q Okay. Andin the next sentenceit reads:
8 A Asl indicated to you this morning, | skimmed 8 "But because such standards-based tests
9 and reviewed the entire manual. Some sections| read in 9 required extended time for development,
10 more detail than others. | don't recall specificaly at 10 the state adopted an interim procedure
11 thispoint without looking at it exactly what that would 11 for estimating achievement of the
12 havebeen. 12 California Content Standards.”
13 Q What did you read specifically? 13 Do you see that?
14 A Asl indicated, | don't recall that without 14 A Yes
15 looking at the manual and having it in front of me. 15 Q | will withdraw my question.
16 Q Okay. Dactor, are there any states that have 16 Did you agree with the decision to include
17 opportunity-to-learn criteria, specific OTL criteria 17 augmented test items?
18 that you are aware of ? 18 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered
19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. | 19 thismorning.
20 THE WITNESS: | don't understand what you 20 THE WITNESS: Can you rephrase that, please.
21  mean. 21 MR. ROSENBAUM: Sure.
22 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 22 Q Did you agree with the decision for the
23 Q Haveany states promulgated or legislated or 23 inclusion of augmented test items as part of the tests
24 announced specific opportunity-to-learn standards? 24 administered to students?
25 MR. HERRON: Same objection. 25 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous,
Page 418 Page 420
1 THE WITNESS: States that have high-stakes 1 asked and answered.
2 student assessments collect evidence of opportunity to 2 THE WITNESS: | don't understand what you mean
3 learn to support the use of the test for that purpose. 3 by "including."
4 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 4 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
5 Q Do you know if any state has established 5 Q | believeyou told me this morning that you
6 specific opportunity-to-learn standards? 6 weren't certain if the first time the test was
7 MR. HERRON: That isthe same question you just 7 administered whether or not it included augmented test
8 asked, Mark. Object as asked and answered. 8 items; isthat right?
9 Y ou may respond again. 9 A | wasn't sureif the augmented standards test
10 MR. ROSENBAUM: It wasn't answered 10 first occurred in 1998 or 1999, that's true.
11 responsively. 11 Q Did you agree with the decision to include the
12 THE WITNESS: Same answer. 12 augmented test, as you have just defined it?
13 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 13 A A standards-based test is required under the
14 Q Okay. Directing your attention, please, to 14 statute.
15 page 8 -- Do you havethat in front of you? -- of your 15 Q Wasthere ever any analysis asto how long it
16 report? 16 would take to develop a standards-based test for
17 A Yes 17 Cdifornia?
18 Q Whenyou say -- | am looking at the second 18 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor
19 paragraph here and | am looking at the sentence that 19 speculation.
20 reads-- it isthe second sentencein: 20 THE WITNESS: Yes, | believe so.
21 "To provide a more targeted assessment 21 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
22 of the specific content skills for each 22 Q Andwhat isthe basis of your answer?
23 grade level, the state constructed its 23 A Discussions that occurred with the department
24 own standards-based tests as required by 24 and some of the meetings that | attended.
25 statute." 25 Q Okay. And wasthere atime estimate that was
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1 attached to that? 1 theactua discussions.
2 A | believe there were some time line documents 2 In general, the advantage of waiting is that
3 developed by contractors. 3 youwould have a completely stand-alone test that was
4 Q Okay. And do you remember what those time 4 standardsonly.
5 estimates were? 5 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
6 A | don't recall the specifics of that. 6 Q Okay. And what would be the advantage of
7 Q You state at page 9 that 7 that?
8 "40 to 55 language arts and 15 8 A That it would be a separate instrument and you
9 mathematics Stanford Test items at each 9 wouldn't have to reuse items.
10 grade level were included in the 10 Q What do you mean "reuse items'?
11 augmented tests designed specifically 11 A Using the items out of the standards test
12 to measure California Standards." 12 instead of having a complete set of standards-based
13 Do you see that? 13 items.
14 A Yes. 14 Q Andwhat isthe advantage of that, not having
15 Q Do you know how the number 40 to 55 was 15 toreuseitems?
16 selected? 16 A That you have a completely independent measure
17 A My understanding is the department and the 17 of the standards of that grade and subject area.
18 contractor together made those decisions. 18 Q Andwhat isthe advantage of that?
19 Q Do you know what the basis of those decisions | 19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered
20 were, how that number was arrived at? 20 earlier this morning.
21 A | understand in agenera way. | wasnot privy | 21 Y ou may respond.
22 tothose specific discussions. 22 Vague and ambiguous as to your use of the word
23 Q Can youtell me please your general 23 “advantage."
24 understanding. 24 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure what more to tell
25 A My general understanding was that they didn't | 25 you about that.
Page 422 Page 424
1 yet have enough time to develop enough itemsto have a 1 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay.
2 stand-alone standards test, so they developed the 2 Q Andwhat are the disadvantages of waiting, as
3 standards test using some Stanford items and some that 3 you understood them?
4 had aready been developed and they put together what 4 A That you don't have a standards-based measure
5 they considered the best possible test using that 5 immediately and that the schoolsin the field would not
6 method. 6 havethe information about how those expectations were
7 Q And how about the 15 Stanford Test items, 7 going to be measured and how their students were doing
8 mathematicstest items, do you know how that number was 8 on those expectations.
9 arrived a, the 15? 9 Q Andwhen you say "those expectations,” what do
10 A My understanding was the same procedure. 10 you mean?
11 Q Wasthere ever any discussion about waiting 11 A The standards material that was not being
12 until a stand-alone test could be devel oped, to your 12 measured by the Stanford achievement test.
13 knowledge? 13 THE REPORTER: By the "standard" or --
14 A | believethere was. 14 THE WITNESS: The Stanford -- Stanford 9.
15 Q Okay. And what do you know about that 15 THE REPORTER: Oh. Sorry.
16 discussion? 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 A There were discussions about the advantages and 17 Q You know, you may have explained thisto me
18 disadvantages of doing that. 18 thismorning. | just want to understand it. Canyou
19 Q What isyour understanding of what the 19 takealook at footnote 18 on page 9. It says:
20 advantageswere? 20 "Note that the Stanford Test items
21 MR. HERRON: Y ou mean what was discussed about | 21 were administered and scored intact
22 them? 22 and then responses from selected
23 MR. ROSENBAUM: Either based on the discussions | 23 Stanford Test items were combined
24 or based on your own judgment. 24 with the separately administered
25 THE WITNESS: | don't recall the specifics of 25 augmented items to create a composite
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1 Cdlifornia Standards Test score.” 1 A | don't know what the calendar isthat you
2 Do you see that? 2 referto.
3 A Yes 3 Q Maybeyou just answered this question. Do you
4 Q What doesthat mean? | don't get it. 4 know if schools received them -- Y ou did answer.
5 A It meansthat the standards test consisted of 5 Was there ever any discussion, any meeting you
6 two parts. Part of it was Stanford items and part of it 6 were at about the timing of when schools received the
7 wasitemswritten especialy for the standards test. 7 data, the assessment data?
8 Q That wasn't that hard, wasit. 8 A Yes.
9 At page 8, Doctor, I'm looking, Doctor, at the 9 Q What was the nature of that discussion?
10 second paragraph in the second column. 10 A | don't remember any of the specifics of what
11 "In the early years after state 11 wassaid by anyonein any particular meeting, but the
12 adoption of the new content standards, 12 general notion isthe sooner the better.
13 schools were till in the process of 13 Q What do you mean by "the sooner the better"?
14 adjusting their 'institutional’ programs 14 MR. HERRON: It'sidiom.
15 toinclude all of the new state content 15 THE WITNESS: That it is better to get results
16 standards." 16 back as quickly as possible within accuracy of data
17 Do you see that? 17 reporting.
18 A Yes. Itis"instructiona” programs. 18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
19 Q I'msorry. You're correct. 19 Q Okay. Doesthe state have a choice asto when
20 Do you know how schools were adjusting their | 20 the test can be administered?
21 instructional programsto include al of the new state | 21 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
22 contents standards? 22 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
23 A | don't have personal knowledge of what any 23 Q If you know.
24 particular school district did, but | imagine therewere | 24 A Yes, | believe they do.
25 avariety of common methods used to do that. 25 Q Do you know when the assessment tests are
Page 426 Page 428
1 Q What would those common methods include? 1 administered, again putting aside the High School Exit
2 A Looking at their scope and sequence chartsto 2 Exam?
3 seewhere skills were being taught, looking at 3 A | don't know the exact dates, but | believe it
4 curricular and instructional materials, providing 4 isinthespring.
5 professional development for staff, meetings among 5 Q Okay. Wasthere ever any talk, to your
6 teachersteaching specific grade levels and subject 6 knowledge, about administering them earlier than the
7 matter, especialy at the high school level you might 7 spring?
8 cdll that adepartmental meeting. At the elementary 8 A Yes. | believe there were some discussions
9 level it might be ateam meeting. Those are afew of 9 dong that line.
10 thethingsthat come to mind. 10 Q What was the nature of those discussions as you
11 Q Do you know when the schools received their -- | 11 recall?
12 theresults of their standard assessment test? Put 12 A Again, | don't remember specifics of meetings
13 aside the High School Exit Exam. 13 orindividuals. The general issueishow much
14 A You aretalking about the STAR program? 14 instructional time students have had before they take
15 Q Yes 15 thetest.
16 MR. HERRON: Y ou mean this year? 16 Q Okay. Wasthere ever any discussion about
17 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 17 moving it earlier than the spring?
18 Q Wadll, let's start with this year. 18 A Again, | don't have specific recollection, but
19 A | don't know a specific date, but | believeit 19 | would expect that there was discussion about a number
20 iswithin amonth or two of the conclusion of testing. 20 of different possibilities when the test might be
21 | think in some past yearsit has been sometimein June | 21  administered.
22  maybe, early July. 22 Q Do you have aview asto what is the best time
23 Q Doyou know if traditional calendar year 23 to administer the test?
24 schools are still in session when the results are 24 A | don't believe thereis a single answer to
25 obtained? 25 your question because it depends on the nature of the
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1 testand various policy goals. 1 assessment system?
2 Q If the State of California came to you and 2 A Inorder to give you an answer on that
3 said, "With respect to our STAR system, we would like to 3 question, | would need to have the proposal information
4  administer the test at atime that will maximize our 4 and other information in front of me.
5 abhility to use the results to improve achievement,” what 5 Q And remind me, have you ever looked at that
6 time or timeswould you recommend? 6 materia?
7 A If what you mean by that is maximize their 7 A | was not asked to review those proposals.
8 ability to assess whether students in given grades and 8 Q Soyou have not looked at that material ?
9 subjects have learned the California standards, that 9 A Sameanswer.
10 god by itself would leave oneto giveit aslate as 10 Q I'mnot asking if you were asked to look at
11 possiblein the spring so you would have the most 11 theproposals. | am asking quite directly: Have you
12 instructional time for which students have been taught 12 ever looked at that material?
13 the standards and the most complete information about 13 A | have not seen the proposals that were
14 what they learned during that year. 14 submitted.
15 Q Canyou think of any objectives that would 15 Q Haveyou ever looked at --
16 promote giving the test as early as possible? 16 Y ou told me that you looked at the CAT6
17 MR. HERRON: Same objection. Vague and 17 technical manual; isthat right?
18 ambiguous. 18 A Yes
19 THE WITNESS: One advantage of an earlier 19 Q Haveyou looked at --
20 administration is the ability to get faster turnaround 20 Did the technical manual talk about test
21 from publishers. Their heavy season isin the spring 21 development?
22 because that is when most schools and states administer 22 A Areyou talking about the technical manual for
23 tests. If you were to administer it early, it would 23 the CAT6?
24 probably be possible to get a quicker turnaround of 24 Q VYes.
25 results. 25 A That talks about test development for that
Page 430 Page 432
1 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 1 instrument.
2 Q What is the advantage of getting a quicker 2 Q Right. You have looked at that; right?
3 turnaround? 3 A | havelooked at the technical manual, yes.
4 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered in 4 Q And have you looked at analyses of the
5 part. 5 reliability and the validity of the CAT6 test?
6 THE WITNESS: Having the data sooner after 6 A Yes
7 administration of the test, more contemporaneous with 7 Q And haveyou looked at --
8 that activity. 8 What else have you looked at with respect to
9 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 9 theCAT6?
10 Q Do you have an understanding, Doctor, asto why 10 MR. HERRON: Itisvastly overbroad. Itis
11 the Stanford 9 was replaced? 11 vague and ambiguous.
12 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answeredin | 12 THE WITNESS: If you are asking about data and
13 part. 13 technical information about the CAT®6, | aso have the
14 THE WITNESS: In agenera way. 14 information we looked at this morning in Table 1 about
15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 15 the overlap match of the content standards.
16 Q Could you tell me what your understanding is. 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 A My understanding is the original contract with 17 Q Isthereinformation about the Stanford 9 that
18 Harcor Educational Measurement was afive-year contract | 18 you have looked at that you have not looked at with
19 and that was up for renewal. 19 respect to the CAT6?
20 And when a contract is up for renewal, 20 A Yes
21 proposals are solicited from publishers and those 21 Q Whatisthat?
22 proposals are evaluated and then they select the 22 A | have seen alot more sampleitemsfor the
23 contractor based on that evaluation. 23 Stanford 9 than | have for the CAT®6.
24 Q Canyou see any advantages of utilizing the 24 Q Haveyou seen sampleitemsfor the CAT6?
25 CAT6 as opposed to the Stanford 9 for California's 25 A If I amrecalling correctly, | believe there
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1 aresomein the technical manual. 1 head.
2 Q Okay. Based on your knowledge and experience, 2 Q Canyou name any states today that use the
3 would you recommend replacing the Stanford 9 with the 3 Stanford 9 as part of their statewide assessment
4 CAT6? 4 system?
5 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered 5 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
6 severa times now. 6 THE WITNESS: That'sadifficult question to
7 THE WITNESS: Asl| indicated to you, | can't 7 answer because | have worked in a number of states over
8 giveyou an opinion on that without reviewing the 8 along period of time and my information isn't current
9 proposals that were received. 9 inmany states. | would not want to speculate on
10 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 10 whether something | may have known in the past would
11 Q Assume that the cost would be the same. | 11 till betrueor not. | would want to look up the
12 don't want you to consider economic costs. 12 actual information before | gave you that information.
13 In terms of the test instrument itself, would 13 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
14 you recommend the Stanford 9 over the CAT6 or the CAT6 | 14 Q Where would you look that up?
15 over the Stanford 9? 15 A I'm not absolutely certain whereto find it,
16 MR. HERRON: Objection. Incomplete and 16 but | think some of the work either that Education Week
17 improper hypothetical, asked and answered in the 17 did or CCSSO did may contain that information.
18 question before and several times before that. 18 Q Canyou name me any states today that do not
19 THE WITNESS: Same answer. 19 useanorm reference test as part of their statewide
20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 20 assessment system?
21 Q Haveyou been asked by any state whether or not 21 A You are taking about statewide
22 the state should adopt CAT6 for purposes of it's 22 accountability --
23 assessment system? 23 Q Yes
24 A | don't believe | have ever been asked that 24 A -- system?
25 question directly. 25 | believe Texas does not. They have tests that
Page 434 Page 436
1 Q Indirectly have you? 1 they have constructed at al grade levels and in subject
2 A | don't believe | have been asked that 2 areasthat they test.
3 question. 3 Q Do you know why that is?
4 Q Haveyou -- 4 A They have a state-mandated curriculum.
5 Are there statewide systems that use -- 5 Q Doyou feel competent, Doctor, to tell me any
6 statewide assessment systems that use the Stanford 97 6 advantages of the CATG6 over the Stanford 9 for purposes
7 MR. HERRON: Other, obviously, than California 7 of California's assessment system?

8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 8 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
9 Q Other than California. 9 THE WITNESS: As| aready indicated to you, |
10 A | believe there are other states that have the 10 would need more information in front of me to give you

11 SAT9 asanorm reference component of their statewide 11 anopinion on that.

12 assessment systems. 12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

13 Q Do dl states have norm reference tests as part 13 Q At page9, Doctor, of your report, you state --
14 of their statewide assessment system? 14 I'mlooking at the first paragraph under the subheading,
15 MR. HERRON: Assumes facts not in evidence. 15 "TheCdlifornia Survey Test."

16 Object on that ground. 16 And you write:

17 THE WITNESS: At any given point in time, 17 "The survey test is a shorter form of

18 probably not. Some states have had them and then not 18 the compl ete battery test. Scoresfrom

19 had them or vice versa. 19 the California Test will be linked to

20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 20 performance on the previously-administered

21 Q Today, are there -- 21 Stanford Test."

22 What states are you aware of that use the 22 Do you see that?

23 Stanford 9 as part of their statewide assessment 23 A Yes.

24 system? 24 Q Do you know the methodology that was utilized
25 A | don't have that information off the top of my 25 tolink scores from the Californiatest to performance
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1 onthe Stanford Test? 1 relied on for purposes of this report.
2 A | have seen adescription of that methodol ogy. 2 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
3 Q Andwhat isyour understanding of the 3 Q That may be. But my questiontoyouis: Have
4 methodology that is utilized to link scores from the 4 you heard any criticisms?
5 Californiatest to the scores on the Stanford Test -- to 5 A Sameanswer.
6 performance on the Stanford Test? 6 MR. ROSENBAUM: That's not responsive, David.
7 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor a 7 MR. HERRON: | think you can tell him whether
8 narrative. The words speak for themselves. 8 or not you have heard criticisms of that. | mean, if
9 THE WITNESS: | wouldn't want to attempt to 9 you have, fine. If you haven't, that'sfine, too. It
10 describe that without re-reviewing that document. 10 isnot relevant, but it is his depo time.
11 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 11 THE WITNESS: | don't recall anything specific
12 Q What document are you referring to? 12 about that. It may have been discussed in the Technical
13 A A document that described how that process was 13 Advisory Committee meeting.
14  to be completed. 14 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
15 Q Isthat apublicly available document? 15 Q What do you remember generally about the
16 A | don't know. 16 discussion?
17 MR. ROSENBAUM: | don't think that document was | 17 MR. HERRON: Same objections.
18 turned over to us, David. 18 THE WITNESS: | don't remember anything
19 MR. HERRON: Y ou have not established that she 19 specific about any meeting or any discussion, but it is
20 relied onit for any part of her report. Y ou keep 20 possible that we may have looked at the document and
21 asking for documents, but you need to tie it into her 21 it'stypical when such documents are produced to have
22 report. 22 discussions about them and to talk about ways in which
23 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 23 it might be improved or done differently.
24 Q Didyou rely on that document for any purpose 24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
25 with respect to your report? 25 Q Didyou concern yourself with respect to the
Page 438 Page 440
1 A No. 1 methodology utilized to link scores from the California
2 Q Do you have any criticisms of the methodology 2 test to performance on the Stanford Test?
3 thatisutilized to link scores from the California test 3 MR. HERRON: Objection. She has already
4  to performance on the Stanford Test? 4 answered that many times.
5 MR. HERRON: Objection. Beyond the scope of 5 Y ou can respond again.
6 her report. 6 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
7 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 7 Q | don't mean for purposes of the report. |
8 Q Isthat beyond the scope of your report, 8 mean for purposes of your serving as amember of the
9 Doctor? 9 committee or consultant to the State of California
10 A | have not dealt with that issue in my 10 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered in
11 report. 11 the question before.
12 Q Okay. Didyou ever hear any criticisms 12 THE WITNESS: Asl| indicated, it might have
13 expressed regarding the methodology for linking scores | 13  comeup in the Technical Advisory Committee meeting. |
14 from the Cdliforniatest to the performance on the 14 don't recall anything specific about that.
15 Stanford Test? 15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
16 MR. HERRON: Objection. Irrelevant in light of 16 Q My question isalittle bit different.
17 theanswer to the last question. 17 Did you personally concern yourself as a member
18 Y ou may respond. 18 of the committee with the methodology utilized for
19 THE WITNESS: Again, that isbeyond thescope | 19 linking scores from the Californiatest to performance
20 of thereport. 20 onthe Stanford Test?
21 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 21 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguousin
22 Q My questionis: Have you ever heard any 22 use of theterm "personally concern yourself." Vague
23 criticisms? 23 and ambiguous as phrased. Irrelevant.
24 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 24 Y ou may respond.
25 THE WITNESS: It isnot part of anything | 25 THE WITNESS: | don't understand what you mean
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1 by "concern myself." 1 part of thetest?
2 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 2 A Yes. Youcancdlitessay items, as| did
3 Q | mean wasit amatter that you felt, "l need 3 there.
4 toinvolve mysdlf, | need to explore this methodology, | 4 Q Okay. Haveyou looked at the results of that
5 needtofindoutif | am satisfied with the methodol ogy 5 test, the essay itemstest?
6 utilized." That ismy question to you. 6 MR. HERRON: Vague and ambiguous.
7 A | was not asked to do that. 7 Do you mean has she graded the students
8 Q And you didn't otherwise make any inquiries; is 8 written items?
9 thatright? 9 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
10 A Asl indicated to you, it may have come up in 10 Q I will assume you haven't done the grading; is
11 the Technical Advisory Committee. | believel saw a 11 that right?
12 document that had a description of that processin it 12 A That'strue. | have not graded them.
13 and | read that document. 13 Q Haveyou looked at any of the reports of the
14 Q Did you do anything else? 14  results of students' performance on the essay items part
15 A | may have participated in discussions that 15 of thetest?
16 occurred in the advisory committee meeting. 16 A Yes, | think so.
17 Q Can you recall anything you said? 17 Q Okay. And did you form any judgments or
18 A | don't recall any specifics of that. 18 opinions based on your review in terms of academic
19 Q You areawarethat there isawriting portion 19 performance of the students?
20 of thetest, essay portion of the test? 20 A I'm not prepared to offer any opinion without
21 A Yes 21 having the datain front of me.
22 Q Andthat is part of the standards test? 22 Q Okay. | takeit aspart of your work in
23 A That's my understanding. 23 Cdliforniaand other states you look at results,
24 Q Okay. Do you know to what gradesthat -- Shall | 24 students performance results on assessment tests; is
25 wecdl it thewriting -- What phrase are you 25 that right?
Page 442 Page 444
1 comfortable with? 1 A Yes
2 A Many peoplerefer to it as open-ended items. 2 Q Why do you do that?
3 Q Okay. How about you, isthat what you call it? 3 A For avariety of purposes.
4 A Sometimes. 4 Q Why don't you tell me what that variety of
5 Q Doyou cdl it anything else? 5 purposes consists of ?
6 A It depends on the state that | am working in. 6 A Sometimesit is part of a Technical Advisory
7 Some states have separate writing tests and they call it 7 Committee meeting. Sometimesit's part of some work
8 thewriting test. 8 that | am doing, such as preparing an expert witness
9 Q Cadiforniahas an open-ended item test; isthat 9 reportinacase.
10 right? 10 Q Why would it be part of your preparing an
11 A | would need to look at information, | think, 11 expert report for a case?
12 torefresh my memory about the specifics of what grades | 12 A Todescribe a program or support factual
13 and what items are included. 13 assertions.
14 Q Wadll, let medirect you to page 9. Right above 14 Q Doyou ever look at results, student
15 whereit says"The California Survey Test," do you see 15 performance results to make a determination as to
16 whereit says: 16 whether or not -- how the assessment system is working?
17 "A writing Standards Test utilizing 17 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
18 essay itemsis administered in grades 18 THE WITNESS: | don't understand what you mean
19 4 and 7 as part of the language arts 19 about how it isworking.
20 Standards Test." 20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
21 MR. HERRON: Thanks. That's helpful. 21 Q Do you ever look at the results of a student's
22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 22 performance because you are concerned about how students
23 Q Do you seethat? 23 aredoing?
24 A Yes. 24 MR. HERRON: Same objection.
25 Q That iswhat you mean by the open-ended items 25 THE WITNESS: Statewide assessments are given
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because the state is concerned about how students are
doing and how well schools are teaching the content of
the standards that they measure.

BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

Q Do you personaly ever look at student
performance data to determine how well schools are
teaching their standards?

MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
THE WITNESS: Asl indicated, | often look at
statewide data in the preparation for reports or as part
of Technical Advisory Committee meetings and
discussions.
BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

Q And do you ever -- For those reasons, do you
ever look at student performance results on statewide
assessment tests to make a judgment as to how well
schools are teaching standards?

MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
Vague and ambiguous.

MR. ROSENBAUM: Itisredly a"yes' or "no"
guestion.

MR. HERRON: Not theway it is phrased.

MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes, itis.

THE WITNESS: | agree with David, not the way
itis phrased. That isthe purpose for which states
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You have said it is the State's prerogative to
look at those results to see how well schools are
teaching standards, that is not within my purview. Is
that afair assessment?

A Itiswithin the State's purview to make the
ultimate judgment.

Q Do you make any judgment as to how well schools
are teaching standards based on review of student
performance data on assessment tests?

MR. HERRON: As part of her psychometric works?
BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

Q Aspart of your consultation work with the
states or as part of your work in this case.

A | think those discussions occur from time to
timein Technical Advisory Committee meetings.

Q Haveyou ever looked at California's
performance results on the statewide assessment test --
| garbled that question. Strike that.

Have you ever looked at student performance
results on California's assessment test for purposes of
evaluating how well state schools are teaching
standards in California?

MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.

THE WITNESS: | have looked at data that
indicates changes over time in performance on the
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give those tests. The purposes for which Technical
Advisory Committees look at them isin judging the
overall psychometric defensibility of the exam.

BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

Q Haveyou ever looked at student performance
results to make a judgment asto how well schools are
teaching standards?

MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
Mixing your terms, Mark. Vague and ambiguous for that
reason.

THE WITNESS: It isthe state that makes
judgments about their schools.

BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

Q Haveyou ever made those judgments about state
schools?

A | have advised states about psychometric issues
relevant to the assessments they use to make those
judgments, sometimes on statistical issuesrelated to
collection of data. It isthe State's prerogative to
make judgments about their own schools.

Q Soyou have looked at the results for purposes
of psychometric defensibility; isthisafair statement?

A That's one purpose of looking at it, yes.

Q And maybe you just answered the question two
guestions ago, but | just want to be clear.
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California assessment instruments.
BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
Q | appreciate that as an empirical description.
But I'm asking you: Have you ever taken alook at
results, performance results of California students on
statewide assessments as part of the STAR system for
purposes of making ajudgment as to how well the schools
are teaching the studentsin California?
A | believe| have dready answered that as
completely as| am able to.
Q Bear with me and just -- If you just could
answer that, | would appreciate it.
MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
THE WITNESS: Asl indicated, | have given you
the most complete answer | can. Same answer aswhéat |
have aready said.
MR. ROSENBAUM: | don't know which answer you
arereferring to, Doctor. | am just trying to get an
answer here.
MR. HERRON: Y ou have the answer several
times. | don't know what she can do for you, Mark. If
you don't like the answer, we can't help you. But you
have asked it many, many times. She has answered many,
many times.
MR. ROSENBAUM: She hastold me what states do.
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1 MR. HERRON: | will tell you what, why don't 1 MR. HERRON: Y ou have asked a number of those
2 you pose the question and we will answer it one last 2 questionsand it is time wasting and unnecessary.
3 time, if that is satisfactory. 3 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
4 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 4 Q Go ahead.
5 Q Doaoctor, have you -- 5 MR. HERRON: If you can possibly respond, feel
6 Well, actually for purposes of this case, 6 free. Thenwe aregoing to need to take abreak. We
7 haveyou looked at student performance results on 7 have been going over an hour.
8 statewide assessment testsin order to make a judgment 8 THE WITNESS: What | can say in terms of the
9 asto how well state schools are teaching standardsin 9 datathat | reported in my expert witness report is that
10 Cdifornia? 10 schoolsdiffer greatly in their performance, districts
11 MR. HERRON: Asked and answered. The report 11 differ greatly in their performance. Some do better
12 speaksfor itself. 12 than the state average, some do worse than the state
13 THE WITNESS: | actually have a number of 13 average. Some do better with certain groups of
14 tablesthat report some of that information, some 14 students, some do worse with certain groups of
15 dtatewide data, some data at the district level, some 15 students.
16 dataat the school level. 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 17 Q Do you have aview asto why that is?
18 Q How well do you think schools are teaching the 18 MR. HERRON: The report speaksfor itself.
19 standardsin California, Doctor? 19 All the same objections. Thisisthelast question.
20 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. | 20 THE WITNESS: | don't think there is one
21 Asked and answered. 21 single answer.
22 THE WITNESS: That isfar too broad to answer 22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
23 inonequestion. 23 Q Téell mewhat you think are the reasons why that
24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 24 is, if you know?
25 Q Téell meyour views asto how well schools are 25 MR. HERRON: It isvague and ambiguous.
Page 450 Page 452
1 teaching standardsin California. 1 MR. ROSENBAUM: Infact, let melay a
2 MR. HERRON: Same objections. Overbroad. 2 foundational question.
3 Vagueastotime. 3 Q Have you undertaken any investigation in order
4 THE WITNESS: Onewould need to limitthattoa | 4 to determine the causes of those differences?
5 subject, to agrade. 5 MR. HERRON: Vague and ambiguous. All the same
6 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 6 objections.
7 Q Okay. How well are schools teaching the 7 THE WITNESS: | have not presented any data
8 language arts? 8 about causation in my report.
9 MR. HERRON: Objection. Calls-- 9 MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. We can take a break.
10 MR. ROSENBAUM: Excuse me a second. 10 MR. HERRON: Thank you.
11 MR. HERRON: Excuse me. 11 (Recess taken.)
12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
13 Q How well are California schools teaching 13 Q Doctor, regarding the essay item component of
14 standardsin elementary school in mathematics? 14 thetedt, you referenceit on page 9, do you agree with
15 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor 15 that inclusion, the inclusion of an essay item
16 speculation. 16 component?
17 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 17 A Essay items are generally considered the best
18 Q Do you have aview about that? 18 way to measure direct writing skills.
19 MR. HERRON: The elementary school -- if | 19 Q Do you think that isimportant to find out how
20 could finish my objection. The elementary school has 20 students are doing with respect to direct writing
21 1100 school districts statewide. It has about 3 million 21 skills?
22 students. So overbroad, vague and ambiguous, calls for 22 A Asl understand it, that is an important part
23 gpeculation. Redly, it'sjust an unfair question and | 23 of the standards in California and the purpose of the
24  believethat'swhat it isintended by it. 24 department in having those items on the test.
25 MR. ROSENBAUM: That is not true. 25 Q Canl direct your attention, please, to
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1 footnote 22. It ison page 10. 1 MR. HERRON: Callsfor speculation.

2 "Note that although traditional 2 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

3 algebra 1 content is now part of the 3 Q If you know.

4 California math content standards for 4 A | don't have any other information about that

5 grade 8, many students do not take an 5 atthistime.

6 algebra course until high school." 6 Q At the present time, Doctor, do you know how

7 Do you see that? 7 many states have statewide curriculum standards?

8 A Yes 8 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered, |

9 Q Do you know the number or the percent of 9 believe.

10 students who do not take an algebra course until high 10 THE WITNESS: | believe that they are under
11 school? 11 developmentin al statesat thistime.
12 A No, | don't have that data. 12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
13 Q Didyou make any inquiry to find out? 13 Q Do you know at the present time how many states
14 MR. HERRON: Mark, | couldn't hear your 14 have statewide standards that have been devel oped?
15 question. 15 A | am aware that the federal government has
16 MR. ROSENBAUM: "Didyou make any inquiryto | 16 approved plans submitted by all of the states for
17 find out." 17 meeting the NCLB requirements, and the first component
18 MR. HERRON: Oh. 18 of that isto have statewide standards either in place
19 THE WITNESS: | did not request that data. 19 or under development that will be in place very
20 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 20 shortly.
21 Q Okay. What isthe basis of footnote 227 21 Q Okay. But my question iswith respect to the
22 A Pretty much what it says. Algebrain the past 22 first part of your answer.
23 hastraditionally been a high school course and some of 23 Do you know how many are actually in place, how
24 that content has now been moved to grade 8. 24 many states actually have the standards in place?
25 Q 1 guess my question could have been better 25 A | couldn't give you have an exact number
Page 454 Page 456

1 stated. 1 without looking at additional data.

2 Do you know what the source for your assertion 2 Q Doyou know if half the states have?

3 that many students do not take an algebra course until 3 A | wouldn't want to hazard a guess on that

4 high school is? 4 without looking at more information.

5 A Thefact that the content has been moved from 5 Q Have you compared the percent of test items

6 itstraditional place to amuch earlier placein the 6 that are aligned with state standards in any state other

7 curriculum, and thereis atransition period when that 7 than Cdlifornia? I'm referring to statewide assessment

8 happensto get that content to students who will have 8 tests.

9 traditionally waited until high school to take that 9 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague as phrased.
10 material and may not be ready to take it until high 10 THE WITNESS: | am aware of datain other
11 school. 11 statesthat answer that question.

12 Q Do you know why that is? Haveyou exploredwhy | 12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:

13 that isthat they are not ready to take it before high 13 Q What other states?

14 school? Have you looked at the causes? 14 A Texas

15 A | don't have any specific information for 15 Q Any other states?

16 specific students or schooals, but the general issueis 16 A Minnesota.

17 getting al of the prerequisite material first. 17 Q Any other states?

18 Q Do you know -- Do you have any information as 18 A Asl indicated to you, | have worked for alot
19 towhy all students don't have the prerequisite material 19 of statesover the years and | have seen other data.
20 first? 20 Nothing specific comesto mind at this point.

21 A That goesto what we just talked about, that 21 Q InMinnesota, can you tell me what the

22 the content has moved from alater grade to an earlier 22 percent of test items aligned with state standards
23 grade and you have students who are caught in that 23 isonthe statewide assessment test in the area of
24 transition as that change occurs. 24 mathematics?

25 Q Any other reasons? 25 A Which tests are you referring to?
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1 Q What are the statewide assessment testsin 1 thesource for that information.
2 Minnesota? 2 One of the sources for the Table 7 datais the
3 A They have aHigh School Exit Exam. 3 2003 Ed Week study; isthat right?
4 Well, let me state, | am probably not in the 4 A Yes.
5 best position to tell you what the new planis. There 5 Q And | just want to understand your process.
6 obviously isanew plan under the NCLB requirements. | 6 Wasthe 2003 --
7 know what they had before. They had tests at elementary 7 When you read that study, how did you decide
8 and middle school and high school as required under the 8 which information you were going to put in your report
9 oldlaw. 9 and which information you were not going to includein
10 Q Do you know what the percent alignment was 10 your report from that study?
11 under that? 11 A The study that you are referring to, that issue
12 MR. HERRON: | believe she talks about two 12 caled quality counts, isavery lengthy document, has
13 tedts. 13 many, many tablesin it and alot of information.
14 Which one? 14 What | attempted to do was summarize
15 MR. ROSENBAUM: Not the High School Exit Exam. | 15 information that was relevant to the comparisons that |
16 THE WITNESS: The other tests were standards 16 wasmaking in terms of the standards and accountability
17 tests developed specifically for the state program. 17 systemsin the states. | obviously couldn't put it all
18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 18 inmy report, butitisall intheorigina.
19 Q Sothey arelike Texas? 19 Q Werethere any analyses by Ed Week in that
20 A Inthe sense of being locally developed within 20 study which ranked Californiain the middle or towards
21 thestate, yes. 21 the end of the states with respect to its assessment or
22 Q Isoneof thefactorsin the Ed Week study the 22 accountability systems?
23 percent alignment of test items with state standards? 23 MR. HERRON: Prior to her response to that
24 A | would haveto relook at that information to 24 question, we would like to take you up on your offer
25 answer it in detail about the criteriathat they used. 25 that she could read portions of her report. It would be
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1 Q Did the Ed Week study have any criticisms of 1 useful for usto read Table 7 before she responds, if
2 Cdifornias assessment system? 2 that'sokay.
3 MR. HERRON: Objection. The report speaks for 3 MR. ROSENBAUM: Sure.
4 itsdf. 4 MR. HERRON: Do you have the question in mind?
5 THE WITNESS: Again, | would need to review 5 THE WITNESS: | was going to ask him to reask
6 that information before giving you an opinion about what 6 it if youwould.
7 wascontainedinit. 7 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 8 Q Inthe quality counts report --
9 Q While you were preparing your report, Doctor, 9 That iswhat you cited here; is that right?
10 how did you decide what portions of the Ed Week survey | 10 A | cited that as a source for the datathat is
11 you were going to focus on in your report? 11 presentedin Table7.
12 A What portions of what survey? 12 Q Wasthere any ranking or discussion of
13 Q The Ed Week study that we are talking about. 13 Cadlifornia's assessment system in comparison to other
14 A Areyou talking about the information reported 14 states which you regarded as not favorable to
15 inatablein my report? 15 Cadlifornia?
16 Q | want to understand your process here. You 16 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
17 read the Ed Week study; isthat right? 17 THE WITNESS: | don't recall al the specifics
18 A Widll, | haveread alot of different Ed Week 18 of that without looking at it again. Asyou can see
19 studies. 19 from the footnote there that talks about Ed Week
20 Q Theonethat isreferenced in your report. 20 criteria, there were a number of different areas on
21 A | don't remember wherethat is. 21 which they gave ratings and what | did was report the
22 A Okay. You aretaking about the information 22 summary or the overal rating that combined all of that
23 presented in Table 7? 23 information and | don't recall specificaly where
24 Q Okay. I'm not actually talking about the 24 Cdiforniaranked on each and every one of those
25 information presented in Table 7. | am talking about 25 variables.
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1 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 1 A Setting a cut score isn't a psychometric
2 Q Okay. Did you personally have any involvement 2 process where you can simply say what the equation is or
3 through your consultation work or your other work onthe | 3 plug some numbersinto something and get an answer. It
4 TAC committee with the setting of cut scoresfor the 4 isajudgmental process. And all of the information
5 High School Exit Exam? 5 that comesto the board from stakeholders involves
6 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. 6 judgments on their basis and the state board uses that
7 THE WITNESS: That topic was discussed in the 7 information together with performance datato make a
8 Technical Advisory Committee meetings. 8 final judgmental decision that is the standard.
9 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 9 Q Didyou have aview asto where the score
10 Q Okay. And did you agree with the decision to 10 should be set, you personally?
11 placethe cut score where it presently is on the High 11 A Asl indicated, thereisn't a psychometric
12 School Exit Exam? 12 answer tothis. Itisapolicy question and my job asa
13 MR. HERRON: Same objection. 13 psychometrician isto help them gather and explain
14 THE WITNESS: Setting a standard isa 14 relevant datato the decision-maker.
15 judgmental process and the ultimate responsibility 15 Q But did you yourself have aview asto where
16 resides with the entity that has the authority to do 16 thescore should beset? Thatisjusta"Yes' or "No."
17 that, the State Board in this case. 17 MR. HERRON: Weéll, that's your view.
18 Typically, the department and others give 18 Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
19 guidance. Inthat, there aretypically also methods 19 Y ou may respond.
20 that are used to solicit judgment from educators, in 20 THE WITNESS: | did not participate in the
21 particular teachers, and the TAC committee looked at the | 21 judgmental activity that would lead to one making a
22 availableinformation and had discussions with the 22 decision likethat. | assisted in understanding and
23 department and the board about the content of that 23 interpreting data and processes used on that. It wasn't
24 information. 24 my function to tell them where the standard ought to be
25 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 25 et
Page 462 Page 464
1 Q What are the psychometric considerationsin 1 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
2 setting acut score for a High School Exit Exam? 2 Q Okay. Didthe TAC committee recommend a
3 A The most important consideration is the process 3 particular cut score?
4 that isused and adequate documentation of the process 4 A Not that | recall.
5 andthe qudification of the participants that engagein 5 Q The assessment test, asfar asthe STAR
6 it for purposes of collecting what you are probably 6 program, there are different proficiency levels; isthat
7 thinking of as a specific standard-setting methodol ogy 7 correct?
8 data 8 A If you are talking about the standards tests,
9 Also, it isimportant to have multiple sources 9 thereare several cut scores set that lead to various
10 of dataand information and have the entity that is 10 categories of performance.
11 setting the final standard, making the final decision 11 Q Okay. Andwereyou involved in setting those
12 fully informed. 12 cut scores, you personally?
13 Q What do you mean "multiple sources of data'? 13 A | don't understand your question.
14 A Theinformation that comes out of a 14 Q Youjust told me, if | understood you
15 standard-setting process by educatorsis one piece of 15 correctly, that there were certain levels with respect
16 information to advise and inform the board about where 16 to the assessment test, the standards test; is that
17 the standard might be set. Thereisinformation that is 17 right?
18 part of that standard-setting that is useful for the 18 MR. HERRON: Misconstrues prior testimony.
19 boardto have. Thereisalso other information and 19 THE WITNESS: | think the best way to
20 opinions and recommendations of other stakeholdersthat | 20 understand thisisto look at atable that has that
21 arerelevant. 21 informationinit.
22 Q And are there other psychometric 22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
23 considerations besides the process that you just 23 Q Right.
24 described in setting a cut score for aHigh School Exit 24 A I'msorry. Itisachart. ItisChart 8.
25 Exam? 25 Q Okay.
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1 A And on the top on the |eft-hand side under 1 itemshere?
2 "Standards Test," it gives the names assigned to each of 2 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.
3 thoselevels. 3 THE WITNESS: Thereis nothing that | am aware
4 Q Okay. And are there cut scores associated with 4 of inthetest standards that would contradict any of
5 each of those levels, Advanced, Proficient, Basic, Below 5 thesedecisions.
6 Basic and Far Below Basic, for each subject area? 6 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
7 A There are cut scores that divide students at 7 Q Regarding No. 7, do you see that?
8 the boundary between those categorizations. 8 A Yes.
9 Q Wereyouinvolved in setting those cut 9 Q What isyour understanding of the meaning of
10 scores? 10 thephrase asit appears here, "Student-level
11 A The Technical Advisory Committee was involved 11 longitudinal data'?
12 inthe sameway | aready described to you. 12 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered
13 Q Evaluating the process, securing al 13 thismorning.
14 information relevant to the process. 14 Y ou may respond again.
15 Am | understanding that summary correct? 15 THE WITNESS: That involves collection of data
16 A And discussing and assisting the department in 16 overtime.
17 putting together data and interpretations for the State 17 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
18 Board that made the final decisions. 18 Q Atastudent level, per student; right?
19 Q Wereyouinvolved in setting the weighting 19 A Yes
20 factors? 20 Q Hasthat been donein California?
21 A The weighting factors were determined by the 21 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
22 PSAA Advisory Committee, together with recommendations | 22 Vague and ambiguous.
23 from thetechnical group. 23 THE WITNESS: The current accountability system
24 Q Wereyouinvolved in those group 24 uses cross-sectional cohorts of students. There had
25 recommendations? 25 been discussions about developing longitudinal
Page 466 Page 468
1 A No. 1 comparisonsthat may be done by some of the larger
2 Q Why isthat? 2 school districts who could analyze their data that way
3 A I'm not amember of either group. 3 if they choseto do so. I'm not aware of whether or not
4 Q Okay. 4 they have done that.
5 A | think | should clarify what | just told you. 5 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
6 It was those two groups that made the 6 Q Hasthe State done it?
7 recommendations to the board, who again made the final 7 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
8 decision. 8 THE WITNESS: My understanding isthat they
9 Q Canyou turnto page 12, please, of your 9 havetalked about doing that. There may have been pilot
10 report, specifically referencing, Doctor, part of the 10 studiesdone, but | don't believe they are currently
11 second paragraph, the second paragraph on page 12, "The | 11 doing it on a statewide basis.
12 12 guiding principles for development stated that the 12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
13 API," and then you have a colon and you quote the 12 13 Q Do you know why that is?
14 guiding principles; isthat right? 14 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor
15 A | have quoted that directly. 15 speculation.
16 Q Okay. And as a psychometrician, do you agree 16 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure what the current
17 with these 12 principles as principles for devel opment 17 state of that project is at this point.
18 of aninstrument like API? 18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
19 A Many of the principles embody policy decisions, 19 Q Okay. Do you know for afact that pilot
20 and | support developing instruments that conformtothe | 20 studies have been conducted?
21 policy decisions that are made by the State. 21 A | just know that they have been considering
22 Q Arethere any principles here that you think 22 thatissue. | don't know specifically what has been
23 areat odds with professiona psychometrician 23 done.
24  standards? 24 Q Whois"they"?
25 MR. HERRON: Y ou are talking about the 12 25 A The department.
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1 Q Do you know who in the department in 1 THE WITNESS: My understanding is that the
2 paticular? 2 department is considering the option of doing that and
3 A I'mnot sure who is responsible for that. 3 looking into the technical feasibility of doing so.
4 Q Doyou have aview asto whether or not there 4 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
5 isany valueto collecting student-level longitudinal 5 Q Do you know why it is doing that?
6 datafor purposes of the State's assessment system and 6 A That No. 7 that you are talking about isin
7 accountability program? 7 there because the committees that put this together
8 MR. HERRON: I'msorry. Could | have that read 8 thought it was an important area to consider.
9 back. 9 And | don't know for sure about any
10 (Record read as follows: 10 particular individual's motivation, but | would expect
11 "Question: Do you have aview asto 11 that the department would follow up on it on that
12 whether or not there is any value to 12 basis.
13 collecting student-level longitudinal 13 Q Doyou feel that it iswithin your area of
14 datafor purposes of the State's 14 expertise to have a viewpoint as to the value of using
15 assessment system and accountability 15 student-level longitudinal datafor the purposes
16 program?"') 16 articulated in the act?
17 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered | 17 Isthat within your area of expertise to make
18 severd times. 18 that sort of judgment call?
19 THE WITNESS: That depends on the specific 19 A Again, that isapolicy decision, so it is not
20 purpose of the assessment. 20 up to meto make the decision.
21 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 21 What | can do is help in the discussions of
22 Q Widl, we have talked at length about the 22 advantages and disadvantages and thinking about how the
23 purpose of the state assessment system. Y ou have 23 datawould be used doing it in different ways and how to
24 pointed me to the portion of your report where you 24  make that accurate.
25 describe this, your understanding of the purpose. 25 Q Butinterms of giving an opinion as to what
Page 470 Page 472
1 Do you remember that? 1 vyouthink isthe most -- whether or not the State ought
2 A | believe we looked at the statutory language. 2 todo that, you don't feel that that is within your
3 Q Regarding the statutory language that you 3 purview; isthat correct?
4 pointed to me, do you think there isvaluein collecting 4 A My view isthat thereisn't any one right way
5 student-level longitudina data? 5 todoit, soitisnot appropriate for metotell a
6 A If you look at the language that you were 6 state what policy decisionsthey ought to make, only to
7 referring to, the primary purpose was to identify 7 help them do well, whatever they choose to do.
8 individual academic strengths and weaknesses for 8 Q InNo. 8 on page 12, what is your understanding
9 individua students. Students are getting that 9 of the meaning of the phrase "component indicators'?
10 information every year as they pass through the system 10 A | believe that that isreferring to the API,
11 dready. 11 which appears before the colon in the text before that
12 So asfar as parents are concerned and as far 12 information, and the components are at this point the
13 asschools and districts are concerned, they have that 13 teststhat are weighted to get the total API score.
14 tracking information. 14 Q Why do you say "at this point"?
15 In terms of the part about determining the 15 A Thereisconsideration of adding additional
16 effectiveness of school districts and schools, that is 16 components or additional indicators in the future.
17 oneway tolook at the effectiveness of schoals. Itis 17 Q Okay. Do you support adding additional
18 not the only way to do so and, again, that is a State 18 indicators?
19 policy decision asto which method they choose to use. 19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous,
20 Q And you think the State of California has 20 callsfor speculation, not relevant.
21 chosen not to use student-level longitudinal datafor 21 THE WITNESS:. Again, itisapolicy decision
22 that purpose? 22 what to include in the system.
23 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. | 23 Itis part of the statute that various
24 Misconstrues prior testimony, vague and ambiguous, 24 components are to be considered for addition when they
25 callsfor speculation. 25 arevalid and reliable.
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1 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 1 andlearning, and we are going to have an index as part
2 Q My questionisalittle bit different. Put 2 of our assessment system. We would like to know whether
3 asidethe statute. 3 or not you think that index should include information
4 As apsychometrician, based on your expertise, 4 that incorporates contextual and background indicators.
5 doyou have aview asto whether or not additional 5 "What do you think? Do you think we should do
6 component indicators should be added? 6 that?'
7 A My role asapsychometrician in that issueis 7 MR. HERRON: Thereis no question yet.
8 todead with the validity and reliability and technical 8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
9 aspects of various components. But as| said, itisa 9 Q Thequestionis: "Do you think we should make
10 policy issueand it isultimately up to the 10 part of our accountability index information which
11 decision-maker, the State Board, to decide which 11 incorporates contextual and background indicators based
12 componentsto include. 12 on your experience and training, Doctor"?
13 | can provide guidance on thinking about issues 13 MR. HERRON: And the question iswhat would she
14 of whether the component isvalid and reliable, whether | 14 say in response to that inquiry?
15 it meetsthe statutory criteriafor consideration. 15 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.
16 Q Okay. Looking at No. 10 -- Strike that. 16 MR. HERRON: | will have the same objections.
17 Do you know what component indicators, 17 Y ou may respond.
18 additional component indicators are now under 18 THE WITNESS: In the consulting that | do,
19 consideration in California? 19 typically the way it works s the state tells me what
20 A |think | gavealist. 20 they want to measure, what they have already decided
21 Q That'sokay. We can come back to that. | know | 21 that they are going to measure, and then my job isto
22 what you are referring to. 22 help them do that in a psychometrically defensible way.
23 Number 10, what is your understanding of the 23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
24 meaning of the phrase "contextual and background 24 Q Okay. | am asking you --
25 indicators beyond those required by law"? 25 If you feel likethisis out of your area of
Page 474 Page 476
1 A My recollection is that there was text that 1 expertise, just tell methat. Maybe | will just ask you
2 went with thislist in this report that it came from and 2 that question.
3 | don't recal for sure, but it may be that it described 3 Do you feel it iswithin your area of expertise
4 inthere what they had in mind. | would want to look at 4 to have ajudgment asto whether or not an index for an
5 that. That would be the best characterization of what 5 assessment system as part of the statewide
6 they weretalking about there. 6 accountability program should include information
7 Q If astate cameto you and said, "Doctor, we 7 incorporating contextual and background indicators?
8 don't have a statute that spells out contextual and 8 Isthat the sort of thing that you could form a
9 background indicators, but we would like your view asto 9 judgment on independent of what indicators the state
10 whether or not you think our API-like index should 10 choosesto consider?
11 include contextual and background indicators," what do 11 A That isthe type of judgment that is not formed
12 you think -- 12 inavacuum.
13 A Again, what goesinto -- 13 Y ou have to look at how the accountability
14 Q --for purposes of improving student 14 systemisgoing to be used and what sorts of things the
15 achievement? 15 state wantsto measure, and ultimately it isapolicy
16 MR. HERRON: Objection. Incomplete, improper 16 decision about which particular things they do want to
17 hypothetical. No questionisthere. Counsel is 17 include or not include.
18 testifying, vague and ambiguous, calls for speculation. 18 What | can do is help them think about how to
19 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat that question, 19 include aparticular type of information or measure a
20 please? 20 particular type of information well and whether or not
21 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 21 it will help serve a particular purpose that they have
22 Q Sure. A state comesto you and says, "We are 22 inmind.
23 setting up an assessment and accountability system, that 23 If you notice under item 2 in that same list,
24 the purpose of which isto identify individual academic 24 it says, "must emphasize student performance, not
25 strengths and weaknesses in order to improve teaching 25 educational processes.” If you choose to measure
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1 performance, you are looking at different kinds of 1 Advisory Committee meetings in which avariety of types
2 information than you would be looking at if you choose 2 of data, variables and information have been discussed
3 to measure processes. 3 asinformation that might be included in an
4 Q The state says here, "We want to emphasize 4 accountability system.
5 student performance and the overall purpose of our 5 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
6 assessment systemisto identify individual academic 6 Q Okay. Haveyou ever expressed aview asto
7 strengths and weaknesses in order to improve teaching 7 whether or not particular indicators should, in fact, be
8 and learning and to determine the effectiveness of 8 included?
9 school districts and schools as measured by the extent 9 A | don't recall specific comments about that,
10 to which pupils demonstrate knowledge of the fundamental | 10 but | expect that we discussed issues about validity and
11 academic skills aswell as the ability to apply those 11 reliability in relationship to purpose, availability of
12 sKills. 12 dataand other factors that would relate to states
13 I'm obviously reading to you from the STAR 13 making decisions such asthat.
14 system. 14 Q Assuming you could obtain reliable and valid
15 | am saying to you if they come to you and they 15 data, do you have aview asto what indicators -- what
16 say, "Thisiswhat our system -- Thisistheintent of 16 contextual and background indicators, if any, should be
17 our system. Do you think we should include as part of 17 included as part of a comprehensive accountability
18 our overall accountability system contextual and 18 system statewide?
19 background indicators,” isthat something you have a 19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Incomplete, improper
20 view on? 20 hypothetical, calls for speculation.
21 A Your gquestion has confused -- 21 THE WITNESS: As| dready indicated to you, |
22 MR. HERRON: Same objection. 22 would have to know alot more about the accountability
23 Go ahead. 23 system and how it isfunctioning in that state to be
24 THE WITNESS: Y our question has confused two 24 ableto address that issue.
25 different things. Y ou read me the purpose of an 25 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
Page 478 Page 480
1 assessment system and that purpose clearly talks about 1 Q What would you need to know?
2 academic skills or academic outcomes and the best 2 A Asl indicated, how the accountability system
3 measure of that information, that is, the knowledge and 3 worksand functionsin that state.
4 skillsto be taught from the standardsin this 4 Q They say it workslike California’s.
5 hypothetical state, would be some type of standardized 5 MR. HERRON: Pardon me?
6 assessment. 6 MR. ROSENBAUM: They say it works and functions
7 Now, when you shift gears and start talking 7 like Cdifornias.
8 about an accountability system, one might have 8 MR. HERRON: No question pending.
9 information related to student acquisition of the 9 THE WITNESS: What isthe question?
10 knowledge and skills and depending on how the 10 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
11 accountability and assessment system functions, you 11 Q Thequestionis: Arethere particular
12 might also have other kinds of information that might be | 12 contextual and background indicators that you believe
13 collected. 13 should beincluded as part of the accountability system?
14 So | would need to know something about how 14 MR. HERRON: Oneidentical to Californias?
15 they were implementing that accountability system and 15 MR. ROSENBAUM: Correct.
16 how they might use thisinformation that they are 16 THE WITNESS: In Cdlifornia, the components to
17 considering collecting as part of that system. 17 beincluded are specified in the statute.
18 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
19 Q Haveyou ever been asked the question, Doctor, 19 Q I'mnot asking you what a legislator or
20 for purposes of an accountability system what sort of 20 legidators thought.
21 contextua and background indicators ought to be 21 | am asking what you think as an expert in this
22 incorporated into that system? 22 area, if you have aview.
23 MR. HERRON: Thelast five questions. 23 A | am suggesting to you that that is part of the
24 MR. ROSENBAUM: That's not true. 24 background of the answer and the question, you have to
25 THE WITNESS: | have been in Technical 25 ook and see what the statute in the state requires, you
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1 haveto see how the accountability system is going to 1 A You are asking a question, in my judgment, that
2 function, what decisions they are going to make, what 2 iscontradictory because you are asking me what | think
3 consequences they intend to attach to that information, 3 should beincluded, but then you are saying that it is
4 how it isgoing to operate. 4 reliable and valid and that is the criteria by which any
5 Q Why don't you assume the answer to al of your 5 potential component that might be added is to be judged.
6 questionsisexactly like California except that the 6 And so my first inquiry would always be for any
7 statute does not prescribe any particular background or 7 variable what evidence do you have of itsvalidity and
8 component indicators. 8 reliability. Youwant to look at that and make some
9 MR. HERRON: No question pending. 9 judgment about that.
10 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 10 If it meets those criteria, then it iseligible
11 Q Thequestionis: First of all, do you fed it 11 forinclusion and then it is a matter of apolicy
12 iswithin your expertise and knowledge to recommendthe | 12 decision about including it to serve a particular
13 inclusion of particular contextual and background 13 purpose.
14 indicators as part of the state's accountability 14 Q Say the committee said to you, "We are
15 system? 15 thinking about different options here. What background
16 A Your hypothetical doesn't make sense to me 16 and contextual indicators should we look at to determine
17 because the way California's accountability system has 17 whether or not they are reliable and valid for purposes
18 been operationalized is adirect result of the statutory 18 of inclusionin the overall accountability system?*
19 language that established it, and in most states there 19 Do you fedl capable of answering that
20 isstatutory language that establishes how their 20 question?
21 accountability system is going to operate. And one 21 A Thefirst question | would ask them in return
22 awayshasto start from that first, so | don't know how 22 is"What isthe purpose of adding variables? What isit
23 totakethat away and then say that it islike 23 that you want to do or measure?’
24 Cdifornia 24 Q Samepurposethat islaid out in California's
25 Q Doctor, the California system legidatively 25 system.
Page 482 Page 484
1 taksabout theinclusion of certain contextual and 1 A That purpose has to be stated more explicitly
2 background indicators beyond those required by law; is 2 thanthat. That isagenera purpose. You need to say
3 thatright? 3 specifically what kind of datayou are seeking or what
4 A Thelanguage that you are reading came out of a 4 types of decisions you want to make differently than
5 framework for the API that was developed by the PSAA 5 what you are dready doing.
6 Advisory Committee and the technical design group that, 6 Q Doctor, are there any local accountability
7 tothe best of my knowledge, is not a quote from the 7 systemsin Californiathat you are aware of in the
8 dsatutory language. Thisisinformation that they 8 schooal districtsin the public school system?
9 developed. 9 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague. Vague asto
10 Q The Advisory Committee has talked about the 10 time, vague as phrased.
11 inclusion of certain ‘components and background 11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
12 indicatorsthat are not required by law; isn't that 12 Q At the present time.
13  right? 13 MR. HERRON: Y ou may respond.
14 MR. HERRON: Contextual. 14 THE WITNESS: Can you tell me what you mean by
15 MR. ROSENBAUM: Contextual. Yes. 15 "local accountability systems'?
16 THE WITNESS: Sincethey put it in the 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 framework, | assume they had such discussions. 17 Q Sure. Takealook at number 12 on page 12.
18 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 18 MR. HERRON: On page 12.
19 Q Okay. Arethereany -- If they cameto you -- 19 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
20 If the committee came to you and said, "Based 20 Q What isyour understanding of the meaning of
21 onyour training and experience, are there any 21 thephrase "local accountability systems' asit appears
22 contextual and background indicators beyond those 22 in number 12 on page 12?
23 that arerequired by law that you think we ought to 23 A Inagenera way | --
24 include," and assume that they would be reliable and 24 Again, without being part of the committee
25 valid? 25 discussions here and without having had a chance to
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1 review again the text which may give greater explanation 1 Q Do you know to what extent, if any, it is used
2 thanthat, | would expect in agenera way that that 2 for the purpose you stated in any local districtin
3 would be any accountability type measures and programs | 3 Cdifornia?
4 that might be developed in alocal school district. 4 MR. HERRON: Vague and ambiguous as phrased and
5 Those could take many forms, | would expect. 5 your use of the term "it."
6 Q Do you know if any such systemsexistin 6 THE WITNESS: Asl indicated, | have seen data
7 Cdifornia? 7 reports produced by San Francisco Unified School
8 A I'm not aware of the specifics of any 8 District which address that question and it ismy
9 particular program, but | know that local districts, 9 assumption they produce those in order to assist schools
10 especialy the large ones, do alot of data analysis of 10 inimproving the learning of their students.
11 their own data; and to the extent that that isused in 11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
12 order to help their schools improve teaching and 12 Q Do you think that San Francisco hasaloca
13 learning, one might consider that aform of 13 accountability system? Do you have any basis -- Strike
14 accountability on alocal level. 14 that.
15 Q Do you know for afact whether or not that 15 Do you consider that San Francisco has alocal
16 occursinany local school districtsin California? 16 accountability system?
17 A I'mawarein the past of data produced by local 17 MR. HERRON: "Consider that"? Vague and
18 schooal digtricts. 18 ambiguous.
19 Q What dataisthat? 19 THE WITNESS: What | know iswhat | just told
20 A For example, | have seen reports produced by 20 you, that they do collect and analyze their own data.
21 San Francisco Unified School District. 21 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
22 Q What isthe nature of those reports? 22 Q Do you consider that alocal accountability
23 A It hasbeen alongtimesince | looked at 23 system, Doctor?
24 those. | don't recall specifically what isin them, but 24 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered.
25 itwasan analysisof their test score datain their 25 THE WITNESS: | consider that aform of
Page 486 Page 488
1 district. 1 accountability, to look at your own test data and use
2 Q How long ago wasthat? 2 that to attempt to improve what is happening in your
3 A Two to three years ago. 3 local school district.
4 Q Okay. Do you consider, based on any of the 4 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
5 reports or data that you have seen, that there exists 5 Q Do you know what, if anything, San Francisco
6 any loca accountability systemsin California? 6 has done with that data besides publish a report?
7 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered 7 A | don't have any personal knowledge of how that
8 several times now. 8 isusedinthedistrict.
9 THE WITNESS: | think | have aready told you 9 Q Haveyou ever made any inquiry to find out?
10 what | know about that topic. 10 MR. HERRON: Irrelevant. Object on that
11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 11 basis.
12 Q | can have your answer read back to you and | 12 Y ou may respond.
13 can stay aslong asyou want. Y our phrase may be -- 13 THE WITNESS: | have not talked to anybody in
14 MR. HERRON: Haveit read back. 14 thedistrict about that.
15 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let'shaveyour questionread | 15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
16 back two questions ago. 16 Q Any reason why not?
17 (Record read as follows: 17 MR. HERRON: Yeah. Becauseit has nothing --
18 "Question: What isthe nature of those 18 MR. ROSENBAUM: Stopit.
19 reports? 19 MR. HERRON: -- to do with the case.
20 "Answer: It has been along time since 20 MR. ROSENBAUM: Stop it.
21 | looked at those. | don't recall 21 MR. HERRON: That'swhy. You stopit. Don't
22 specifically what isin them, but it 22 yell at me. Don't raise your voice.
23 was an analysis of their test score data 23 MR. ROSENBAUM: Don't coach your witness.
24 intheir district.") 24 MR. HERRON: I'm not coaching her.
25 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 25 MR. ROSENBAUM: It isclear you are not
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1 confident in her answers. Y ou have been coaching her 1 disagreement with any of the characteristics that are
2 dl day. 2 used in the similar schools index for purposes of that
3 MR. HERRON: No. Absolutely not. I'm 3 index asyou understand it?
4 completely confident. 4 A 1 don't understand what you mean by
5 MR. ROSENBAUM: Sure. That's how you can tell 5 "disagreement."
6 when you feel awitnessisn't responding the way you 6 Q Any--
7 want, you start giving her coaching. 7 A They are specified.
8 MR. HERRON: Why do you have to go into 8 Q I'msorry. | didn't mean to cut you off. Go
9 gpeechesall thetime, Mark? Thisisn't very fun. 9 ahead.
10 MR. ROSENBAUM: Go ahead. 10 A | justsaid, "They are specified."
11 MR. HERRON: Why don't you ask anew question | 11 Q Right. But asapsychometrician, if someone
12 rather than the same question over and over and over 12 cameto you and said, "We would like to set up asimilar
13 again, and then focus on something relevant and we will 13 schoolsindex for the purpose -- same purpose as
14  get done with this depo sometime this century, please. 14 Cdiforniahad" -- Strike that.
15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 15 What do you understand the purpose of
16 Q Any reason why you haven't made such an 16 Cdlifornias similar school index to be?
17 inquiry, Doctor? 17 A Toalow schools to be weighted and compared to
18 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous, | 18 schoolsthat have similar demographics.
19 asked and answered, irrelevant to the case. 19 Q And any of the characteristics that are
20 Y ou may respond. 20 included presently in the index, do you feel that those
21 THE WITNESS: It wasn't part of the data that | 21 characteristics should be removed for the purpose you
22 was collecting to produce in my report. 22 stated?
23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 23 A | don't understand your question. The statute
24 Q Let medirect your attention to page 14, 24 specifies them and the statute is being followed.
25 please 25 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let's go off the record for a
Page 490 Page 492
1 At the end of the chart, Doctor, where it says 1 minute. Isittimefor abreak.
2 "Elementary/Middle School APl Weights," doyou seethat? | 2 MR. HERRON: Yes. We are getting awfully
3 A Yes 3 closg, if you don't mind.
4 Q What does NPR stand for? Isthat National 4 MR. ROSENBAUM: Sure.
5 Percentile Ranks? 5 MR. HERRON: Great.
6 A Yes, itisdown inthe corner by the asterisk. 6 (Recess taken.)
7 Q Isthere some reason why it doesn't include -- 7 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
8 it doesn't state California percentile ranks? 8 Q Areyoudoing al right, Doctor?
9 A These weights were used with the Stanford ] A Yes | am.
10 Achievement Test in the API calculation and that test 10 Q Doctor, if you could please turn your attention
11 reports national percentile ranks and that is what was 11 topagel?.
12 used. 12 And | am looking, Doctor, at the final
13 Q Okay. Did you have any involvement, Doctor, in 13 paragraph of your report on that page. In particular
14 the establishment of the characteristics that are 14 the sentence that says:
15 utilized to produce a similar schoolsindex in 15 "To calculate the annual school growth,
16 Cadifornia? Do you know what | am referring to? 16 the base and growth year APIs must
17 A I think | do. Those characteristics were 17 consist of the same content area tests
18 specified in the statute. 18 weighted in the same proportions.”
19 Q Okay. And haveyou ever undertaken any inquiry 19 Do you see that?
20 orinvestigation to find out why the legislature 20 A Yes
21 selected particular characteristics that were, in fact, 21 Q Why isthat?
22 selected? 22 A Sothat they are comparable.
23 A | have not read the legidlative history, so | 23 Q Andwhy isitimportant that they are
24 do not know what wasin the legislators minds. 24 comparable?
25 Q Asapsychometrician, do you have any 25 A In order to measure growth or change between
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1 two time points, the measure must include the same 1 vyouaretaking about.
2 components. 2 Q Themethodology -- Strike that.
3 Q And now on the next page: 3 Look at footnote 55. Do you see that?
4 "However, when anew test is added 4 A Yes.
5 to the API, to provide an appropriate 5 Q Whereit says, "To date, these scaling
6 base year API for the following year, 6 adjustments have been very small."
7 the current APl must be recalculated 7 Do you seethat?
8 to include the new test with adjusted 8 A Yes, | seethat.
9 content areaweights." 9 Q Do you know what the scaling adjustments have
10 Do you see that? 10 beento date?
11 A Yes 11 A If you are asking me about the exact numbers, |
12 Q Whyisthat? 12 don't know those off the top of my head.
13 A So that the measure of those will be 13 Q Will there be a scaling adjustment for the
14 comparable. 14 switch from the Stanford 9 to the CAT6?
15 Q And the definition of "comparable"? What is 15 A Every time anew measure is added to the API,
16 your definition of "comparable"? 16 thereisan adjustment that occurs.
17 A Asitindicatesin that sentence, including the 17 Q And that would include a scaling adjustment?
18 same components, using the same weights. 18 A That isthe adjustment | am referring to.
19 Q From apsychometrics point of view, is 19 Q Hasthe scaling adjustment been calculated or
20 there -- do you have any concern about using scaling | 20 determined yet for the change from the Stanford 9 to the
21 adjustments? 21 CAT6?
22 A What kind of scaling adjustments? 22 A | don't know yet --
23 Q First of dl, what is a scaling adjustment? 23 MR. HERRON: Callsfor speculation.
24 A | don't know what you mean. 24 THE WITNESS: | don't know if that work has
25 Q Haveyou ever used that phrase? 25 been completed yet.
Page 494 Page 496
1 A Standardized tests are scaled and equated from 1 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
2 form to form and sometimes year to year. 2 Q Have you made any inquiry to find out?
3 Q Do you know what a scaling adjustment is, 3 A | have not talked to anyone about that.
4 Doctor? 4 Q Any reason why not?
5 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. 5 A | didn't have any need to do that.
6 THE WITNESS: It'stypically aconstant that is 6 Q Could you pleaseturnto page 19. And
7 added to atest score to put it on acommon scale. 7 directing your attention to the second paragraph. It
8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 8 carries over to the second column.
9 Q I'msorry. What isit again? 9 "Within each content area at the
10 A A constant that is added to an item or test 10 elementary and middle school levels,
11 scoreto put it on acommon scale. 11 80 percent of the weight was assigned
12 Q Okay. And had that been done with respect to 12 to the standards test and 20 percent
13 the APl in Cdifornia? 13 to the Stanford Test."
14 A TheAPl isn't atest. The Stanford Achievement 14 Do you see that?
15 Test and the CAT6 that isreplacing it have had an 15 A Yes
16 equating study done to place some on a common scale. 16 Q Okay. Wasyour committee involved in the
17 Q Do you have any concern as a psychometrician 17 determination of those levels, that is, 80 percent to
18 with the use of scaling adjustments? 18 the standardstest and 20 percent to the Stanford Test?
19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague. 19 A | don't recall making any specific
20 THE WITNESS: Therearealot of psychometric | 20 recommendation, but | believe the issue was probably
21 issues associated with the scaling and equating of 21 discussed at the meeting.
22 tests. 22 Q Okay. What do you recall about that
23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 23 discussion?
24 Q What are those psychometric issues? 24 A | don't recall any of the specifics of that
25 A That depends on the particular methodology that | 25 discussion.
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1 Q Doyou recal anything generally about the 1 the policy maker to decide based on the pros and cons.
2 discussion? 2 My view was that the board made a reasonable decision.
3 A Thediscussion, | expect, would have generaly 3 Q Didyou have a preference?
4 been about the pros and cons of weighting one component 4 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered
5 more than another. 5 last two questions. Same question.
6 Q Didyou personally agree with the assignment of 6 THE WITNESS: Same answer.
7 80 percent to the standards test and 20 percent to the 7 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
8 Stanford Test? 8 Q Do you know where the 80/20 numbers came from?
9 MR. HERRON: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 9 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague. Asked and
10 evidence. 10 answered in part.
11 THE WITNESS:. That decision is very consistent 11 THE WITNESS: | don't know what was
12 with the desire to have the accountability system 12 gpecificaly in their mind when they made that
13 reflect the standards test to the greatest extent 13 particular decision.
14 possible. 14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
15 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 15 Q The next sentence on page 19.
16 Q What isyour understanding of why the desireis 16 "At the high school level in the
17 to haveit to the greatest extent possible? 17 content areas of language arts and
18 A Because the standards tests specifically 18 mathematics, 69 percent of the weight
19 measure dl of the California standards at a particular 19 was assigned to the standards test,
20 gradelevel. 20 19 percent to the High School Exit
21 Q Wasthere any talk about having 100 percent of 21 Exam and 12 percent to the Stanford
22 theweight assigned to the standards test and zero 22 Test."
23 percent to the Stanford Test? 23 Do you see that?
24 A That's an option that may have been 24 A Yes
25 considered. 25 Q Do you know how those numbers were arrived at?
Page 498 Page 500
1 Q Did you have aviewpoint as to what was 1 A There aretwo issuesin that weighting, the
2 preferable, 100 percent or 80 percent assigned to the 2 weighting between the norm reference test and the
3 sandardstest? 3 standards test and then also the weighting between
4 A Again, | don't have a specific recollection of 4 specific subject areas, and | don't recall the specifics
5 what was said in that particular meeting. But, again, | 5 of it, but | believein the minutes of the board meeting
6 expect that the pros and cons of doing that were 6 thereisarecord of extensive discussion about how
7 explored. 7 thosethings might be weighted that had to do with the
8 Q My questiontoyouis. Didyou personally have 8 amount of instructional time devoted to the subject
9 aview, based on your experience and training, as to 9 aress.
10 whether or not the weight assigned to the standards test 10 In mathematics | believe they said it isfairly
11 should have been 100 percent as opposed to 80 percent? 11 even. Studentstakeindividua coursesin these
12 A Asl understand it, the board chose to keep 12 subjects -- subject areas. And then again between the
13 weight on the standards test because it measured 13 standards test and the norm reference test, the goal was
14 students at the bottom end of the achievement continuum | 14  to give maximum weight to the standards test as quickly
15 and it measures prereguisite and enabling skills 15 aspossible, but preserve some weight on the norm
16 important for achievement of the California content 16 reference test in order to continue to have a good
17 standards, and | think that is a reasonable position for 17 measure of students at the bottom end of the achievement
18 them to take. 18 continuum.
19 Q Didyou have aview asto what percent should 19 Q Looking at page 19, "With the addition” -- I'm
20 beassigned to the standards test and what percent to 20 looking at the last paragraph on your page.
21 the Stanford Test? 21 "With the addition of the Language Arts
22 A | did not recommend any specific percent to 22 standards test in 2001, the Stanford
23 anyone. 23 Test weight decreased from 100 percent
24 Q Didyou have aparticular view? 24 to the 64 percent at the elementary and
25 A Again, that'sapolicy question that was up to 25 middle school levels and from 100 percent
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1 to 76 percent at the high school level." 1 standardstest weight," what would you have said?
2 Do you see that? 2 A My understanding is that at the elementary and
3 A Yes 3 middle school level, there was a desire to preserve the
4 Q Didyou agree with the decision to decrease 4 relationship between language arts and mathematics as
5 those rates as reported here? 5 they had determined instructional priorities, and |
6 A Again, my understanding was that the board was 6 believethat the way they did this was to preserve those
7 working toward increasing the weight given to the 7 ratiosinthe process of giving most of the weight or a
8 standardstest and decreasing the witness on the NRT 8 large portion of the weight to the standards test, and
9 test, and | think the way that they went about this was 9 that seemslike areasonable thing to do. | think what
10 reasonable. 10 they did was reasonable.
11 Q Andwhy isthat? 11 Q Do you know how cheating is detected in other
12 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague. 12 states besides California with respect to statewide
13 THE WITNESS: They systematically added 13 assessment tests?
14 standards tests when they became valid and reliableand | 14 A | have some knowledge of what other states do
15 each timethey add a standards test in a content area, 15 inthat regard.
16 they put the majority of the weight on the standards 16 Q What states?
17 test and decrease the weight on the NRT exam. 17 A Various states that | have worked in over the
18 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 18 years.
19 Q |If the board had said to you -- Strike that. 19 Q Do you know what isdone in Texas?
20 Did the board say to you, "Doctor" -- or any 20 A Yes.
21 D.O.E. officia say to you, "How much do you think we | 21 Q What isdone?
22 should decrease the Stanford Test weight"? 22 A Texas hasavariety of methods that they
23 A | don't recall being asked that question. 23 utilize. They have a special set of individuals who
24 Q If the board had asked you that question with 24 receive and investigate complaints about any alleged
25 respect to after the addition of the language arts 25 chesating incident and then action is taken, if
Page 502 Page 504
1 standardstestin 2001, if the board had said to you, 1 warranted, against the individual or individuals that
2 "What amount, if any, do you think we should decrease 2 areinvolved intheincident if it is confirmed.
3 the Stanford Test weight at the elementary and middle 3 They aso do aratio anaysis looking for
4 school levels," what would your answer have been? 4 unexpected patterns within the data that is used to flag
5 MR. HERRON: Objection. Incomplete and 5 schools or districts or sets of scoresin a particular
6 improper hypothetical. Areyou saying with the same 6 areafor further investigation.
7 purpose to be achieved? 7 Q Anything else in Texasthat you are aware of ?
8 MR. ROSENBAUM: Of course. 8 A That'sal | recall at the moment.
9 MR. HERRON: Do you understand his question? 9 MR. HERRON: Sometimes they are executed for
10 THE WITNESS: Not very well. Would you 10 that stuff in Texas.
11 rephrasethat or repeat it, please. 11 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 12 Q Couldyou turnto Chart 9, please.
13 Q Sure. If the board executive director had said 13 MR. HERRON: Chart 9?
14 toyou, "Dr. Phillips, we have added the language arts 14 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.
15 standardstestin 2001. You are familiar with our 15 All right. Thank you.
16 assessment system and you are familiar with our 16 Q Do you have an understanding, Doctor, asto
17 accountability program. Do you think we should decrease | 17 whether or not this six-year plan is on course for all
18 theweight of the Stanford Test at the elementary and 18 theitemslisted?
19 middle schoolslevels," what would you have said? 19 A Atthistimel don't know what, if any,
20 A The API framework document specifically sets 20 decisions have been made about 2003, 2004. Up to this
21 that up asagoal of the program to do that. So it 21 point, the exams have been added as shown in this chart
22 seemsvery reasonable to me for the board to do that in 22 through 2002, 2003.
23 keeping with their origina plan to do so. 23 Q Canyoutel mewhy for 2004 the first bullet
24 Q And if the executive director had then said to 24  says"Stanford Test"?
25 you, "How much do you think we should decrease the 25 MR. HERRON: Where? I'm sorry. 20047?
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1 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes. 1 A No. Not without additional data.
2 THE WITNESS: | think that is because this 2 Q Did you ever make any inquiry to find out?
3 report was completed before afinal decision was made. 3 A | don't think | had any data that would give me
4 I'mnot sureif | had the information about the new 4 that information.
5 test. 5 Q Did you ever seek any datato give you that
6 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 6 information?
7 Q Thesix-year plan, am | correct, Doctor, 7 A | did not attempt to make that calculation.
8 presumed that the Stanford Test would continue through 8 Q Did you do any analysis to determine the
9 2006; isthat right? 9 socioeconomic status of the 3,145 schools?
10 A Andthat isclearly not true. They have chosen 10 MR. HERRON: Y ou can read any portion of your
11 thenew test and that new test is now being incorporated | 11 report, if you want, before you respond to these
12 into the API and this chart predated that and did not 12 questions. He has not given you an opportunity to
13 reflect that. 13 review anything.
14 MR. HERRON: Sorry. 2004. 14 MR. ROSENBAUM: That's not true.
15 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes. 15 MR. HERRON: So fedl free.
16 Q Didyou ever hear any specific criticisms of 16 MR. ROSENBAUM: | said throughout my questions
17 the Stanford Test for purposes of Californiasassesment | 17 any time you want.
18 system? 18 MR. HERRON: You areright, Mark. You are
19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. | 19 right. You have said that. | appreciate that.
20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 20 THE WITNESS: Intermsof eligibility for the
21 Q I am asking adifferent question. 1'm asking 21 program to which thistable refers, schools had to bein
22 whether or not you ever heard any specific criticismsof | 22 the bottom five deciles and they had to fail to meet
23 theuse of the Stanford Test for purposes of 23 their growth targets, both the overall and the
24 Cdlifornia's assessment system? 24 comparable improvement targets. And | think itis
25 A Not that | canrecall. 25 probably fair to say that there were probably more low
Page 506 Page 508
1 Q Did you have any criticisms of the use of the 1 SESschools-- schools with more low SES studentsin
2 Stanford Test? 2 them that met those criteria.
3 MR. HERRON: Vague astotime. | object on 3 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
4 that basis. 4 Q My question was different. Did you make any
5 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 5 inquiry to determine the SES status of the eligible
6 Q Atany point. 6 schoolsin Cohort 1?
7 A | think the board made areasonable judgmentto | 7 MR. HERRON: At any time?
8 usetheavailable NRT test in the beginning of the 8 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
9 program and to phase in standards tests as they were 9 Q Atany point.
10 developed and became valid and reliable. 10 A 1 didn't collect any specific data on that.
11 Q That's not responsive. 11 Q Did you ever seek any data regarding the SES
12 Q Let medirect your attention, Doctor, to page 12 status of the eligible schoolsin Cohort 1?
13 22 of your report, please. 13 MR. HERRON: Schools don't have SES status.
14 Q Doyou havethat in front of you? 14 MR. ROSENBAUM: Actually, they do. | will be
15 A Yes. 15 glad to modify to include students. The SES status of
16 Q | would appreciate, Doctor, if you could look 16 students. Title 1 has SES status, but | am glad to
17 atthelittletable that is at the top of the second 17 modify the question.
18 column on page 22. 18 MR. HERRON: Can you kind of raise your voice
19 Do you see that? 19 just slightly.
20 A Yes. 20 MR. ROSENBAUM: Sure.
21 Q Okay. Cohort 1, there were 3,145 schools that 21 THE WITNESS: | think | may have seen
22 wereedligible for the intervention program,; is that 22 information about that somewhere maybe in the evaluation
23 right? 23 report, but | don't recall any of it specifically so |
24 A That'swhat isreported in the table. 24 can't really say for sure.
25 Q Do you know how many students that reflects? 25 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
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1 Q Isthere any reason why you didn't include that 1 scope of your report?
2 datainyour report? 2 A My purposein this section of the report was to
3 A My purposein including this table was to 3 provide aconcise summary of the intervention program
4 summarize the number of eligible schools, the number out 4  associated with the accountability system. It was not
5 of that who chose to apply and the number that were 5 intended to be exhaustive of all information and data
6 selected. 6 that might be available or might be collected about the
7 Q Of the 3,145 that are eligible, you report that 7 program.
8 1,423 applied. Am | reading your chart correctly? 8 Q Would you be interested in the reasons why
9 A Yes 9 schoolsin Cohort 1 that were eligible for participation
10 Q That is45 percent of the 3,145 schools that 10 intheintervention program did not apply?
11 applied; isthat right? 11 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
12 A Would you say that one more time, please. 12 You mean as apersonal matter or aresearch matter or a
13 Q Sure. Am| reading your chart correctly, 45 13 matter of a psychometrician?
14 percent of 3,145 schools eligible with respect to Cohort 14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
15 1 applied? 15 Q Inyour professional capacity.
16 A Yes 16 A That's not a psychometric question, but it is
17 Q Didyou ever do any investigation or inquiry to 17 aninteresting policy question.
18 determine why the schools that did not apply, the 55 18 Q Do you know of anyonein the State of
19 percent, did not apply for participation in the 19 Cadliforniathat isinvestigating that question?
20 intervention program? 20 MR. HERRON: Y ou have aready asked her that.
21 A | do not have any information about that. 21 Objection. Asked and answered.
22 Q Did you ever make any attempt to obtain such 22 THE WITNESS:. Asl said, | don't know if
23 information? 23 anyone has done that.
24 A Not that | recall. 24 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
25 Q Do you know, Doctor, whether or not anyonein 25 Q Did that subject ever come up in any of your
Page 510 Page 512
1 the State of California has attempted to determine the 1 TAC meetings, the question being why schoolsthat are
2 reasons why 55 percent of the schools that were eligible | 2  €ligible for participation in the intervention program
3 inCohort 1 did not apply? 3 arenot applying?
4 MR. HERRON: Objection. Callsfor speculation, 4 A TheTAC did not deal with the intervention
5 broad, vague. 5 program. We dealt with the assessments.
6 THE WITNESS: | don't know if anyone has done 6 Q Okay. Now, in Cohort 1, you also indicate that
7 that. 7 there were 430 schools selected; isthat correct?
8 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 8 A Yes.
9 Q Do you know if anyone has attempted to find out 9 Q And that represents 14 percent of the eligible
10 why any of the schoolsin Cohort 1 that were eligible 10 schoals; isthat right?
11 did not apply -- in fact, did not apply? 11 A No. | think that's the percent selected out of
12 MR. HERRON: Same objections. 12 those that applied.
13 THE WITNESS: | don't know if anyone hasdone | 13 Q Okay. | wascurious about that. I'm not sure
14 that. 14 that'sright.
15 BY MR.ROSENBAUM: 15 A Wadll, I'm not sure that's right either.
16 Q Isthere any reason why you did not attempt to 16 MR. HERRON: Do you want me to break out my
17 obtain information as to why schoolsin Cohort 1 that 17 caculator again?
18 weredligible for participation in the intervention 18 THE WITNESS: It probably is eligible because
19 program did not apply? 19 it would be about athird --
20 A That was not within the scope of what | was 20 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
21 covering in the report. 21 Q Yes. If youlook at --
22 Q Why isthat? 22 A -- of theonesthat applied. Yes, | think that
23 MR. HERRON: Why iswhat? 23 itisright. Itis percentage of the eligible ones.
24 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 24 Q Do you know, Doctor, what the criteriafor
25 Q Why do you consider that not to be within the 25 selection was that was utilized to pick these 430
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1 schools? 1 can ask you the same questions again. | just want to
2 A | have seen information about that, but | 2 seeif your answersare as| stated.
3 don't remember it specifically at this point without 3 A If | understand what you are asking me, | don't
4  reviewingit. 4 know why schools that were eligible in Cohorts 2 and 3
5 Q What information are you referring to? 5 did not apply for the program.
6 A Therel think was a document on the department 6 Q With respect to the 430 number, that isthe
7 web site about the program and thereis also the 7 number selected each year?
8 evauator'sreport. And | don't recall for sure where | 8 A Yes
9 might have seen it, but probably in one of those two 9 Q Do you know how that number was arrived at?
10 documents. 10 MR. HERRON: Callsfor speculation despite the
11 Q Didyou rely on what you saw on the web site 11 way itisphrased. Object on that basis.
12 and the other documents that you just referenced for 12 Y ou may respond.
13 purposes of thisreport? | am dealing with -- | don't 13 THE WITNESS: | don't recall for sure, but |
14 want to make this overbroad. I'm dealing with the 14 think that was specified in the statute about how this
15 criteriathat | was questioning you about, the selection 15 program wasto work.
16 criteria 16 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
17 A | read and looked at all of that information 17 Q Do you know where the number 430 came from?
18 for purposes of familiarizing myself with the program 18 A My genera understanding isthat it had to do
19 andthen | tried to summarize and highlight information | 19 with the amount of resources available to support the
20 in order to describe the program. 20 program.
21 Q Isthere any reason why you didn't include a 21 Q Okay. Did you have any involvement in terms of
22 description of the selection criteriain your report? 22 the determination of that number, 4307
23 A Asl indicated, thisisjust intended to be a 23 A No.
24 capsule summary of that portion of the accountability 24 Q Did you have any involvement in terms of the
25 system, and | clearly couldn't be exhaustive and include | 25 determination of the resources available?
Page 514 Page 516
1 everything and I made some judgments about what to 1 A No.
2 include here. Much of the information about that 2 Q Do you have aview asto whether or not the
3 programisvery lengthy and very extensive and it would 3 resources available for the intervention program are
4 havetaken alot of spaceto include al of that. 4 adequate for the purposes of the statute?
5 Q Okay. Maybeyou just answered it if you could 5 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague. Incomplete and
6 justtell methat. | am not just talking about page 6 improper hypothetical. Callsfor speculation.
7 22. | amtalking about the entirety of your report. 7 Y ou may respond.
8 Is there any reason that you did not include 8 THE WITNESS: | don't have enough information
9 either an enumeration or asummary of the selection 9 tooffer an opinion on that at this point.
10 criteriaanywherein your report? 10 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
11 MR. HERRON: Mischaracterizesthe document. It | 11 Q What information would you need to offer an
12 speaksfor itself. 12 opinion?
13 THE WITNESS: | think | have said all | can 13 A | would need more information about how those
14 say about how | put this together to answer that 14 numbers were determined and budgetary information.
15 question. 15 Q What budgetary information would you want?
16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 16 A I'mnot --
17 Q Now, if | ask you the same questions basically 17 MR. HERRON: Objection. Calsfor
18 that | just got through asking you with respect to 18 speculation. Itisan unfair question.
19 Cohorts2 and 3, and | am referring to my questions as 19 THE WITNESS: I'm not really sure without going
20 towhy schoolsthat were eligible did not apply and the 20 back and studying the program and how it operates and
21 selection criteria utilized to select schoals, can 21 just looking at alot more information about that and
22 you -- would your answers be the same, that is, that you 22 refreshing my memory about it to even give you agood
23 don't know why schools that applied -- why there were 23 answer. | just know | am not in aposition to have
24 schoolsthat were eligible that did not apply and that 24 enough information to answer that question.
25 you did not specifically investigate that question? | 25 BY MR.ROSENBAUM:
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1 Q Whenyou said in your last answer "to be sure 1 your report whether or not schoolsthat are eligible in
2 how it operates," what did you mean by that? 2 Cohort 2 were dso eligible in Cohort 1?
3 A May | have that read back again. 3 MR. HERRON: Misconstrues prior testimony.
4 Q Sure 4 Object on that basis. Vague and ambiguous, calsfor
5 A I'm not sure what the context is of what you 5 speculation, not relevant. Not even interesting.
6 areasking me. 6 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let me ask you to please stop
7 Q Sure. 7 interrupting.
8 Could the witness's last answer before this one 8 MR. HERRON: These questions are so far afield.
9 beread back to her, please. 9 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
10 (Record read as follows: 10 Q Go ahead.
11 "Answer: I'm not really sure without 11 MR. HERRON: It isredly outside the subject
12 going back and studying the program and 12 of her testimony.
13 how it operates and just looking at a 13 Y ou may respond.
14 lot more information about that and 14 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
15 refreshing my memory about it to even 15 Q Doctor, | will beglad -- Why don't you
16 give you agood answer. | just know | 16 respond. Go ahead. I'm sorry.
17 am not in a position to have enough 17 A Theanswer isthe same aswhat | explained
18 information to answer that question. 18 earlier about this part of the report being intended to
19 "Question: When you said in your last 19 summarize the components of the APl and the
20 answer "to be sure how it operates,” what 20 accountability system and as such it is a capsule
21 did you mean by that?") 21 summary and not intended to be exhaustive or
22 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 22 comprehensive.
23 Q My question, Doctor, is; What did you meanby | 23 Q | just want to be clear for my last question.
24  the phrase how it operates in the context of your 24 I'm not asking why it didn't appear on page 22 in the
25 answer? 25 section, I'm asking why the information that | am
Page 518 Page 520
1 A | wasthinking about information about the 1 talking about didn't appear anywhere in your report.
2 program and about how it works, essentially what isin 2 Didyou understand that to be my question?
3 those two documents that we talked about earlier. 3 A | don't understand how that is different than
4 Q Directing your attention to the table on page 4 what you asked me that | already responded to.
5 22. InCohort 2, do you see the number under "Eligible 5 Q Sure
6 936"? 6 MR. HERRON: Can we take atwo- or three- or
7 A Yes 7 four-minute break here when we get a chance?
8 Q And3,145isright aboveit? 8 THE WITNESS: | could use ancther break,
9 A Yes 9 actudly.
10 Q Cohort 1. Areany of the schools -- 10 MR. ROSENBAUM: Go right ahead.
11 Do you know, Doctor, if any of the schools -- 11 (Recess taken.)
12 any of the 936 schools are among the 3,145 schools? 12 MR. ROSENBAUM: Back on the record.
13 A | don't have any specific information about 13 Q Still looking at this chart, Doctor, on page
14 that, but it wouldn't be unreasonable if that happened. 14 22. If welook at Cohorts 1, 2 and 3. Do you have that
15 Q Okay. Have you ever made any specific inquiry 15 infront of you now?
16 to determine whether or not any of the 936 schoolswere | 16 A Yes.
17 among the 3,145 schools? 17 Q Do you know how many different schools are
18 A | don't believe | have any data to answer that 18 represented by the 3,145 plus the 936 plus the 1,266?
19 question, butitis possibleit could have been 19 A No.
20 contained in those documents and | am not recalling it. 20 Q Okay. Didyou ever make any effort to find
21 Q Didyou ever make any specific inquiry to find 21 out?
22 out? 22 A Again, it is possible that information may have
23 A | didn't ask for any information separate from 23 been in the documents that | looked at, but | don't
24 those reportsthat | read. 24 recdll it.
25 Q Isthere any reason that you didn't discussin 25 Q Okay. My question isalittle bit different.
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1 Didyou ever make any specific effort to ascertain the 1 A For Cohort 4?

2 number of different schools? 2 Q For aCohort after the results are announced.

3 A Atonepoint | did read both of those reports, 3 A | don't recall the specific deadlines about

4 but | just don't recall whether that information wasin 4  that.

5 thereor not. 5 Q Haveyou looked at any applications that any

6 Q Okay. Didyou give any consideration to 6 school has submitted in any year for participationin

7 including the number of different schools that were 7 theintervention program?

8 dligiblefor the intervention program anyplace in your 8 A No.

9 report? 9 Q Haveyou had any discussions with anyone as to
10 A | considered alot of thingsin deciding what 10 why some schools are selected and other schools are not
11 toincludeinthisreport and, asl indicated, itisa 11 for participation in the intervention program?

12 summary using the form of what | ultimately chose to 12 A Notthat | recal.
13 include. 13 Q Onpage 21, your last sentence in the first
14 Q But my questionisalittle bit different. 14 full paragraph in the second column:
15 Did you give any consideration to including the 15 "All schools that met or exceeded their
16 fact of the number of different schoolsthat were 16 growth targets and demonstrated comparable
17 e€ligiblefor participation in the intervention program 17 improvement were given certificates and a
18 for thefirst three Cohorts? 18 special emblem to use on their letterhead
19 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. | 19 during the following year."
20 THE WITNESS: And my answer isthat | don't 20 Do you see that sentence?
21 recall dl the thingsthat | may have considered and 21 MR. HERRON: | don't.
22 didn't end up including in the report. 22 MR. ROSENBAUM: Itispage 21, David.
23 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 23 MR. HERRON: Okay. I'm on that page.
24 Q Okay. Again, | don't want to belabor this. | 24 MR. ROSENBAUM: And it isthe second column,
25 asked you with respect to Cohort 1 whether or not you 25 last sentencein the last full paragraph.
Page 522 Page 524

1 knew anything about the reasons why certain schools 1 Q Do you seethat?

2 didn't apply. 2 A Yes.

3 Do you remember those questions? 3 Q Okay. Do you know if that is still done? Are

4 A | remember your asking that. 4 schoolsthat meet or exceed their growth targets given a

5 Q If | repeat that question for Cohorts 2 and 3, 5 gpecial emblem to use on their letterhead during the

6 do you have any information as to why any of the schools 6 following year?

7 in Cohort 2 that were eligible for participation did not 7 A It wastrue when | wrote the report in the

8 apply? Do you have any such information? 8 spring. | haven't checked recently to seeif they till

9 A | believe you aready asked me that question, 9 havethat up there.

10 too, and | indicated that my answer was the same for 10 Q Do you know what that emblem says?

11 Cohorts2and 3. 11 A | don't recall the exact wording, but something

12 Q Allright. Thanks. 12 about being digible for awards or having met the growth
13 Isthere a Cohort 4? 13 targets or something about the accomplishment.

14 A Yes 14 Q Okay. Looking, Doctor, at page 23. I'm

15 Q Do you know how many schools were eligible for 15 looking at "Summary results’ -- I'm looking at, I'm

16 participation in the intervention program in Cohort 4? 16 sorry, the second column, first full paragraph:

17 A No. 17 "Of the 430 participating schools, 68

18 Q Have you seen any numbers as to the number of 18 percent met their targets or made at

19 digible schools? 19 least some growth ...."

20 A | don't think | have seen any of that 20 Do you see that?

21 information. 21 A Yes

22 Q Okay. Sameanswer for applied and applied -- 22 Q Of the 68 percent, do you know how many met
23 Strikethat. 23 their targets and how many made at least some growth?
24 Do you know when the application process takes 24 A No.

25 place? 25 Q How do you define "some growth"? If they added
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1 apoint, would that be some growth in your definition? 1 Cohort 1, Cohort 2 or Cohort 3?
2 MR. HERRON: The document speaks for itself. 2 MR. HERRON: For purposes of her report or just
3 MR. ROSENBAUM: | don't think it does speak to 3 generdly?
4 this. 4 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
5 THE WITNESS: Thisisnot my definition. This 5 Q Let'sbreak that down. For purposes of your
6 information was taken from department data, and my 6 report, did you make any anaysisto determine any of
7 assumption isthat you have made some growth if your AP 7 thereasons why schoolsfail to make any growth,
8 growth for the current year exceeds the API base for the 8 referring to schoolsin Cohorts 1, 2 or 3?
9 previous year. 9 A My understanding is that that is part of the
10 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 10 process conducted with the external evaluator and would
11 Q Soaonepoint growth, it isyour assumption, 11 beincluded in the reports that they submit. | have not
12 would be included within the definition of "at least 12 looked at those reports.
13 somegrowth"; isthat right? 13 Q Okay. Havethere been any changesin the
14 A | would expect that to be true. 14 externd evaluation system since the inception of the
15 Q Did you ever make any inquiry asto how many 15 program?
16 schools actually met their targets and how many made at 16 A | know that the statute was changed at some
17 least some growth by this definition? 17 point and there were lists devel oped by the board of
18 A Again, | may have seen datalike that in the 18 individuasthat could serve as external evaluators and
19 documentsthat | reviewed, but | don't recall it at this 19 | believe there were some changes made, but | don't
20 time. 20 recall specifically what they were.
21 Q Okay. And then 16 percent received athird 21 Q Okay. Didyou do any tracking, Doctor, to
22 year of funding. Isthat right? Isthat what you are 22 determine whether or not schools that were dligible for
23 tdling us here? 23 participation in the program but were not -- but did not
24 A Let metakeaquick look at that table. 24 apply to bein the program, whether or not they made
25 Q Sure. 25 growth from Cohort 1 to Cohort 2 or Cohort 2 to Cohort
Page 526 Page 528
1 A 1 think, infact, in response to your earlier 1 3? Do you understand my question?
2 question, two categories from this table had been 2 A ldo--
3 combined. So you do have information that 75 of the 3 MR. HERRON: | do not. Object. Itisvague
4 schools, 75 out of the 430, made their growth targets 4 and ambiguous.
5 both years and 262 made some growth and continued in the 5 THE WITNESS: | believe there might be
6 program. 6 information along those linesin the external
7 Q Okay. Thanks. 7 evauator's report which compared performance of schools
8 Do you know what H.P. stands for, Doctor? 8 that werein the program against a control set of
9 A It'sin the footnote at the bottom. High 9 schoolsthat were not in the program, and | don't recall
10 priority schools program. 10 the specifics of how that control group was determined
11 Q Do you know what the high priority schools 11 but might have included some of those schools.
12 programis? 12 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
13 A Asthefootnoteindicates, it provides athird 13 Q Okay. Do you know for afact whether that took
14  year of funding to schools and delays the implementation 14 place?
15 of sanctions by one year. 15 A Without reviewing the report, | just can't tell
16 Q Do you know if there are any other components 16 you what the specifics were.
17 or elements of the high priority schools program? 17 Q Okay. Did you yourself undertake any analysis
18 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 18 to determine for purposes of your report what happened
19 THE WITNESS: | don't recall any of the other 19 to schoolsthat were eligible to participate in the
20 gpecificsat thistime. 20 intervention program the following year, whether or not
21 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 21 they had any API growth or whether they stayed the same
22 Q Okay. Do you know if there has been any 22 or whether they decreased?
23 analysis, Doctor -- Well, strike that. 23 A Asl indicated to you earlier, | read the
24 Have you ever made any analysisto seeif there 24 available information about the program. | did not
25 arereasonswhy schoolsfail to make any growth, 25 collect any dataindependently of that.
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1 Q Okay. Do you have any judgment as to what 1 respect to whether or not students in those 5 percent of
2 happened to those schools, the number of percent it went 2 schools had access to textbooks?
3 up, the number of percent it stayed the same, the number 3 MR. HERRON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
4 of percent it went down? 4 touseof theterm "access," use of the term "textbooks'
5 A To answer the specific questions about the 5 and asphrased, irrelevant.
6 program and the cohorts and so on, | would have to 6 THE WITNESS: As| indicated to you, without
7 review the available documentation. | don't recall it 7 reviewing the available documentation, | don't recall
8 atthistime. 8 what information is or is not available about these
9 Q Okay. The same sort of question, Doctor, with 9 schools.
10 respect to those schools that applied and weren't 10 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
11 selected. 11 Q Didyouregard it as part of your jobin
12 To your knowledge, has anyone looked into the 12 preparing thisreport, Exhibit 1, to investigate the
13 question about what happened to schoolsin aCohort that | 13 characteristics of schools that ended up in the
14 wereeligible for intervention, applied for 14 intervention program?
15 participation in the intervention process, didn't get 15 MR. HERRON: Vague. Objection.
16 selected, what happened to them the following year? 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered. 17 Q Itisvague, and by "characteristics," | mean
18 THE WITNESS: Again, | just don't recall 18 racial and ethnic composition, socioeconomic conditions,
19 specifically what is contained in the available 19 the character of the facilities, percent of emergency
20 information. | would haveto review that. 20 credentialed teachers, whether students had access to
21 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 21 textbooks.
22 Q Okay. | may have asked it, but it was not 22 My question is, Doctor: Y ou obviously put a
23 answered. 23 lot of timeinto thisreport. Did you consider that
24 Q Do you know, Doctor -- | am looking at page 24 question, the characteristics of the schools that were
25 23. The5 percent of the schools that failed to make 25 digiblefor theintervention program? Did you regard
Page 530 Page 532
1 any growth and are subject to State sanctions -- 1 that aswithin your purview or did you regard that as
2 Do you see that? 2 outside the subject matter that you were considering for
3 A | seethat. 3 purposes of your report?
4 Q --isityour understanding that external 4 MR. HERRON: The document speaks for itself.
5 evaluators are assigned to those schools, al of those 5 THE WITNESS: Asl indicated to you already, |
6 schools? 6 reviewed avast quantity of information for purposes of
7 A My understanding is that external evaluators 7 preparing the report. My goals were to summarize the
8 were chosen when they entered the intervention program. 8 accountability system, the awards and intervention
9 Q Okay. And do you know anything about the 9 programsthat were a part of that system and the
10 racial or ethnic composition of the 5 percent of schools 10 assessments that were used and to discuss how the AP
11 that failed to make any growth and are subject to State 11 haschanged over time, and then to respond to
12 sanctions? 12 Dr. Russel'sreport.
13 A | don't recall the data about that, if itis 13 And in doing those tasks, | made decisions
14 available. 14 about how to best summarize the datato give a concise
15 Q Do you know anything about the characteristics 15 picture of what was happening in the system.
16 of those schools, for example, with respect to those 16 BY MR. ROSENBAUM:
17 5 percent of schools, the percent of emergency 17 Q Okay. And do you recal giving any
18 credentialed teachers in those schools? 18 consideration to inclusion in your report of information
19 A Again, | don't recall any specific datalike 19 about the socioeconomic characteristics of schools that
20 that without reviewing the information that is available 20 wereé€ligible for the intervention program?
21 about the program. 21 MR. HERRON: Objection. Asked and answered in
22 Q Do you know whether or not that data has been 22 the question before and before that.
23 compiled? 23 THE WITNESS: As| aready indicated to you, |
24 A | don't recall. 24 considered avast quantity of data and alot of things
25 Q Do you know if data has been compiled with 25 that | don't recall specifically when writing this
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1 report. 1

2 BY MR. ROSENBAUM: 2

3 Q Okay. Let mejust ask you one more question. 3

4 Thisis actually a convenient time to break. g

5 Thank you. 6

6 MR. HERRON: Thank you, Doctor. Weshould-- | -

7 Just before we go off, we should have the technical 8

8 manualstomorrow, probably tomorrow afternoon. 9 I, SUSAN E. PHILLIPS, Ph.D., do hereby declare

9 MR. ROSENBAUM: | appreciate that. 10 under penalty of perjury that | have read the foregoing
10 (The following was stipulated to in an 11 transcript; that | have made any corrections as appear
12 on August 7, 2003 in the deposition of 13 contained herein, as_corrected, istrue and correct.

13 Susan E. Phillips, Ph.D., Volume 4: That 1‘51 20 EXaEICUTED this day of
14 the original transcript be maintained by the — (City) (Sae) ’
15 San Francisco office of Esquire Deposition 16
16 Services; that counsel for the witness will 17
17 seeto it that the witness reads and corrects
18 the transcript and subsequently signsthe 18 SUSAN E. PHILLIPS, Ph.D.,
19 asignature page; that counsel for the witness Volume 2
20  will notify the court reporter's office of any 19
21 changes; that the court reporter's office g(l)
22 will then notify all counsel of signature and s
23 corrections made to the transcript; and that 23
24 thereafter the court reporter's office will 24
25 seal the original transcript, signature page 25
Page 534 Page 536

1 and changesin an envelope and send it to the 1

2 San Francisco office of Morrison & Foerster 2

3 to the attention of Ryoka Kita.) 3

4 (ENDING TIME: 5:00 p.m.) 4 I, the undersigned, a Certified Shorthand

5 / 5 Reporter of the State of California, do hereby

6 |/ 6 certify:

7 7 That the foregoing proceedings were taken

8 8 before me at the time and place herein set forth;

9 9 that any witnesses in the foregoing proceedings, prior
10 10 totestifying, were placed under oath; that a verbatim
11 11 record of the proceedings was made by me using machine
12 12 shorthand which was thereafter transcribed under my
13 13 direction; further, that the foregoing is an accurate

14 transcript thereof.
14 15 | further certify that | am neither financially
15 16 interested in the action nor arelative or employee
16 17 of any attorney of any of the parties.
17 18 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have this date subscribed
18 19 my name.
20
20 21 Dated: August 21, 2003
21 22
22 23
23 PAMELA A. STITT
24 24 CSR No. 6027
25 25
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